

Skills Management 9.0.0

Performance DNA Administration Guide

Information contained herein is proprietary and confidential and cannot be disclosed or duplicated without the prior written consent of Genesys Telecommunications Laboratories, Inc.

Copyright © 2017 Genesys Telecommunications Laboratories, Inc. All rights reserved.

About Genesys

Genesys powers 25 billion of the world's best customer experiences each year. Our success comes from connecting employee and customer conversations on any channel, every day. Over 10,000 companies in 100+ countries trust our #1 customer experience platform to drive great business outcomes and create lasting relationships. Combining the best of technology and human ingenuity, we build solutions that mirror natural communication and work the way you think. Our industry-leading solutions foster true omnichannel engagement, performing equally well across all channels, on-premise and in the cloud. Experience communication as it should be: fluid, instinctive and profoundly empowering. Go to www.genesys.com for more information.

Each product has its own documentation for online viewing at the Genesys Documentation website or on the Documentation Library DVD, which is available from Genesys upon request. For more information, contact your sales representative.

Notice

Although reasonable effort is made to ensure that the information in this document is complete and accurate at the time of release, Genesys Telecommunications Laboratories, Inc. cannot assume responsibility for any existing errors. Changes and/or corrections to the information contained in this document may be incorporated in future versions.

Your Responsibility for Your System's Security

You are responsible for the security of your system. Product administration to prevent unauthorized use is your responsibility. Your system administrator should read all documents provided with this product to fully understand the features available that reduce your risk of incurring charges for unlicensed use of Genesys products.

Trademarks

Genesys and the Genesys logo are registered trademarks of Genesys Telecommunications Laboratories, Inc. All other company names and logos may be trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective holders. © 2017 Genesys Telecommunications Laboratories, Inc. All rights reserved.

Technical Support from VARs

If you have purchased support from a value-added reseller (VAR), please contact the VAR for technical support.

Ordering and Licensing Information

Complete information on ordering and licensing Genesys products can be found in the <u>Genesys</u> <u>Licensing Guide</u>.

Released by: Genesys Telecommunications Laboratories, Inc. <u>http://www.genesys.com/</u>

Document Version: 90_skillsmanagement_performance-dna_administrator_12-2017_v9.0.001.00

Table of Contents

1	I	Log	ging l	n	14
2	I	Mar	nage I	Hierarchy	16
	2.1	L	Man	aging Organisational Structure in Performance DNA	16
3	(Crea	ating	and Managing Users	18
4		Hier	archy	/ Import Functionality	20
5	1	Mar	nagin	g User Permissions	22
6				and Managing Roles	
•	6.1			-In Roles	
7	-			Templates Associated to Roles	
'			-		
_	7.1		•	s	
8				ew Roles	
9		Syst	em S	ettings	32
	9.1	L	User	Fields	32
	9.2	2	Auth	entication	32
	9	9.2.	1	Field Mappings	32
	9	9.2.	2	SAML Authentication	33
	9.3	3	Widg	gets	33
	9.4	1	Gene	eral Settings	33
	9	9.4.	1	Genesys Settings	33
	9	9.4.	2	Proxy Settings	34
	9	9.4.	3	Learning Management System Integration	34
	9	9.4.	4	Exchange Settings	35
	9	9.4.	5	Email Settings	35
	9	9.4.	6	Other Settings	36
	9.5	5	Even	t Settings	37
	9	9.5.	1	Learning Items Assignment Email	37
	9	9.5.	2	Assessment Completion Email	38
	9	9.5.	3	Process Queued Booking Requests	38
	9	9.5.	4	Process Email Queue	38
	9	9.5.	5	Process Learning Items Queue	
	9	9.5.	6	Learning Item Auto Rank	38
	9.6	5	HTTF	PS Support	38
10) כ	Gro	ups		39
	10	.1	Assig	ning Users into Groups based on Hierarchy	41
11	LI	Rule	es-Bas	sed Assignments	43

-	11.1	Rule Logic	43
	11.2	Assignments	44
	11.3	Workflow	44
12	Ma	nage Assessments	45
	12.1	Creating an Assessment	45
	12.3	1.1 Basic Settings	46
	12.3	1.2 Contents	47
	12.3	1.3 Questions	48
	12.3	1.4 Answer Layout	57
	12.3	1.5 Test Navigation	58
	12.3		
	12.3		
	12.1		
	12.1	•	
		1.10 Learning Items Settings	
		1.11 Assessment Branding Settings	
		1.12 Question Bank	
		1.13 Associating Learning Items with Assessment Content Sections	
-	12.2	Printing an Assessment	
	12.3	Import / Export	65
13	Kno	owledge Nudges	66
	13.1	Creating Knowledge Nudges	67
14	Ma	naging Learning Items	73
	14.1	Creating Learning Items	73
	14.2	Editing Learning Items	74
	14.3	Deleting Learning Items	74
	14.4	Filtering View of Learning Items	74
	14.5	Genesys EWM Learning Item Integration	74
15	Cre	ating Feedback Assessments	76
16	Ema	ail Notification Service	77
	16.1	Configuring Email Settings	77
	16.3	1.1 Enabling Email Events	78
17	Ass	signing Assessments to Individual Users	79
18	Dat	te Restrictions on Assessments	80
19	Abi	ility to Reset Multiple User Tests	81
20		eate Customizable Certificates per Assessment	
	20.1	Creating Certificates	
	20.2	Adding Text to a certificate	
			55

	20.3	Adding an image to your certificate	85
	20.4	Assigning your certificate to an assessment	86
	20.5	Recalling Awarded Certificates	87
21	L Rep	orts	88
	21.1	Feedback Results Report	88
	21.2	Knowledge Nudge Reports	88
	21.3	Assessment Report	89
	21.4	Feedback Report	91
	21.5	Admin Reports	91
	21.6	User Result Detail	92
	21.7	Using the Report Filters Option	94
	21.8	Loading Report Filters	99
	21.9	User Feedback Response Percentages	100
	21.10	Question Response Summary	101
	21.11	Admin Report User Filter – Hierarchy	101
	21.12	Duration Column within the User Result Detail Report	102
	21.13	Feedback Deployment Models	103
22	2 Mar	naging and Viewing Crystal Reports	105
	22.1	Managing Report Settings	105
	22.2	Managing Reports	105
	22.3	Viewing Reports	106
	22.4	Restricting Report Results	106
23	B Skill	lsroute	107
24	4 CMI	E Authentication (Genesys environment only)	110
25	5 Skill	IsDNA Creation	112
	25.1	Manually Managing DNA Base Data	112
	25.2	Managing Base Data Definitions with Excel	115
	25.2		
	25.2 25.2		
	25.3	Calculated Data	
	25.3		
	25.3		
	25.3		
	25.3		
	25.4	Import KPI Data	122

2	25.4.	.1	Manually Importing KPI data	122
-	25.4.	.2	Deleting Previously Imported Data	126
	25.4.	.3	Automatically Importing KPI Data	126
25.	5	My D	NA	126
-	25.5.	.1	Date Range	126
-	25.5.	.2	Data Visualisation	127
2	25.5.	.3	Data Issues	127
25.	6	DNA	Comparison	128
-	25.6.	.1	Date Range	128
2	25.6.	.2	Strand Selector	128
-	25.6.	.3	User Selection	128
2	25.6.	.4	Loading and Saving Filters	129
2	25.6.	.5	Data Visualisation	130
	25.6.	.6	Data Issues	131
4	25.6.	.7	User Drilldown	131
4	25.6.	.8	Learning Item Drilldown	132
25.	7	DNA	User Progress Graph	133
Ĩ	25.7.	.1	Date Range	134
2	25.7.	.2	Data Type	134
2	25.7.	.3	Users	134
-	25.7.	.4	Loading and Saving Filters	134
-	25.7.	.5	The Timeseries Graph	136
25.	8	Upda	ate Routing Skills from DNA	138
26 I	Bran	ding		142
26.	1	Bran	ding Options	142
26			ng Branding	
26.				
26.			pre Branding to Defaults	
			lysis	
28 I	Perso	onal	Development Review	151
28.	1	Settii	ng the number of objective targets for users	151
28.	2	PDR	Page	151
28.	3	PDR	Dashboard Page	152
Ĩ	28.3.	.1	Objective Actions Screen	153
28.	4	PDR /	Admin Page	155
2	28.4.	.1	PDR Potential Assessment	155
	28.4.		PDR Defined Review Windows	
	28.4.		PDR Email Notifications	
28.			ure notes	
2	28.5.	.1	PDR Dashboard Widget	156

29 Ap	pendix 1: Optional components	158
29.1	DNA Import Service	. 158
29.2	LMS Learning Item Integration	. 158
29.3	Configuring GIS Authentication	. 158

Table of Figures

Figure 1: Log on screen	. 14
Figure 2: Performance DNA Home Page	. 15
Figure 3: Hierarchy Management	. 16
Figure 4: Creating a new position	. 16
Figure 5: Renaming a position	. 17
Figure 6: Assigning a user to a position	. 17
Figure 7: Assigning a user to a position by editing user details	. 18
Figure 8: Creating new unassigned users	. 18
Figure 9: Creating a new user	. 18
Figure 10: Entering new user details	. 19
Figure 11: Import Users page	. 20
Figure 12: Importing users from CSV file	. 20
Figure 13: Managing user permissions	.22
Figure 14: Viewing users with a specific role	.23
Figure 15: Assigning additional users to a role	. 23
Figure 16: Searching for users	.24
Figure 17: Finding a user in the hierarchy	.24
Figure 18: Search results	. 25
Figure 19: Associating a widget with a role	. 29
Figure 20: Creating tabs and associating widgets	. 30
Figure 21: Setting the default widget for a role	. 30
Figure 22: Managing roles	.31
Figure 23: Adding additional user fields	
Figure 24: User login credentials	.33
Figure 25: Widgets tab and external widgets	.33
Figure 26: Genesys Settings	.34
Figure 27: Proxy Settings	.34
Figure 28: LMS Settings	. 35
Figure 29: Exchange Settings	. 35
Figure 30: Managing groups	. 39
Figure 31: Viewing a group's users	. 39
Figure 32: Adding a user to a group	.40
Figure 33: Associating assessments with groups	.40
Figure 34: Setting assessment dates	.40
Figure 35: Setting assessment dates	.41
Figure 36: View assessment and assigned completion dates	.41
Figure 37: Assigning users to groups based on hierarchy	.42
Figure 38: Rules Grid	.43
Figure 39: Rule logic editor	.43
Figure 40: Rule assignment selection	.44
Figure 41: Workflow actions	.44
Figure 42: The Assessments page	.45
Figure 43: Creating assessments	.45
Figure 44: Editing assessment details	.46
Figure 45: Feedback only and archive settings	.47

Figure 46: Saving changes	.47
Figure 47: Adding new content to an assessment	.47
Figure 48: Assessment settings	.48
Figure 49: Adding questions to assessments	.48
Figure 50: Setting the type of new questions	.48
Figure 51: Adding external URLs to questions	.49
Figure 52: Changing question types and adding answers	.49
Figure 53: Setting question value, additional media and text	.50
Figure 54: Adding an image to an Answer	.50
Figure 55: Editing and navigating between Assessment Questions	.51
Figure 56: Preparing a hot spot image question	.51
Figure 57: Defining a hot spot answer area	.52
Figure 58: Defining a hot spot answer area	.52
Figure 59: Display of hot spot answer	.53
Figure 60: Saving completed questions	.53
Figure 61: Creating question text and adding an answer	.53
Figure 62: Adding answers and using wild cards	.54
Figure 63: Delimiting ranges for numeric questions	.54
Figure 64: Delimiting ranges for feedback ratings	.55
Figure 65: Adding detail to ratings	.56
Figure 66: Display of rating detail and associated question	.56
Figure 67: Editing existing questions	.56
Figure 68: Deleting questions	.56
Figure 69: Associating existing templates with feedback questions	.56
Figure 70: Accessing additional assessment detail and options	.57
Figure 71: Question Layout Option	.57
Figure 72: Vertical Answer Alignment	.57
Figure 73: Horizontal Answer Alignment	.58
Figure 74: Test navigation tab	.58
Figure 75: Automatic test reset	.59
Figure 76: Associating a knowledge nudge URL or PDF	. 59
Figure 77: Associating a certificate with an assessment	. 59
Figure 78: Viewing assessment results and additional options	.60
Figure 79: Assessment Learning Items settings	.60
Figure 80: Assessment Branding Settings	.61
Figure 81: Question Bank	.62
Figure 82: Search bar	.62
Figure 83: Search results	.62
Figure 84: Selecting questions to copy/shortcut	.62
Figure 85: Attaching learning items to a content section	.63
Figure 86: Searching for learning items	.63
Figure 87: View Printable Version	.64
Figure 88: Import/Export options	.65
Figure 89: Creating a URL knowledge nudge	.67
Figure 90: Creating a PDF knowledge nudge	.67
Figure 91: Using Microsoft PowerPoint or Adobe Acrobat to create multimedia nudges	.68

Figure 92: Setting presentation elements as hyperlinks	
Figure 93: Setting hyperlink target	.69
Figure 94: Saving PowerPoint presentations as PDF documents	.69
Figure 95: Adobe Acrobat multimedia content types	.70
Figure 96: Inserting a video file into a PDF document	.70
Figure 97: Multimedia advanced options	.71
Figure 98: Selecting a knowledge nudge	.71
Figure 99: Mandatory pre-assessment attachment	
Figure 100: Learning Items Page	
Figure 101: Creating Learning Items	.73
Figure 102: EWM Integration	
Figure 103: Self and manager feedback assessments	.76
Figure 104: Viewing assessments using the 'feedback on other users' tab	.76
Figure 105: Viewing Email Settings	
Figure 106: Event Settings	
Figure 107: Assigning assessments to individual users	
Figure 108: Viewing individually assigned assessments	
Figure 109: Assigning assessments to individual users	
Figure 110: Deadline assessment dates	
Figure 111: Resetting user assessments	
Figure 112: Resetting assessments for specific users	
Figure 113: Creating new certificates	
Figure 114: Setting certificate name	
Figure 115: Saving certificate name	
Figure 116: Confirming changes to certificate details	
Figure 117: Designing certificate content	
Figure 118: Designing certificate content	
Figure 119: Certificate design toolbox	
Figure 120: Adding text to a certificate	
Figure 121: Text editing menu	
Figure 122: Editing certificate text	
Figure 123: Replacing and deleting certificate images	
Figure 124: Browsing for replacement images	
Figure 125: Adding a results graph to a certificate	
Figure 126: Assigning a certificate to an assessment	
Figure 127: Viewing certificates	.87
Figure 128: Feedback results report	.88
Figure 129: Knowledge nudge report	.89
Figure 130: Nudge report information and options	.89
Figure 131: Viewing assessment reports by individual or team	
Figure 132: Detailed assessment results	
Figure 133: Viewing question detail and provided answers	
Figure 134: Exporting assessment details	
Figure 135: Rebuilding feedback reports	
Figure 136: Feedback Results	
Figure 137: User result detail report	

Figure 138: User result detail report	92
Figure 139: Selecting an assessment for the report	93
Figure 140: Expanding report detail	93
Figure 141: Question and content duration	93
Figure 142: Using report filters	94
Figure 143: Adding additional filters	94
Figure 144: Adding a Department Filter	95
Figure 145: Saving filter options	95
Figure 146: adding test result filters	95
Figure 147: Selecting a test result filter	96
Figure 148: Test result filter options	96
Figure 149: Saving an assessment with an associated filter	97
Figure 150: Saving an assessment with an associated filter	
Figure 151: Saving the date filter	97
Figure 152: Display of a saved filter	97
Figure 153: Saving filters	98
Figure 154: Filter update notification	98
Figure 155: Loading saved filters	99
Figure 156: Display of selected filters	99
Figure 157: Viewing filtered report information	
Figure 158: Creating a user feedback response percentages report	
Figure 159: Selecting the report's assessment and feedback type	101
Figure 160: Selecting an assessment for the Question Response Summary Report	101
Figure 161: Using the organisational hierarchy as a filter	101
Figure 162: Using the organisational hierarchy as a filter	102
Figure 163: Duration column within the user result detail report	102
Figure 164: Feedback Deployment Models	
Figure 165: Creating feedback models	
Figure 166: Selecting a feedback model	103
Figure 167: Setting the number of required reports	104
Figure 168: Manage Reports Page	105
Figure 169: Selecting the Skillsroute page	107
Figure 170: Select a spreadsheet for data import	107
Figure 171: Spreadsheet format	107
Figure 172: Creating a new employee	107
Figure 173: Setting employee skills	108
Figure 174: Confirming accuracy of input data	108
Figure 175: Mapping source and user fields	109
Figure 176: Finalising the import of employee data	109
Figure 177: Authenticating user access via their CME credentials	110
Figure 178: Selecting Genesys for authenticating user credentials	111
Figure 179: DNA Base Data Definitions page	112
Figure 180: Create DNA Base Data	113
Figure 181: Defining DNA Base Data	113
Figure 182: Defining DNA Base Data Spreadsheet	
Figure 183: Create DNA Base Data	115

Figure 184: New Base Data Entry Line	
Figure 185: Pasted Base Data Definitions	116
Figure 186: Updated Base Data Definitions	117
Figure 187: Selecting data range	117
Figure 188: Selecting data range	118
Figure 189: Attached Learning Items	118
Figure 190: Attaching Learning Items	118
Figure 191: Setting Learning Item Range	118
Figure 192: Calculated Data page	119
Figure 193: Creating a new Calculated Data	120
Figure 194: Assigning Learning Items	
Figure 195: Editing a Calculated Data	121
Figure 196: Importing Key Performance information via a spreadsheet	
Figure 197: Importing KPI data	
Figure 198: Importing KPI data	
Figure 199: Importing KPI data	
Figure 200: Mapping source fields to existing components	
Figure 201: Viewing mapping results and saving import templates	
Figure 202: Starting data import	
Figure 203: Finalising data import	
Figure 204: Deleting KPI Import file	
Figure 205: Selecting Date Range	
Figure 206:DNA Strands	
Figure 207: Data Warnings	
Figure 208: Rolling Days	
Figure 209: Fixed Dates	
Figure 210: Strand Selection	
Figure 211: User Selection	
Figure 212: Filter Buttons	
Figure 213: Loading Filter	
Figure 214: Saving Filter as Default	
Figure 215: Agent Performance	
Figure 216: Data Warning	
Figure 217: View Data	
Figure 218: Viewing Data	
Figure 219: Calculated Data	
Figure 220: Viewing Attached Learning Items	
Figure 221: Attached Learning Items	
Figure 222: Learning Item reconmendations	
Figure 223: Rolling Week Range	
Figure 224: Selected Dates	
Figure 225: Data Selection	
Figure 226: Filter Buttons	
Figure 227: Loading Filter	
Figure 228: Saving Filters	
Figure 229: User Progress	

Figure 230: Selected Users Progress	137
Figure 231: Thresholds toggled off	137
Figure 232: Focused Timeline	138
Figure 233: Base Data values	138
Figure 234: Skills Routing	
Figure 235: Skills Routing Template	139
Figure 236: Linking DNA components and CME skills	140
Figure 237: Setting skill link properties	140
Figure 238: Previewing the CME skill levels	141
Figure 239: Branding Settings	142
Figure 240: Branding Font	143
Figure 241: Corporate Logos	144
Figure 242: Saving Settings	
Figure 243: Restoring Branding to Default	144
Figure 244: Branding Rest Confirmation	145
Figure 245: Skills Analysis Page	146
Figure 246: Choose items to analyse	146
Figure 247: Select users	147
Figure 248: Data analysis	147
Figure 249: Data analysis	147
Figure 250: Analysis results	148
Figure 251: Viewing correlation results for a specific data set	148
Figure 252: Viewing correlation results for a specific data set	149
Figure 253: Results matrix	149
Figure 254: Selecting users for training based on results	150
Figure 255: Saving the training plan	150
Figure 256: Creating objectives	152
Figure 257: PDR Dashboard	153
Figure 258: Creating an objective	153
Figure 259: Adding comments and evidence file uploads	153
Figure 260: Objective actions screen	154
Figure 261: Potential tab	154
Figure 262: Talent Matrix tab	155
Figure 263: PDR Admin Page Settings	156
Figure 264: GIS Settings	
Figure 265: GIS Server Details	160

1 Logging In

Performance DNA is accessed through a web browser, pointing at a site either either on the Internet (externally hosted) or over an internal company intranet (installed 'on-premise' at a site managed by the user's organisation).

Once the landing page is reached, a login screen similar to the one shown below will be displayed. (The application can be customized so that your organisation's branding standards, including logo and colour scheme, are used.)

	Welcome
	Welcome
Login ID	
Password	
	LOG IN
0	ogging in
Performanc JS Patent #858921	e DNA Version 9.0.0.10910. 5. AUS Patent #2012282230. Other patents pending.

Enter your unique user name and password, and click on the **Log In** button.

Figure 1: Log on screen

Note: depending on the configuration of the installation, login details may not need to be entered in order to access Performance DNA (e.g. if Acitive Directory authentication has been enabled). Your trainer will guide you on the login rules for your organization.

A user logging in as an Administrator usually has full access to Performance DNA. The home screen will look different depending on permissions assigned. A home page screen is shown below.

<mark>ଟ</mark> ୍ଚ GENESYS [™]	MY DEVELOPMENT		
X 🔸		All Assignment Types Not Archived	
My Development	Selling Skills		C
My DNA My Certificates PDR	Customer Service Excellence MC	; ;	ď
PDR Dashboard	Compliance Assessment		C
Change Time Zone Change Password	Handsets - iphone		ď
	AHT Tips		C
∯ DNA ■ BOOKING REQUESTS	« < 1 > »	10 • items per page	1-5 of 5 items
CALENDARS			
SYSTEM			
LOGOUT - ADMIN			

Figure 2: Performance DNA Home Page

The left side of the screen always includes an expandable navigation menu. In the above example the My Development page is displayed (this will only be visible to users with the permissions to view the My Development page within Performance DNA). The widgets displayed in the menu are based on the user's role as well as the available product licences.

2 Manage Hierarchy

The Users & Hierarchy page shows the organisational structure that has been set up within Performance DNA. This hierarchy includes positions, users and the manager-subordinate relationships between individuals. Multiple users can be assigned to the same position.

Note: If the hierarchy will be managed and maintained by importing data or through integration with an existing HR system, the following section can be skipped as any manual changes made to the hierarchy will be lost the next time that the hierarchy is refreshed.

2.1 Managing Organisational Structure in Performance DNA

Select the **Users & Hierarchy** option from the menu to create and manage the hierarchy. The hierarchy structure automatically gives visibility of any subordinate assessment results in the **Report** page.

Positions are created and inserted into the hierarchy by right clicking and creating a new position and dragging it under the existing position in the hierarchy.

<mark>e</mark> genesys [®]	USERS & HIERARCHY			
X + USER REPORTING DNA	Training Team Manager trony of versore Overall Manager, UK Tremat tills Overall Manager, NY	Search for user. Login ID	Go First Name	Last Name
 BOOKING REQUESTS CALENDARS 	Mmee Rompue Overall Manager, SF Rena Cak Overall Manager, JP	padmin admin 15555215556	Portal Genesys Mobile	Admin Administrator Agent
ADMIN Users A Users & Hierarchy Roles & Widgets	Unassigned users Rota Aono (= Chera) Archived users	UK_Agent_053 UK_Agent_074 UK_Agent_065	Hashim Shanksib Mohammad	Ahmed Ahmed Akhtar
Groups Rules Import Users Assessments ▲	endy	UK_Agent_070 Jaitidore UK_Agent_001	Rob Jozy Amanda	Allan Altidore Amanda
Manage Assessments Reset Tests Certificates		(H) - (B) 2 3 4 6		Page Size 10 ▼ 1 of 38, items 1 to 10 of 373

Note: The top position in the hierarchy cannot be deleted.



To create a new position, right click on a position in the hierarchy and select **New Position**.



Figure 4: Creating a new position

The position will then appear in the hierarchy.

Right click on the new position to give it a unique name by clicking on the **Rename** option.



Figure 5: Renaming a position

To assign a user to the new position first highlight the position. Next right click on the user and select **Add Selected User**. This will assign the individual to the new position.



Figure 6: Assigning a user to a position

The hierarchy is usually created prior to receiving the application; however this will have to be maintained.

To manually maintain the hierarchy:

Create new users manually (see next page for instructions) and then assign them to the relevant position.

Amend any position changes manually and then the users assigned to the positions.

See Hierarchy Import Functionality for information on how to maintain the hierarchy by importing hierarchy data from a file.

3 Creating and Managing Users

If the hierarchy is maintained through integration into a HR system or by importing data, there will be no requirement to manually make any changes as this will be managed automatically.

There are two options when creating a new user. To create a new user to assign to a new position, first create the new position and then right click and select **Edit user details**. This will allow you to create a new user and automatically assign them to the position.



Figure 7: Assigning a user to a position by editing user details

To create a new user to assign to an existing position, first right click on the position you wish to assign the user to, and select **Edit user details**.



Figure 8: Creating new unassigned users

Click on Create New User.



Figure 9: Creating a new user

A template will be presented similar to the example below (the field names will vary based on your organisation's field names).

Enter the information as required and select **Create** to save the new user details.

ireate New User	Edit Users	Assign Assessments		
		-	Login ID	U ser007
			First Name	Tony
			Last Name	Jagger
			Email Address	
			Manager ID	
			Job Title	
			Business Unit	
			Department / Shop	
			Site	
			Grade	
			Directorate	
			Manager Name	
			LMS ID	
			PDR Target Number	
			New Password	
			Confirm Password	

Figure 10: Entering new user details

The newly created user will then be assigned to the position.

4 Hierarchy Import Functionality

Organizations can upload files containing their organisational hierarchy to be processed as part of the **OrgData Import** using the **Import Users** page.

IMPORT USEF	RS	
Please upload your orgd column.	ata files here for processing in the next scheduled run. The filename chosen must match	the name in the Name
Name	Upload	Result
OrgDataU sers.csv	CHOOSE FILE	Not Uploaded
	SUBMIT	



The screen will provide an upload control for each file specified in the import configuration file. These should all be .CSV files.

The following shows an example hierarchy. In this example, Tony Price is the manager at the top level. The format of the file must match that specified in the OrgData configuration for it to be processed correctly.

Firstname	Surname	Employee number	Manager	Position	Region	Location	Team	Company
Misti	Pivero	mpivero	owilson	Agent	Liverpool	Merseyside	Team 2	My Company
Cassandra	Poorman	cpoorman	owilson	Agent	Liverpool	Merseyside	Team 2	My Company
La Tasha	Porras	Iporras	owilson	Agent	Liverpool	Cressington Park	Team 2	My Company
Megan	Powell 111	mpowell	owilson	Agent	Liverpool	Cressington Park	Team 2	My Company
Romana	Privett	rprivett	owilson	Agent	Liverpool	Cressington Park	Team 2	My Company
Debra	Proctor	dproctor	owilson	Agent	Liverpool	Cressington Park	Team 2	My Company
William	Radosevic	wradosevic	owilson	Agent	Liverpool	Cressington Park	Team 2	My Company
Fertisha	Ramero	framero	owilson	Agent	Liverpool	Cressington Park	Team 2	My Company
Lydia	Ramirez	Iramirez	owilson	Agent	Liverpool	Cressington Park	Team 2	My Company
Crystal	Ramos	cramos	owilson	Agent	Liverpool	Cressington Park	Team 2	My Company
Lori	Wang	Iwang	owilson	Agent	Liverpool	Cressington Park	Team 2	My Company
Owen	wilson	owilson	tprice	manager	Liverpool	Cressington Park	Team2	My Company
Cath	white	cwhite	tprice	manager	Liverpool	Merseyside	Team1	My Company
Lisa	spencer	Ispencer	tprice	manager	Manchester	Deansgate	Team2	My Company
Ann	talbot	atalbot	tprice	manager	Manchester	Worsley	Team1	My Company
Tony	Price	tprice		manager	Manchester	Worsley		My Company
Kathy	Gurin	kgurin	atalbot	Agent	Manchester	Worsley	Team 1	My Company
Loretta	Hammond	Ihammind	atalbot	Agent	Manchester	Worsley	Team 1	My Company
Louise	Jacobs	ljacobs	atalbot	Agent	Manchester	Worsley	Team 1	My Company
Amy	Jay	ajay	atalbot	Agent	Manchester	Worsley	Team 1	My Company
lan	Johnson	ijohnson	atalbot	Agent	Manchester	Worsley	Team 1	My Company
Gurutej	Kaur	gkaur	atalbot	Agent	Manchester	Worsley	Team 1	My Company
Ann	Larson	alarson	atalbot	Agent	Manchester	Deansgate	Team 1	My Company
Kai	Lemieux	klemieux	Ispencer	Agent	Manchester	Deansgate	Team 2	My Company
Kim	Lewis	klewis	Ispencer	Agent	Manchester	Deansgate	Team 2	My Company
Ben	Lin	blin	Ispencer	Agent	Manchester	Deansgate	Team 2	My Company
Pele	Lolani	plolani	Ispencer	Agent	Manchester	Deansgate	Team 2	My Company
Rebecca	Lorraine	rlorraine	Ispencer	Agent	Manchester	Deansgate	Team 2	My Company

Figure 12: Importing users from CSV file

Choose each of the files that need to be updated and then click on **Submit**.

Once the files have been uploaded they will be processed as part of the next configured **OrgData** run and the user hierarchy will be updated.

Notes:

- If you are managing Training Manager users through Performance DNA, ensure that you
 have first created and mapped the Portal Employee ID Field mapping in Performance DNA ->
 System Settings -> General Settings tab.
- Portal users may only have one Portal role at a time. Users who have been assigned to the Portal Trainer role cannot become Portal Managers and vice versa.
- Users who have the Portal administrator role and any other Portal role will be treated as Portal administrators only.
- **OrgData** deletes the file specified after it has been imported.

For more information please refer to the **OrgData** documentation.

5 Managing User Permissions

User permissions – which features, functionality, and areas of the system a user has access to are defined in the **Roles & Widgets** page.

In the following example there are five default Performance DNA Roles and four default Portal roles (Note: if the hierarchy is maintained via the import hierarchy feature, all users with subordinates will automatically be assigned to both the Manager and User Roles). The Portal roles will only appear if you have set up both products and the host name for Performance DNA and Training Manager match.

The number of users and widgets (features and pages accessible to a role) associated to the Role is visible under **User Count** and **Widget Count**.

	Filter	
	Widget Count	User Count
Administrator	46	1
Manager	0	0
Portal Administrator	46	1
Portal Manager	0	0
Portal Trainer	0	0
Portal User	0	0
Reporting Adminis	0	0
Trainer	0	0
User	2	1

List of roles

Figure 13: Managing user permissions

6 Defining and Managing Roles

The following section demonstrates how to create and manage a role. The Manager role is used as an example.

First, select a Role by clicking on the name of the role to view the list of users in the role.

List of roles						
Widget User Count Count						
Filter						
Administrator	46 1					
Manager	23 8					
Trainer	44 0					
User	6 66					
Users in role Manager						
Search Hierarchy						
ocurent						
Search for user: Go			Login ID	First Name	Last Nation	
· · · · · ·	First Name	Last Name	Login ID			
Search for user: Go	First Name Demo	Last Name Admin	137722	Daniel	Billsus	
Search for user: Go Login ID						
Search for user: Go Login ID admin UK_Agent_053	Demo Caroline	Admin Allan	137722	Daniel	Billsus	
Search for user: Go Login ID admin UK_Agent_053 137545	Demo Caroline Ashley	Admin Allan Andeen	137723 UK_Agent_031	Daniel Owen	Billsus Bower	
Search for user: Go Login ID admin UK_Agent_053	Demo Caroline	Admin Allan	137722 UK_Agent_031 00000002 00000003	Daniel Owen Huw Stave	Billsus Bower Bristow Gardner	
Search for user: Go Login ID admin UK_Agent_053 137545	Demo Caroline Ashley	Admin Allan Andeen	137722 0K_Agent_031 0000002 0000003 0000004	Daniel Owen Huw Steve Andy	Billsus Bower Bristow Gardner Harper	
Search for user: Go Login ID admin UK_Agent_053 137545 UK_Agent_035	Demo Caroline Ashley Audrey	Admin Allan Andeen Arnold	137723 UK_Agent_031 0000002 0000003 0000004 N7518	Daniel Owen Huw Steve Andy John	Billsus Bower Bristow Gardner Harper King	
Search for user: Go Login ID admin UK_Agent_053 137545 UK_Agent_035 137547	Demo Caroline Ashley Audrey Prashant	Admin Allan Andeen Arnold Arora	137722 0K_Agent_031 0000002 0000003 0000004	Daniel Owen Huw Steve Andy	Billsus Bower Bristow Gardner Harper	

Figure 14: Viewing users with a specific role

Additional users can be assigned to the selected Role by selecting the user(s), right clicking on the individual in the user selection window and then selecting **Add selected user(s)**. Once the user has been assigned they will appear in the **Users in role** window.

Users in role Manager					
Search Hierarchy					
Search for user: Go			Login ID	First Name	Last Name
Login ID	First Name	Last Name	137727	Daniel	Billsus
admin	Demo	Admin	UK_Agent_031	Owen	Bower
UK_Agent_053	Caroline	Add selected user(s)	0000002	Huw	Bristow
137545	Ashley	ind user in hierarchy	0000003	Steve	Gardner
UK_Agent_035	Audrey	Arnold			
137547	Prashant	Arora	0000004	Andy	Harper
137567	Pierre	Baldi	137618	John	King
			00000005	Rob	Mason
137569	Juancho	Banaag	5007	1001	

Figure 15: Assigning additional users to a role

There is also a search utility to quickly select the individual rather than manually scrolling to select users.

To use the search utility, select **Search**, enter the First Name, Last Name, or LoginID of the individual to be selected in the search box, and then click on **Go**.

Users in role I	Vanager		
Search Hie	rarchy		
Search for user: Be	Go		
Login ID		First Name	Last Name
UK_Agent_038		Anna	Bell
	► ► Page Size 10	•	Page 1 of 1, items 1 to 1 of 1

Figure 16: Searching for users

A list of matching individuals will then be presented to select from.

There is also the option to search for an individual user in the hierarchy. Right click on the individual in the bottom window and select **Find user in hierarchy**.

Users in role Manager		
Search Hierarchy		
Search for user: Go		
Login ID	First Name	Last Name
admin	Demo	Admin
UK_Agent_053	Caroline	Allan
137545	Ashley	Andeen
UK_Agent_035	Audrey	Arnold
137547	Prashant	Arora
137567	Pie Add selected user(s)	Baldi
137569	Jua Find user in hierarchy	Banaag

Figure 17: Finding a user in the hierarchy

The User name and Position will be visible in the bottom right hand side window, as shown in the following example.



Figure 18: Search results

The roles and widgets page is also used for managing Portal users and their roles. There are four inbuilt Portal roles: Portal Administrator, Portal Manager, Portal Trainer and Portal User. Adding users to these roles will grant them access to the related Portal features. Their position in the hierarchy is also used for Portal Managers to see their Portal Agents.

Note:

- Portal users may only have one Portal role at a time. Users who have been assigned to the Portal Trainer role cannot become Portal Managers and vice versa.
- Users who have the Portal administrator role and any other Portal role will be treated as Portal administrators only.
- Any changes to Locations in Training Manager will be overwritten using the locations setup in Performance DNA.
- Changing a user's role from Portal Trainer to Portal Manager (and vice versa) is not supported. Changing a user's role in this way will result in Performance DNA temporarily displaying that the change has been successful, however, the role change has not been saved.

6.1 Built-In Roles

The system has the following built-in roles:

- Administrator can see all users regardless of where they sit in the hierarchy, and has initial access to many widgets. The "Roles and Widgets" widget and the Tenant Administrator user cannot be removed from the Administrator role.
- **Manager** is a role for managers. If there are any widgets that you wish managers to see, you can add it to this group.
- **Reporting Admin** can see all users regardless of where they sit in the hierarchy.
- **Trainer** is a role for trainers. Users in the trainer role can be configured to appear for selection before an assessment is taken.
- User is a default role for basic users of the system.

The following roles are only available if you have a Training Manager license, and currently provide a fixed list of widgets. Portal Administrators, Trainers and Manager can also create booking requests.

- **Portal Administrator** gives access to various calendars as well as some Portal system administration widgets.
- **Portal Manager** gives access to various calendars, plus allows managers to set their working time.
- **Portal Trainer** gives access to various calendars, plus allows trainers to set their working time.
- **Portal User** allows agents to view their upcoming training/meeting events, and view the training roadmap.

7 Creating Templates Associated to Roles

To create a template for individual Roles you first need to understand which Pages are potentially available for the user to access, and their associated features and functions:

7.1 Pages

The following pages are available:

- **About** Displays the about screen for the application, information such as application version, etc.
- Admin Reports The 3 standard administrator reports installed by default are the following:
 - **User Result Detail** User assessment results, with ability to drill down to question level and the option to export the data.
 - **User Feedback Response Percentages** User feedback response results, reported as the percentage of users who selected specific responses.
 - **Question Response Summary** Overall summary, by assessment, at question or criteria level, or percentage of users who selected specific answers or ratings
- **Branding** Application branding settings, including colour scheme, font size and logo.
- User Field Mapping Control which user fields can be used for filtering DNA data.
- Feedback Deployment Model Feedback model management controls who is able to access a user's feedback assessment, for example, Self & Manager, Self, Manager & Peers etc. A feedback assessment is created using one of the feedback models once it has been assigned to a user and it will automatically assign the assessment to the next user in the model such as manager or peer.
- **Feedback Results Report** Individuals or combination, (e.g. manager and individual/self) ratings by specific/selected criteria.
- **Import Users** Import user details and Hierarchy.
- Manage KPI Data Manage KPI data to be used within DNA and SkillsAnalysis.
- Knowledge Nudge Report –Knowledge Nudges time and usage results when, and how long, a user accessed a knowledge nudge. Knowledge nudges are reading material or other information associated with specific assessments. A user may have access to the knowledge nudge prior to taking the assessment.
- **Licensing** Performance DNA license information, including the number of licences and expiry date.
- **Assessments** Create, modify, import, export and assign assessments.
- **Certificates** Create certificates to associate with assessments.

- **DNA Sequencer** Create and edit DNA Strands / Sequences (combinations of measurable metrics within a job role), representing Job Roles and/or components of those roles.
- **Base Data Definitions** Create and manage DNA Base Data (KPIs and assessment scores that are part of a DNA Strand).
- **Groups** Groups of users that are assigned specific assessments.
- Roles and Widgets Define permissions and system feature/function access for users.
- **System Settings** Create user fields and field mappings (including login field) for all users.
- Users & Hierarchy Organisational structure and user data. The hierarchy defines used to define the structure within the organization e.g. positions and associated users. The hierarchy defines reporting visibility, i.e. which users are able to see which other users in reports.
- My Development Employee visibility and access to any assigned assessments.
- **Reset Tests** Reset User Tests.
- **Skills Analysis** –Correlation analysis of KPI data and assessment results used to identify the skills that are driving performance.
- **SkillsRoute** Updates employee skills and associated skills data in Genesys via excel spreadsheet file transfer.
- **Top DNA Agents** View employee performance rankings and compare employee performance across an organisation or at other levels as selected/desired.
- **Update Routing Skills** Link routing Skills to DNA, to allow updating of Skill data from Performance DNA to Genesys.
- **User Results Report** User assessment results at individual or manager level, for individual, team, group, site or other filtered criteria. Note: Non-managers can only view their own user results.
- View Filtered DNA View DNA across your organisation, filtered in various ways.
- My Certificates View and print individual completed certificates.
- My DNA Mapping Show the DNA mappings for the selected user.
- Messaging Log Show logs produced by the Performance DNA Email Notification Service
- Trend Graph Show changes in individual/team DNA data over selected date range.
- Change Password Change password
- Learning Items Create and edit Learning items
- Manage Import templates Manage the list of import templates used for importing KPI data

- **Manage Knowledge Nudges** Create and manage Knowledge Nudges. Knowledge Nudges are reading material or other information associated with specific assessments. A user may have access to the Knowledge Nudge prior to taking the assessment.
- Manage Reports Upload, edit and delete Crystal reports
- Report Categories Manage Crystal report categories
- **User Selections** Manage DNA User Selections that can be used in other pages, e.g. The Trend Graph
- View Reports View Crystal reports

Portal widgets may also be available if you have applied a Portal licence.

Once you have identified which pages are required to be accessed for which role, they can then be associated to that role.

To associate pages to a role, first select the role from the **List of roles** and then click on the **Widgets** tab in the selection box (Widgets are the Page names).

List of roles							
Widget User Count Count							
	ter						
Administrator	46 1						
Manager	28 8						
Trainer	44 0						
User	6 66						
Users in role User							
Search Hierarchy							
	0		Login ID		First Name	Last Name	
Login ID	First Name	Last Name	admin		Demo	Admin	
admin	Demo	Admin	UK_Agent_053		Caroline	Allan	
UK_Agent_053	Caroline	Allan	137545		Ashley	Andeen	
137545	Ashley	Andeen	UK_Agent_035		Audrey	Amold	
UK_Agent_035	Audrey	Arnold	137547		Prachant	Arora	
137547	Prashant	Arora	137567		Pierre	Baldi	
137567	Pierre	Baldi	137569		Juancho	Banaag	
137569	Juancho	Banaag	5032		First	Base	
5032	First	Base	137626		Stephen	Bay	
137626	Stephen	Bay	UK_Agent_038		Anna	Bell	
UK_Agent_038	Anna	Bell		5 6 7 • • Page Size 1			Page 1 of 7, items 1 to 10 of 66
• • 1 2 3 4 5	6 7 • • Page Size 10 •	Page 1 of 7, items 1 to 10 of 66		a a / e a rage sca	• •		Page 1 of 7, items 1 to 10 of 66
Widgets in role User							
Search for: Go							
Widget Name	Description		Widget Name	Description			
About	Display the about screen for this application		Change Password	Change your password			
Admin Reports	View reports on users across the entire organisation		My Certificates	View and print your completed certifica	tes		
Blocks	Create and edit DNA blocks, representing Job Roles or components of those roles.		My Development	View your progress through the assess	nents that have been assigned to you, and take any that are	outstanding	
Branding	Change various branding options		My DNA Mapping	Show the DNA field mappings for the cu	irrent user		
Celculated DNA Components	Create and manage calculated DNA components		PDR	View and update your Personal Develop	ment Records		
Certificates	Create certificates to attach to assessments		User Results Report	Report on individual or team scores for	your subordinates		

Figure 19: Associating a widget with a role

Right click on the required widget and select **Add to role**.

Users can create their own tabs and associate the widgets, or create pre-defined templates by role (see next section).

Widgets in role User				
Search for:	Go			
Widget Name	Description	Widget Name	Description	
About	Display the Add to role Pation	Change Password	Change your password	
Admin Reports	View reports on users across the entire organisation	My Certificates	View and print your completed certificates	
Blocks	Create and edit DNA blocks, representing Job Roles or components of those roles.	My Development	View your progress through the assessments that have been assigned to you, and take any that are	
Branding	Change various branding options	,	outstanding	
Calculated DNA		My DNA Mapping	Show the DNA field mappings for the current user	
Components	Create and manage calculated DNA components	PDR	View and update your Personal Development Records	
Certificates	Create certificates to attach to assessments	User Results	Report on individual or team scores for your subordinates	
Change Password	Change your password	Report	,	

Figure 20: Creating tabs and associating widgets

It is possible to set the default page for individual roles by selecting a role and then choosing one of the available widgets for the role from the **Default widget for role** section located at the bottom of the **Roles & Widgets** page. The default widget will be the page or feature that opens automatically when the user logs in to the system.

Default widget for role Manager					
Certificates	Change Password	DNA Cube	Feedback Results Report	Groups	Knowledge Nudge Report
Learning Items	Manage Assessments	My Certificates	My Development	My DNA Mapping	PDR
PDR Dashboard	Report Categories	Reset Tests	Skills Analysis	Top DNA Agents	Trend Graph
User Progress Graph	User Results Report	User Selections	View Filtered DNA	View Reports	

Figure 21: Setting the default widget for a role

8 Create New Roles

To create a new Role, right click on an existing role and select **New Role**. There is also the option to **Rename** the role or **Remove the Role**.

Once the new Role has been created, users and widgets can then be associated and a template containing the pages can be created.

Note: Trainers must be assigned to the trainer role so that they are listed in the assessment trainer selection screen.



Figure 22: Managing roles

9 System Settings

The **User Fields**, **Field Mappings** and customized **Widgets** are found on the **System Settings** page.

9.1 User Fields

The user fields are the fields which contain the mandatory Login ID, Last Name & First Name along with any other required or desired user information that can be used for filtering and viewing report and DNA data.

The LoginID (or whichever user field is being used for authentication) must be unique to the user.

Additional user fields can be added by entering the desired field name and clicking the '+' icon.

The order in which the user fields are displayed can be changed by using the up or down icons at the side of the specific user field.

If you wish to manage Training Manager/Portal users via Performance DNA, create a Portal Employee ID and Portal Username user field to support Performance DNA-Training Manager user mapping and specify this mapping in the General Settings tab (by specifying the appropriate field for the Portal Employee ID Field, Portal Username Field and Locations field options).



Figure 23: Adding additional user fields

9.2 Authentication

The Authentication section contains configuration options relating to **Field Mappings** and **SAML Authentication**.

9.2.1 Field Mappings

Field Mappings are used to select which user field should be used to verify individual users when they log on to the system. In the example below, users will be required to provide their Login ID and their password to log in.

Select system authentication options.		
Optimizer	Login ID	•
Apply Changes		

Figure 24: User login credentials

9.2.2 SAML Authentication

The **SAML Authentication** section allows the configuration of identity providers with Skills Management acting as a service provider. Skills Management supports service provider-initiated login for the top enabled IDP and IDP-initiated login for all enabled IDPs.

9.3 Widgets

The Widgets tab allows for external widgets (pages) to be accessed through Performance DNA. Enter the required information and the relevant URL to be able to access them.

User Fields Authentication Widgets 0	General Settings Event Settings
Widget Name Description	URL

Figure 25: Widgets tab and external widgets

9.4 General Settings

9.4.1 Genesys Settings

If you wish to enable GIS integration, tick the **Enable GIS** option. After checking this option, the following additional configuration fields will be available:

Username – The username to use when authenticating against GIS.

Password – The passsword to use when authenticating against GIS.

Proxy app name – The proxy application name.

GIS Host – The host name of the GIS instance.

GIS Port – The port on which the GIS instance is accessible.

GIS Tenant – The name of the GIS Tenant with which to integrate.

Enable GIS	
Username	default
Password	Leave blank to preserve existing passworc
Confirm Password	Leave blank to preserve existing passworc
Proxy app name	default
Proxy app name GIS Host	default demosrv.genesyslab.com

Figure 26: Genesys Settings

9.4.2 Proxy Settings

The proxy settings configure the proxy server to use when integrating with other systems. The use of a proxy can be enabled on a per-integration basis.

Proxy Server – The full URL of the proxy server, including port number. For example, *http://lmsproxy.domain.com:1234* or *https://192.168.123.45:7890*

Proxy User Name – The user name to use for the proxy if authentication is required.

Proxy Password – The password to use for the proxy if authentication is required.

Proxy Server		
Proxy User Name		
New Proxy Password	Leave blank to preserve existing password	
Confirm new Proxy Password	Leave blank to preserve existing password	

Figure 27: Proxy Settings

9.4.3 Learning Management System Integration

If you wish to enable LMS integration, tick the **LMS Integration enabled** option. After checking this option, the following additional configuration fields will be available:

LMS Type – Select the required Learning Management System from the dropdown list.

LMS Proxy Enabled – Whether to use the configured proxy settings for connecting to the LMS.

LMS Url – Enter the full Url, including http:// or https://, of the LMS.

LMS Employee ID – for Moodle / ScaffoldLMS based solutions enter the Webservice Token.

LMS UserID Field – Select the Performance DNA user field that contains the User's LMS UserID.

Test LMS Settings – Click the test button to validate the LMS settings and connection.

LMS Integration Enabled			
LMS Type	Jzero ~		
LMS Proxy Enabled			
LMS Url	http://localhost/MockJLMS/jzeroskillsasse	ess/assessm	ent.asm)
LMS Employee ID	admin		
LMS UserID Field	Login	~	
TEST LMS SETTINGS			

Figure 28: LMS Settings

9.4.4 Exchange Settings

If you wish to enable Exchange integration (including Exchange Rooms), tick the **Exchange Integration enabled** option. After checking this option, the following additional configuration fields will be available:

Exchange Proxy Enabled – Whether to use the configured proxy settings for connecting to Exchange.

Exchange Access Username – The username of the account used to access Exchange.

Exchange Access Password – The password of the account used to access Exchange.

Discover Exchange WS URL – This button will attempt to autodiscover the URL of the Exchange Web Service.

Exchange Web Service URL – The URL of the Exchange Web Service. This can be manually entered if autodiscovery fails.

Test Exchange Settings – Validates the Exchange settings and connection.





9.4.5 Email Settings

Message Manager on Assessment Completion – Whether to message a user's manager when that user completes an Assessment.

Email Field – The User Field containing a user's email address.

From Address for Event Emails – The from email address that appears on event emails.

Sender Name for Event Emails – The sender name that appears on event emails.

SMTP Server – The SMTP Server name from which event emails are sent.

SMTP Port – The port over which the SMTP server is accessed.

Enable TLS for SMTP – Enables Transport Layer Security when accessing the SMTP server.

Use SMTP Default Credentials – If this is enabled then default credentials will be used to connect to the SMTP server. Otherwise the username and password must be provided.

SMTP Username – The username to use when accessing the SMTP server.

SMTP Password – The password to use when accessing the SMTP server.

Use Default Organiser – If this is enabled then the default organiser will be used for event emails.

9.4.6 Other Settings

The following additional settings are configured in the **General Settings** tab:

Analysis min data points - Enables the exclusion of low volume data points presented in SkillsAnalysis.

Correlation Period (Days) – The number of days' worth of data either side of a learning item being taken to use to analyse its impact.

Learning Item Impact Period (Days) – The number of days into the past to search when performing analysis of learning item impact.

Percentage Correlation Threshold for Learning Item Auto-Assignment – The correlation threshold above which learning items will be automatically assigned to users for whom the learning items are recommended based on their data scores.

Automatically assign learning items – Whether to automatically assign learning items when the correlation matches or exceeds the percentage correlation for learning item auto-assignment.

AICC Student ID Field – The User Field used to identify a user in the integrated LMS. Used only when integrating with a third-party LMS (Learning Management System).

AICC Suppress Put Param – Suppressed PUT parameters when communicating with the LMS over AICC.

CSV Extension – Specifies which extension should be used for exporting data to a file.

Pass text / Fail Text – Message that is presented back to the user on completion of an assessment.

Kite Diagram Enabled – Enables a one-off chart that is shown on completion of an assessment.

Assessment Defaults - Note: leave this selected as default.

Combined tests require signing with a password – Requires password input as part of completion of a combined manager/user feedback assessment that requires agreement between the two parties.

User Field for PDR target counts – the user field used to store the number of possible targets for users' PDR.
EWM Enabled – Whether to enable integration with an EWM system. If this is enabled then the other EWM settings are visible.

EWM Proxy Enabled – Whether to use the configured proxy when connecting to EWM.

EWM URL Endpoint - The full URL of the EWM Endpoint.

Performance DNA URL – The URL of the installed Performance DNA application.

Enable Third-Party Authentication – Whether to enable users to log in using custom third-party authentication.

Third-Party Authentication Login Page URL – The login page of the third-party authentication provider.

Third-Party Authentication Logout Page URL – The logout page of the third-party authentication provider.

User Field for Third Party Authentication – The user field to use when mapping users from the third-party system.

Reporting API Identifying User Field – The user field to identify a user when using the Reporting API.

Portal Employee ID Field – The user field that is used to store Portal Employee IDs. This field must be set and all values must be unique to support Performance DNA-Training Manager user integration.

Portal Username Field – The user field that is used to store Portal usernames. This field must be set and all values must be unique to support Performance DNA-Training Manager user integration.

User Location Field – The user field that will hold Portal Manager and Trainer Locations. The locations can be delimited by using the character below.

User Location Delimiter - The single character delimiter used for the locations field.

9.5 Event Settings

The Event Settings tab contains settings and information about different types of configurable events. Events can be enabled/disabled and the interval between the events occurring can be modified in this tab. The events in this tab are described in the following sections.

9.5.1 Learning Items Assignment Email

This option is available in the System Settings page, in the Event Settings tab and sets the frequency for processing notifications of the assignment of learning items. To enable it, tick the Enabled checkbox for the Learning Items Assignment Email item. The 'Interval in Minutes' setting specifies how frequently emails will be processed. Any learning item assignments that occur within the interval period will be combined into a single email per user. Note: This feature requires that certain other settings have been specified; including the email field (specified in the general settings tab) and that users must have valid email addresses specified for this user field.

9.5.2 Assessment Completion Email

This option is available in the System Settings page, in the Event Settings tab and sets the frequency for processing notifications of the completion of assessments. To enable it, tick the Enabled checkbox for the Learning Items Assignment Email item. The 'Interval in Minutes' setting specifies how frequently emails will be processed. For each assessment that is completed within the interval period, an email will be sent to the manager(s) or trainer of the user who has completed the test. Note: This feature requires that certain other settings have been specified; including the email field (specified in the general settings tab) and that users must have valid email addresses specified for this user field. The email is only sent for normal assessments and "self" only assessments. Combined Feedback assessments have a different setting in the system settings screen. "Peer" assessments do not send emails.

9.5.3 Process Queued Booking Requests

This event processes a booking request queued through Skills Portal.

9.5.4 Process Email Queue

The event processes queued emails.

9.5.5 Process Learning Items Queue

This event processes the assignment of queued learning items.

9.5.6 Learning Item Auto Rank

This event generates automatic ranking numbers for links between learning items and user performance data and automatically assigns those which exceed the correlation threshold if learning item auto-assignment is enabled.

For any links that have been created between learning items and user performance data, this event finds instances of users taking the learning item within the impact period before the time of the event running. It then retrieves user data within the correlation period either side of these instances, performs a correlation and then assigns the correlation percentage to the auto rank value of the learning item.

If learning item auto-assignment is enabled, this event then proceeds to find users whose performance data scores for the impact period fall within the assignment ranges of linked learning items and assigns those learning items to matching users.

9.6 HTTPS Support

The services, sites and Training Manager client can be run in either HTTP or HTTPS.

10 Groups

Groups are created for the purpose of managing multiple users who need to take the same assessment(s).

The **Groups** page will contain the names of any existing Groups along with the number of users and assessments associated to them.

New Groups can be created by right clicking on an existing group and selecting **New Group** There is also the option to rename or delete the Group.

GROUPS	
List of groups:	User Assessment Count Count Filter
Right click to make a	New Group
	Rename
	× Delete Group

Figure 30: Managing groups

By clicking on a Group in the left hand window the users and assessments associated to that group are visible in the **Users in Group** window.

ROUPS			
List of groups: User Assessment Count Count	Users Assessments		
Filter Training Group 1 4 3	Users in group Training Group 1 Login ID	First Name	Last Name
	admin	Demo	Admin
	UK_Agent_053	Caroline	Allan
	137545	Ashley	Andeen
	UK_Agent_035	Audrey	Arnold

Figure 31: Viewing a group's users

To add a user to a group, highlight the desired Group, right click on the user and select **Add selected user(s)**. Viewing the user within the hierarchy is available by selecting **Find user in hierarchy**.

GROUPS			
List of groups: User Assessment Count Count Filter Training Group 1 4 3	Users Assessments Users in group Training Group 1	First Name	Last Name
rranning Group 2	Login ID admin	First Name Demo	Last Name Admin
	UK_Agent_053	Caroline	Allan
	137545	Ashley	Andeen
	UK_Agent_035	Audrey	Arnold
	Search Hierarchy		A
	Search for user: Go		
	Login ID	First N Add selected user(s)	t Name
	admin	Demo Find user in hierarchy	nin
	UK_Agent_053	Caroline	Allan

Figure 32: Adding a user to a group

To associate an assessment to the Group, highlight the Group, select the **Assessments** tab and right click on the assessment to select **Add assessment to group**.

GROUPS				
List of groups Filter Training Group 1	User Assessment Count Count r 4 0	Users Assessments Assessment in group Training Group 1 Assessment No records to display. Search for: Go > I Admin Assessment > I Admin Assessment to group > Por Assessments	Available From	Until

Figure 33: Associating assessments with groups

After the assessment has been associated there is the option to give it an available to / from date. This ensures that the users cannot take the assessment before or after a specified date range.

GROUPS			
List of groups: User Assessment Count Count	Users Assessme		
Filter Training Group 1 4 1	Assessment in group T Assessment	raining Group 1 Available From	Until
	Handsets -	(iii) Clear	(lear
	Search for: Admin Assessme	Go	
	 Handsets - ipho PDR Assessment 		

Figure 34: Setting assessment dates

To set the **Available from** and **Until** dates for an assessment, click on the calendar icon. A calendar will be presented, as per the example below. Select the required date and this will then automatically constrain the availability of the assessment. If a date is entered in the **Until** column against the assessment, then this will be visible in the users **My Development** window. If a date is entered in the **Available from** then the user will not be able to launch the assessment and will receive a message accordingly.

Image: Clear Image: Clear n As M T W T F S S Asse: As 26 27 28 29 30 31 1 Asse: As 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 46 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 47 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 48 23 24 25 26 27 28 29	essment			Ava	ilable	From		
n As 5215 44 26 27 28 29 30 31 1 Assestaf 46 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 47 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 48 23 24 25 26 27 28 29	idsets -							É CI
11 AS 11 AS 11 AS Sets 44 26 27 28 29 30 31 1 ASSE145 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 46 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 47 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 48 23 24 25 26 27 28 29		•	,	Nove	ember	2015		• •
Assertas 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 46 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 47 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 48 23 24 25 26 27 28 29	Admin As		М	τv	v	Т	F	S S
46 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 47 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 48 23 24 25 26 27 28 29	Handsets 44	26	27	28	29	30	31	1
47 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 48 23 24 25 26 27 28 29	PDR Asset ₄₅	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
48 23 24 25 26 27 28 29	46	9	10	11	12	13	14	15
	47	16	17	18	19	20	21	22
	48	23	24	25	26	27	28	29
49 30 1 2 3 4 5 6			1	23	3	4		6

Figure 35: Setting assessment dates

Upon viewing assessments with assigned completion dates, if an assessment is not yet available (i.e. if it will not be available until a future date), the assessment will be visible but not available, as shown below.

MY DEVELOPMENT		
All All Assignment Types		
🔁 Handsets - iphone		ď
🔁 Admin Assessment		ď
\ll < 1 \rightarrow »	10 • items per page	1-2 of 2 items

Figure 36: View assessment and assigned completion dates

10.1 Assigning Users into Groups based on Hierarchy

Users can also be assigned to a Group(s) based on their position(s) in the hierarchy.

Highlight the desired Group and then select the '**Hierarchy**' tab. After selecting the user to assign, right click and select either **Add user(s) in this position** – which will only add the selected user

Or

Add user(s) in all sub-positions which will add all of the subordinates underneath the initial user, into the selected Group.

st of groups: User Assessment Count Count	Users Assessme	ints		
Filter	Users in group Group 2			
roup 2 21 0	Login ID	First Name	Last Name	
ing Group 1 4 1	5032	First	Base	
	6000	Lorenzo	Bratzo	
	5030	Josiah	Broadwing	
	6001	Roger	Caravan	
	5034	Donna	Day	
	Search Hierarch	iy .		
	 Organisation 			
	Demo Inc			
	Amanda Westwood	(+1 other)		
	Head of Oper	rations		
	Huwe	user(s) in this position		
	v	user(s) in all subpositions		

Figure 37: Assigning users to groups based on hierarchy

11 Rules-Based Assignments

Performance DNA allows the creation of rules for easy assignment of users to groups, roles and job roles based on their data. The rules page initially displays a grid of existing rules with options to create new rules or to edit existing rules.

Rule Name	All Editors From	🛱 To 🛱 All	•	
UPDATE RULE PRECEDEN	ICE			
+ NEW RULE				
Rule Name	Last Edited By	Last Edit	Published	
Dna Rule 1	Tenant Admin	30/10/2015 11:34:12	Yes	1
Dna Rule 2	Tenant Admin	30/10/2015 11:34:04	Yes	
Dna Rule 3	Tenant Admin	30/10/2015 10:12:33	Yes	1
New Rule 1	Tenant Admin	30/10/2015 10:10:45	No	
New Rule 2	Tenant Admin	30/10/2015 11:22:34	No	🖉 🗙
New Rule 3	Tenant Admin	30/10/2015 10:11:03	No	
New Rule 4	Tenant Admin	30/10/2015 10:11:14	No	🖌 🗡
Published Rule	Tenant Admin	28/10/2015 09:56:59	Yes	2
Published Rule 2	Tenant Admin	27/10/2015 16:54:42	Yes	/
Deleted Rule	Tenant-Admin	29/10/2015 13:35:15	No	0

Figure 38: Rules Grid

Name	New Rule 2
Rule logic	+ × - (+ First Name + Equal to + John -) +
	+ × AND • - (+ Last Name • Equal to • Smith -) +
	+

11.1 Rule Logic

Figure 39: Rule logic editor

Each rule must be given a unique name for clarity.

A rule is constructed by stringing together a series of logical clauses, each of which applies to a single User Field. Clauses can be added, removed and grouped using brackets.

11.2 Assignments

Assign to	Type to filte	r			
Roles		Groups		Strand	
Administrator	Â	Administration	*	Agent Performance	^
Manager		Development		Quarterly Sales Assessment	
Portal Administrator				Capability	
Portal Manager	-	✓ Support	-	Ethical Selling	-
11.3 Workflow		Figure 40: Rule assignment selection	1		
PUBLISH		SAVE		REVERT	CANCEL
		Figure 41: Workflow actions			

Rules can be set to assign users to Roles, Groups and DNA Strands.

For a rule to take effect, it must be published. When a rule is published it will be evaluated and its assignments applied to matching users. A rule may be modified without affecting users until it is published or re-published.

Unpublished rules may be renamed and/or deleted via the rules grid.

12 Manage Assessments

Assessments are created and managed in the Assessment page.

After selecting the Assessments page, the Manage Assessments window will be presented as per the example below.

There are four functions available:

- 1. Design create and design/edit the assessment
- 2. Assign manually assign assessment
- 3. Reports print an assessment
- 4. Import/Export import pre-existing assessments, export an assessment to share or for use

MANAGE ASSESSMENTS								
Design Create Assessment Bedge Accessment		sible to filter by when essment was created.	Date To	ŧ	Se	arch Term	Search	
Assign	Assessment Name	It is possible to filte	r Assessments ba	sed on	Owner	Assessment code	Date created	Feedback only?
Assign Assessment	Admin Assessment	who created the As		ł	Demo Admin	Admin1	11/11/2015 15:46	No
Reports View Printable Version	Baseline	Everyone options a	re avaliable)		Demo Admin	B1	24/11/2015 14:47	No
Import & Export	Follow up Assessment				Demo Admin	F1	07/12/2015 15:48	No
Import Export Export to AICC package		Page Size 10 🗸					Page 1 of 1	l, items 1 to 3 of 3
in an LMS								

Figure 42: The Assessments page

To create a new assessment, click on **Create Assessment**.

12.1 Creating an Assessment

This will present you with the creation template as per the example below.

il. NEW	First Question 🥩 Edit 🖋 Save 🗶 Cancel	
	When creating new Multiple Choice and Pick Correct Qu	iestions, add an initial "Do Not Know" answer.
	💼 NEW	
	No tags added	
	Basic Test Navigation Test Reset Knowledge	Nudge Certificate Reports Learning Item Settings Assessment Branding Settings
	Assessment code	NEW
	Introductory text	No introductory text
	Pass mark (%)	A Y
	Supports Auto Assign?	
	is this a time limited test?	
	Should the user be told that time taken to answer questions is recorded?	
	Type of Assessment	
	These Feedback options cannot be cha	anged if the assessment is currently assigned to Users, either individually, by Group, or the Assessment has ever been taken.
	Is this a Feedback Only assessment?	
	Archival	
	Assessment is archived	

Figure 43: Creating assessments

Rename the assessment by clicking on **New** in the left hand box.

 First Question
 Save
 X
 Cancel

 When creating new Multiple Choice and Pick Correct Questions, add an initial "Do Not Know" answer.

 NEW

 No tags added

 Basic
 Test Navigation
 Test Reset
 Knowledge Nudge
 Certificate
 Reports
 Learning Item Settings
 Assessment Branding Settings

Basic information can now be configured for this assessment by selecting Edit.



12.1.1 Basic Settings

NEW

There are several options that can now be selected and configured:

Automatically insert a **Do Not Know** answer for multiple choice and pick correct answer questions.

Enter matching LMS code in the **Assessment Code** field if the assessment will be exported to an LMS.

Create customized introductory text for the assessment in the **Introductory text** field.

Enter a required overall pass score in the **Pass mark** field.

Automatic Assignment of Assessments

By default, assessments are only available to the users to whom the assessment has been assigned. It is, however, possible to set an assessment to support auto-assignment so that users who receive the URL to the assessment can launch it immediately without it being assigned to them manually. To enable this option, tick the checkbox labelled 'Supports Auto Assign?'. This will result in an Assessment URL appearing under the checkbox. This URL can be sent via email or other means to Performance DNA users. Once they click on this link, the assessment will be automatically assigned to them and they'll be able to start it immediately.

Note: This option does not interfere with users who have already had the assessment manually assigned to them.

If a user clicks on the link and had already has the assessment assigned to them and has completed it, the assessment will have to be manually reset before it can be taken again.

Select **is this test timed?** to make the assessment timed which will then allow you to enter a duration for the assessment.

Tick **is this a Feedback Only assessment?** If the assessment is a feedback-only assessment (will contain only ratings/ranking questions).

Tick **Assessment is archived** to archive an assessment.

	Pass mark (%)	÷
	Supports Auto Assign?	
	Is this a time limited test?	
	Should the user be told that time taken to answer questions is recorded?	
	Type of Assessment	
	These Feedback options cannot be char	ged if the assessment is currently assigned to Users, either individually, by Group, or the Assessment has ever been taken.
\triangleleft	Is this a Feedback Only assessment?	
	Select a deployment type	Self only 🔹
	Archival	
	Assessment is archived	

Figure 45: Feedback only and archive settings

Click on **Save** when you have finished making changes.



12.1.2 Contents

Once the basic information has been selected and saved, create new content by right clicking on the assessment at the left hand side and select **New Content**. There is also the option to copy or link (shortcut) to existing content.



Figure 47: Adding new content to an assessment

The option to configure the minimum and maximum number of questions for the content is then available along with the option of creating custom introductory text and setting the content pass mark. Leaving **Can Copy** selected allows the content of this assessment to be copied or linked to another assessment.

V 💼 NEW	Previous Content Next Content	🜌 Edit 🖋 Save 🕽	Cancel
New Content	When creating new Multiple Ch	oice and Pick Correct Qu	uestions, add an initial "Do Not Know" answer.
	INew Content No tags added		
	Min Amount Of Questions:	0	
	Max Amount Of Questions:	0	
	Introductory text	No introductory text	
	Pass mark (%)	×	
	Can Copy		
	Background Image		
	Attached Learning Items		
	Add		
	1		

Figure 48: Assessment settings

12.1.3 Questions

To create a new question, right click on the Content and hover over the **New Question** option.



Figure 49: Adding questions to assessments

Select the appropriate question type when the **New Question** menu appears.

NEW		
🛄 New Con	tent	
	New Content	
	🗙 Delete Content	
	New Question	Multiple Choice
	Copy/Shortcut	Pick Correct
	Question Bank	Hot Spot
		Simple Text
		Numeric
		Feedback

Figure 50: Setting the type of new questions

All questions (except feedback) have the option to be Critical or Mandatory and also have an option to request additional information.

Critical Questions must be answered correctly for the assessment to pass. If any Critical question is answered incorrectly, the assessment will fail regardless of the percentage scored.

Mandatory questions will always appear in the assessment.

Additional information may be provided with an answer which may allow "working out" or other information related to why someone chose that particular answer to a question.

In the example Multiple Choice question below, a default score of 1.00 will already be associated. There will also be the option to include an external URL along with a description of the URL site. This allows a link to be included in the question text for the user to click on to access. This allows the user to connect to an external page to search for the correct answer.

▼ 💼 NEW	Previous Question Next Question 🥩 Edit 🖋 Save 🗶 Cancel	
Vew Content	Hon creating new Multiple Choice and Pick Correct Questions, add an initial "Do Not Know" answer.	
2 New Multiple Choice Question	No tags added ADD	
	Score 100	
	External URL (e.g. http://www.website.com/Page.html) Insert URL details if	
	Description	
	Multiple Choice Question	
	Only one correct answer can be selected from a list of possible answers. Both an image and audio or video media may be added to this type of question. At least one of the answers must specify a percentage of score of 100%.	Upload Image
	Question Text / HTML	Upload Media
	B Z LL A ▼ EF W Font Name▼ Real font▼	
	New Multiple Choice Question	Edit
		Question
		text
	Z Design G+HTML Q₄ Preview	text
	Show Answers in Random Order	
	Background Image	
	Select	

Figure 51: Adding external URLs to questions

To create a new answer, click on the **Insert New Answer** box.

There is also the option to change the question type between Multiple Choice and Pick Correct Answer.



Enter what % of the overall score	Answer Image Media Image / Media can also be associated to the Answer	
the answer contributes to	- Percentage of Score	
contributes to	$\mathbf{B} I \underline{\mathbf{U}} \mathbf{A} \mathbf{\nabla} \overline{\mathbf{E}} \overline{\mathbf{E}} \overline{\mathbf{E}} \overline{\mathbf{E}} \overline{\mathbf{Font Name}} \text{Real font } \dots \mathbf{\nabla} \mathbf{P}$	
	✓ Design ↔ HTML Q Preview	
	V OK Cancel	

Figure 53: Setting question value, additional media and text

The create new answer window will then be presented to enter the answer text.

Image and **Media** files may be embedded into questions. To embed an image, select **Image**. The following window will appear to browse for the desired image. After selecting **Upload Image** the image will appear below **Preview** to confirm that the correct image has been selected. To save the information return to the **Answer** tab to click on OK once the question has been completed.

Note: It is recommended that media files using the .FLV, .MP3 or .MP4 formats are used in Performance DNA. The in-built media player may work with other media formats but these are not supported.



Figure 54: Adding an image to an Answer

▼ 骗 NEW ▼ 🛄 New Content 😰 Question 1	Scroll through previous and next questions or Content	Previous Question Next Question Edit When creating new Multiple Choice and Pic No tags added	Click Edit to edit an
Fig		g between Assessment Questions	existing Question
Previous Question Next Question 2 Edit When creating new Multiple Choice and Pick Cor No tags added ADD		swer.	
Score 1.00	.html)		
Hot Spot Question To set the Hot Spot image, see the area to the r Please be aware that changing or removing the Question Text / HTML B I U A ▼ E = T For New Hot Spot Question			Upload Image Upload Media An image must be uploaded first to create a Hot spot
✓ Design ↔ HTML			Question / Answer

Background Image Select

Figure 56: Preparing a hot spot image question

Hot Spot Questions

Follow the instructions to define the hot spot answer area.

Optimizer - Edit Hotspot Answ Click Define Define Hotspot Area... Click the 'Define Hotspot Area...' button to nominate where the correct answer region is. HotSpot Area... Top Left Coordin te: Bottom Right Coordina then click where the top left and bottom right corners of the hotspot will be to define the area.

Percentage of Score Figure 57: Defining a hot spot answer area

*



Figure 58: Defining a hot spot answer area

					lio or video media to this question. remove your list of answers.	*	
B I ∐ A ▼ New Hot Spot Question	EEE	Font Name	Real font▼			Upload	Image
						¥ Remov	
						Upload M	edia
Design HTML	Q Preview						
Background Image Select							
Answer						Percentage of Score	
		Questi	on builder. d however o	Mult	e visible in the iple Hotspots can be 1 answer will be	100	∞X

Figure 59: Display of hot spot answer

Select **Save** to save the completed Question.

Previous Question	Next Question	1	Edit ✔	Save 🗙	Cancel	
Uhen creating n	ew Multiple Choi	ice a	nd Pick Cor	rect Questi	ons, add	an initial "Do Not Know" answer.

Figure 60: Saving completed questions

Simple Text Question

Simple Text Question				
The correct answer has to be entered into the text	pox. Both an image and audio or video media may be added to this type of question.	Upload Image		
Question Text / HTML				
B I ∐ A ▼ ≣ ≣ ≣ Font N	lame _▼ Real font _▼	Upload Media		
New Simple Text Question				
✓ Design ↔ HTML				
ackground Image Select				
Answer	Percentage of Score			
Qu	er entering the estion text, click on ert New Answer			

Figure 61: Creating question text and adding an answer



Figure 62: Adding answers and using wild cards

Wild card characters can be used when defining answer text for a simple text question. For example if a set of words are required to be entered in order, e.g. 'red', 'green', 'blue' the entered answer text should be: "*red*green*blue*" (without quotes). Alternatively, if the exact order of the words is not important, the entered text should follow the format: "*red*,*green*,*blue*" (without quotes). Note: commas in the expression must not be followed by space characters.

Numeric Question

Answer		Enter the minimum and maximum values
Percentage of Score	▲ ▼	the user can enter. If the answers is a single
Numeric Range		value both minimum and maximum should
Minimum	Maximum	be set as the same.
✓ OK Cancel		

Figure 63: Delimiting ranges for numeric questions

Feedback Questions

Note: Feedback questions cannot be combined with any other question types. Different content sections are created to separate feedback and non-feedback questions.

Answer			Percentage of Score	
0			0	1
1			20	<i>1</i>
2			40	R
3			60	
4			80	R
5	Once the Feedback Question has been entered,		100	<i>.</i>
Build Feedback Ratings	then build the Feedback ratings by entering the			
Minimum 0 🗸 Maximum 5 よ Build	minimum and maximum number of the rating required. Click the Build button.			
Save Template				
Feedback Template Name	Save Template Ratings can be saved for future use to the Save Template button.	by clicking		

Figure 64: Delimiting ranges for feedback ratings

After selecting **Build** the number of minimum and maximum ratings will be presented for completion. Clicking on **Build** will present the ratings to be completed. Click on the number at the left hand side to enter the detail.

Answer	
B I \underline{U} A \checkmark \equiv \equiv \equiv Calibri, C \checkmark 16px \checkmark	
3 The number can be deleted and replaced with a preferred phrase	
✓ Design ♦ HTML ♥ Preview	
V OK Cancel	

Figure 65: Adding detail to ratings

Answer		Percentage of Score
Strongly disagree	The ratings are then associated to	20 🧖
Disagree	the question. The ratings can be	40 🧭
Neither agree or disagree	changed and saved if required	60 🧖
Agree		80 🧖
Strongly agree		100 🧖

Figure 66: Display of rating detail and associated question

To edit an existing question, select the question and click on **Edit**.



Figure 67: Editing existing questions

To delete a question right click on the question and then select **Delete Question**.

V III NEW
🔻 💷 New Content
Question 1 X Delete Question New Hot
Figure 68: Deleting questions

To use an existing template for a feedback question, first create a new question and then click on the **Use Template** button after selecting the desired template from the drop down box.

Save Template		
Feedback Template Nam	ne	Save Template
Use Feedback Ratings	Template	
1-5 disagree-agree 🔻	👳 Use Template	🗙 Delete Template

Figure 69: Associating existing templates with feedback questions

Once the assessment has been completed, click on the assessment name to access the additional functionality.

▼ 💼 Assessment 1	First Question 🥔 Edit 🛷 Save 🔀 Cancel									
Questions	B When creating new Multiple Choice and Pick Correct Que	stions, add an initial "Do Not Know" answer.								
Feedback	Assessment 1									
	No tags added									
<	Basic Test Navigation Test Reset Knowledge M	Nudge Certificate Reports Learning Item Settings Assessment Branding Settings								
	Assessment code	NEW								
	Introductory text	No introductory text								
	Pass mark (%)	÷								
	Supports Auto Assign?									
	Is this a time limited test?									
	Should the user be told that time taken to answer questions is recorded?									
	Type of Assessment									
	These Feedback options cannot be chan	ged if the assessment is currently assigned to Users, either individually, by Group, or the Assessment has ever been taken.								
	Is this a Feedback Only assessment?									
	Archival									
	Assessment is archived									

Figure 70: Accessing additional assessment detail and options

12.1.4 Answer Layout

When creating the answers for an assessment, it is possible to align the answers either horizontally or vertically. This can be done by selecting the "Question Layout" option dropdown as show below. This will allow for the format of the answers to be changed depending on the users desired presentation of the answers.



Figure 71: Question Layout Option

Selecting the Vertical option will present the answers in a column.

Answe	er Layout Questions
0	Answer One
0	Answer Two
0	Answer Three
0	Answer Four
	Answer Five
	FINISH

Figure 72: Vertical Answer Alignment

Selecting the Horizontal option will present the answers in a row.

wer Layout C	aconorio				
0	0	0	0	0	
Answer One	Answer Two	Answer Three	Answer Four	Answer Five	
			FIN	SH	

Figure 73: Horizontal Answer Alignment

12.1.5 Test Navigation



Figure 74: Test navigation tab

Click on Edit to access the Test Navigation settings

Define how questions are ordered by selecting one of the following options from the **How are questions ordered?** Dropdown list

- In Order presents the questions in the order that they were created.
- **Random within Content** keeps the content order but randomises the question order within the Content.
- Randomly across Content Questions are presented completely randomly; without clear Conent sections.

Allow users to move ahead or back through the assessment (rather than having to answer the questions in a specific order) by checking the **Can users freely navigate through the test?** box

Allow addition of a website URL that may be helpful in answering the question by including a **Relevant site link**, which can include a **Link description** (User friendly description of the URL).

12.1.6 Test Reset

Basic	Test Navigation	Test Reset	Knowledge Nudge	Certificate	Reports	Learning Item Settings	Assessment Branding Settings
Enable	test auto-reset?		A				
On Fail	ure		s.				
Number of times to auto-reset		100		▲ ▼			

Figure 75: Automatic test reset

Checking **Enable test auto-reset?** will automatically reset the Assessment if the User doesn't achieve the required Pass Mark.

The **On Failure** checkbox is ticked by default. This will result in assessments only resetting if the user fails the test. If the checkbox is unticked, the assessment will reset regardless of whether the test is passed or failed.

Number of times to auto-reset enables you to set the maximum number of resets / retries the User can have before a Manager / Administrator has to reset the Assessment.

12.1.7 Knowledge Nudge

Basic	Test Navigation	Test Reset	Knowledge Nudge	Certificate	Reports	Learning Item Settings	Assessment Branding Se	ttings		
Assigne	ed Nudge							Assigr	n Selected Nudg	create Nudge
Search				Owner			Search Term			
Tag	¥			Me Group by Ta	•			S	earch	
					15			_		
Nudg	je Title							Owner	Nudge Type	Date created
Water	r Supply wiki							Demo Admin	URL	24/11/2015 10:29
Renta	lcar.com							Demo Admin	URL	07/12/2015 15:31
	• 1 • •	Page Size 10							Page 1 of	1, items 1 to 2 of 2

Figure 76: Associating a knowledge nudge URL or PDF

Existing Knowledge Nudges (described in Section **Error! Reference source not found.**) can be embedded into Assessments. Search for the Knowledge Nudge that you want to attach to the assessment, then highlight the Knowledge Nudge and click on Assign Selected Nudge. New Knowledge Nudges can be created from within this tab as well. For further information on Knowledge Nudges, please see Section 13.

12.1.8 Certificates

Basic	Test Navigation	Test Reset	Knowledge Nudge	Certificate	Reports	Learning Item Settings	Assessment Branding Settings
Create	a certificate on test	pass?	iPhor	ne 4 🔻			

Figure 77: Associating a certificate with an assessment

Printable Certificates can be attached to Assessments by selecting the existing certificate from the dropdown list in the Certificates tab.

12.1.9 Reports

Basic	Test Navigation	Test Reset	Knowledge Nudge	Certificate	Reports	Learning Item Settings	Assessment Branding Settings		
Allow t	rainer selection	No tr	ainer selection	T					
Are an	Are answers visible after a test?								
Can managers view answer detail?									
Can users view answer detail?									
Show k	cite diagram on test o	completion							
The Kite Diagram requires at least 3 parts of Content in the Assessment.									

Figure 78: Viewing assessment results and additional options

Options for viewing assessment result reports include the following:

Allow trainer selection – allows users to select specific trainer who can have access to the results at the start of the Assessment.

Are answers visible after a test? – enables users to view the Assessment answers following completion.

Can managers / users view answer details? - manages who can view the given answers.

Show kite diagram on test completion –displays the content scores as a kite diagram (radar chart). Note: For this function to work, the Assessment must have a minimum of 3 Content sections.

12.1.10 Learning Items Settings

Basic	Test Navigation	Test Reset	Knowledge Nudge	Certificate	Reports	Learning Item Settings	Assessment Branding Settings	
Enable I	Learning Items		•					
Assign	ment							
Allow	user to assign sugge	sted learning it	ems 🔍					
Autom	atically assign learn	ing items	۲					
LMS Le	arning Items							
Add LN	AS items to suggest	ed LMS learning						
Add LN	/IS items to assigned	LMS learning						

Figure 79: Assessment Learning Items settings

Options for enabling Learning Items (described in detail in Section Error! Reference source not found.) include the following:

Enable Learning Items - enables Learning Items to be attached to the Assessment

Assignment

Allow users to assign suggested learning items – enables the user to self-select / self-enrol for the Learning Items suggested based on their performance.

Automatically assign learning Items – enables the automatic assignment of Learning Items following an Assessment based on the user's performance.

Basic	Test Navigation	Test Reset	Knowledge Nudge	Certificate	Reports	Learning Item Settings	Assessment Branding Settings	
Font								
Text Co	blour		\bigcirc	,				
Backgr	ound Image		Sele	Rever	t			
Timed	Assessment Text							
							//	
Media	Text							
							h	
Forwar	d-Only Text							
							//	
Time S	pent is Recorded Per	r Question Text						
							1	
Start B	utton Text							
Start B	utton Colour		\bigcirc	,				
Start B	utton Font Colour		\bigcirc	•				
Start B	utton Image		Sele	Rever	t			

12.1.11 Assessment Branding Settings

Figure 80: Assessment Branding Settings

The Assessment Branding Settings allow:

- Standardised fonts and colours to be applied throughout the Assessment.
- Customisation of Assessment instruction text.
- Customisation of navigation buttons.
 - Setting the wording and colours
 - Or select a custom button image to be used.

12.1.12 Question Bank

The question bank allows Assessment designers to quickly search for existing questions and copy/shortcut them into new assessments. This feature is accessible from the context menu after right-clicking on a content section in the assessment designer.



Figure 81: Question Bank

(Question Bank			
	Search in Questions			

The question bank page initially includes a search bar and button. Entering a search term and clicking the search icon will result in a table of search results appearing below the search bar.

Figure 82: Search bar

uestion	Q	
earch results		
Choose	Question Text	Question Type
	New Feedback Question	Ô
	New Hot Spot Question	۲
	New Numeric Question	;≡
	Question 1	0

Figure 83: Search results

The table of results includes checkboxes allowing the selection of questions for copying/shortcutting into the current assessment, question text, and an icon representing the question type. Hovering over the question type icons will enable a text-based description of the question type to appear.

Question Bank		
question	Q	
Search results		
Choose	Question Text	Question Type
	New Feedback Question	Ó
₹ ▲	New Hot Spot Question	۲
	New Numeric Question	i=
	Question 1	0

CREATE COPY CREATE SHORTCUT

Figure 84: Selecting questions to copy/shortcut

Selecting one or more questions from the search results will activate the create copy and create shortcut buttons. Copying a question creates a duplicate of the question, so should be used when changes to the question are required. If no changes are required then shortcut should be used instead. Copy/shortcut follows the following restrictions:

- Content cannot contain both feedback and non-feedback questions.
- Content cannot contain both sub-contents and questions.
- A question can only be shortcutted into content once.
- Non-feedback questions cannot be added to feedback-only assessments.

12.1.13 Associating Learning Items with Assessment Content Sections

Performance DNA supports the ability to associate learning items with assessment content sections along with score ranges for the content sections. Users are either assigned learning items automatically once they've completed an assessment, or may have the option to assign learning items to themselves if their score for the content section is within the range specified for the content-learning item association.

To associate learning items to content sections, open the assessment that you wish to modify and click on the content section in the assessment hierarchy:

🔻 🏭 Assessment 1	Previous Content Next Content	😹 Edit 🖋 Save 🕽	Can cel			
V 🛄 Questions	Given creating new Multiple Ch	olce and Pick Correct Qu	estions, add an initial "Do Not	Know" answer.		
2 Question 1	Questions					
New Hot Spot Question	No tags added					
1 type the word 'right'.						
New Numeric Question	Min Amount Of Questions:	0				
🔻 🛄 Feedback	Max Amount Of Questions:					
1 New Feedback Question	Max Amount Of Questions:	0				
New Content	Introductory text	No introductory text				
	Pass mark (%)	\$				
	Can Copy	2				
	Background Image					
	Attached Learning Items					
	Add					
	Description		Туре		Range	
	No records to display.					
	H • D > H Page	Size 10 🗸				Page 1 of 1, items 0 to 0 of 0

Figure 85: Attaching learning items to a content section

Attach Learning Items			
Type to filter			
Description	Туре	Range	Attach
Admin Assessment	Assessment		
AHT Tips	E-Learning URL		
Assessment 1	Assessment		
Baseline	Assessment		
			_

Click the Add button under Attach Learning Items to open the Attach Learning Items screen.

Figure 86: Searching for learning items

This form lists all available learning items that can be attached to the content section. The search bar at the top can be used to search for specific learning items. To associate learning items, tick the **Attach** checkbox and set a score range for the learning item. Different learning items can have different score ranges so users will be presented with different learning items depending on the score they achieved for that content section. Once you've finished attaching and setting score ranges for the learning items, click the **Attach** button to complete the process.

The attached learning items will then appear in the table under the add button for the related content section.

Note: entering values into the search bar will hide learning items from the display even if they've been attached. This is reflected in the number of selected items counter next to the **Attach** button.

To change the setting of the learning item assignment, i.e. whether users are given the choice to assign learning items to themselves or whether the learning items are automatically assigned, click on the root assessment node in the root hierarchy view. Click on the **Learning Item Settings** tab and click the **Edit** button to enable editing of the Learning Item settings.

Check the **Enable Learning Items** option if you want learning items to be either automatically or manually assigned to users once they complete the assessment. Enable the appropriate radio button in the Assignment section based on your preference.

Note: If you have integrated Performance DNA with a third-party LMS, you will also have an additional set of radio buttons in the assessment's Learning Item Settings tab. These radio buttons are used to control whether learning items are added to the suggested list or the assigned list for users who complete the assessment.

12.2 Printing an Assessment

MANAGE ASSESSMENTS	
Design	Owner
Create Assessment	Me
Design Assessment	Archived assessments only
Assign	Assessment Name
Assign Assessment	Admin Assessment
Reports	
View Printable Version	Assessment 1
Import & Export	Baseline
Import	Follow up Assessment
Export	
Export to AICC package	Page Size 10 V

Figure 87: View Printable Version

To print off a version of the assessment, highlight the assessment first and then click on **View Printable Version.**

12.3 Import / Export

The **Import and Export** options enable the sharing of existing Assessments with other Performance DNA users. The **Export to AICC package** creates an AICC course descriptor that can be used with Learning Management Systems.

Owner
Me
Archived assessments only
Assessment Name
Assessment Name
Admin Assessment
Assessment 1
Baseline

Figure 88: Import/Export options

Note: Exporting assessments will not include the following settings:

Learning Item Settings tab: Enable Learning Items

LMS: Enable this assessment in the LMS

Certificate: Create a certificate on test pass

13 Knowledge Nudges

Knowledge Nudges are simply information that a user must view, and are normally associated with assessments of the same topic/information. Knowledge nudges are created in one of 3 formats:

- A URL that points to a website on the internet or an internal intranet site
- A PDF document
- A Multimedia file (video, audio)

Knowledge Nudges are often used as robust replacements to paper briefings as each user's understanding of the contents can be assessed.

Standard reports available in Performance DNA can also detail the number of times that a user has accessed any Knowledge Nudges and the average and overall duration of each view.

Performance DNA is able to display PDF content. With the use of Microsoft's PowerPoint, Adobe Acrobat or Adobe Captivate, interactive PDF documents can be created to deliver any information to users which can also include video, audio and hyperlinks. Microsoft's PowerPoint, Adobe Acrobat or Adobe Captivate interactive **is not included with Performance DNA and separate licenses are required for these software applications**.

In order for Performance DNA to display PDF content correctly, Adobe Acrobat must be installed on the user's computer. The Adobe Acrobat Reader is freely available from Adobe.

Note: Only one knowledge nudge can be assigned per assessment.

13.1 Creating Knowledge Nudges

To create new Knowledge Nudges, go to the **Knowledge Nudge** page and select **Create Nudge**. Select whether you require your Knowledge Nudge to be a website/external URL, a PDF or a multimedia file by selecting the appropriate option from the **Nudge Type** drop-down list.

The example below shows a website URL of www.myurl.com.

Title	MyURL Knowledge Nudge
Please ente	er tags separated by spaces. New lines will be saved as spaces.
Tags	My-URL
Nudge Type	URL T
Nudge Content	http://www.myurl.com
Archived nu	dges will still be visible to any users to whom they are assigned.
Is Archived?	
Save	Cancel

Figure 89: Creating a URL knowledge nudge

Please note that if the Performance DNA application is running over https, then URL nudges must also be accessed over https.

If you wish to upload a PDF to Performance DNA to be used as your Knowledge Nudge, select the **PDF** (Portable Document Format) option from the **Nudge Type** drop-down list. This will display a **Select** button for you to locate the PDF document on your computer, as shown.

Nudge Type	PDF (Portable Document Format) 🔻					
Nudge Content	KnowledgeNudge.pdf	Select				
Archived nudges w	Archived nudges will still be visible to any users to whom they are assigned.					
Figure 90	Figure 90: Creating a PDF knowledge nudge					

Multimedia knowledge nudges can be created in the same way as PDF knowledge nudges; first select **Multimedia** from the **Nudge Type** drop-down list, then click the **Select** button to choose a multimedia file.

Note: Viewing of multimedia nudges is not supported in Internet Explorer 8.

In order to create some types of interactive multimedia nudges you may require additional software not supplied with Performance DNA such as Microsoft PowerPoint and Adobe Acrobat.

Changes to Knowledge Nudges such as text modification, images, charts and colour schemes are managed within the program that was used to create the original content. For example, if the original content was created using Microsoft PowerPoint, changes can be made as shown in the PowerPoint screenshot below. Additional help on using PowerPoint can be found within its Help Menu.

P 🗟 🤊 • 🗸 📼	AirNewZealand_Nudge - Micro	soft PowerPoint
File Home	Insert Design Transitions Animations Sli	de Show Review View iSpring Free 🔺 😮
Paste J Clipboard B	des Font 🗔 Paragraph	Drawing Editing
• ×	11210110101800016000140001200	er@eters2eter44eters6eters8eters101010121
	cityLINK Airlines Boeing 737 Flight Safety Training	Inflight Safety Emergency Exits
	cityLINK Airlines	\$
	1	×
	Click to add notes	÷
Slide 1 of 3 "Office T	Theme" 😻	🖪 :: 10 🛡 44% 🗢 🔳 🛛 🔂 🔀

Figure 91: Using Microsoft PowerPoint or Adobe Acrobat to create multimedia nudges

In order to make your presentation interactive you will need to add hyperlinks. These hyperlinks will allow the user to navigate around the presentation by clicking in certain areas. To make an element of your PowerPoint presentation a hyperlink, simply right click it and select hyperlink.



Figure 92: Setting presentation elements as hyperlinks

The hyperlink dialogue box will then be displayed similar to that below. Select the "Pages within this document" option and select the page of the PowerPoint presentation that should be displayed on clicking.

Link to:	Text to display: < <selection docum<="" in="" th=""><th>ent>></th><th>ScreenTip</th></selection>	ent>>	ScreenTip
	Select a place in this document:	Slide preview:	
Existing File or Web Page Place in This Document Create New Document E-mail Address	First Slide Last Slide Next Slide Previous Slide Slide Titles 1. Slide 1 2. Slide 2 3. Slide 3 Custom Shows	CMERCENCY EXITS	DK Cancel

Figure 93: Setting hyperlink target

Click OK when you are satisfied with your selection. Repeat this process for each of the hyperlinks within your presentation. If you run your slideshow in PowerPoint you will be able to test all of your hyperlinks. When you are satisfied that everything is in the correct place you will need to save your presentation as a PDF document.

More recent versions of Microsoft PowerPoint have the ability to create the PDF document from within it. In the save as dialogue box select PDF in the **Save As Type** drop down menu and locate where on your computer you wish to save the file.

P Save As		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		×
😋 💬 🗢 📕 🕨 Kno	owledge Nudges	e	-	Search Knowledge Nud 🔎
Organize 🔹 New	<i>i</i> folder			iii 🔹 📀
📴 Microsoft Power) Norkspaces	Po Name	Date modified No items match your search.	Туре	Size
Favorites E Desktop Downloads Dropbox Recent Places	1			
File name:	cityLINK Airlines Flight Safety			•
Save as type:	PDF			•
Authors:	Brian	Tags: Add a tag		Title: PowerPoint Presentation
(Options	 Standard (publishing online and printing) Minimum size (publishing online) 		
lide Folders		Tool	s 🔻	Save Cancel

Figure 94: Saving PowerPoint presentations as PDF documents

A PDF of your presentation will then be created with all hyperlinks included. If you do not intend to use any video or audio within your Knowledge Nudge then it is ready to be included in your assessment as detailed above. If you do wish to add multimedia content then you should open the newly created pdf document within Adobe Acrobat. You will notice that you can navigate around your presentation.

Insert Video Content

Locate a page that you wish to add your multimedia content to then locate your Tools menu in Acrobat. This will display a list of various content types that can be inserted. As shown below.

Citylink nudge.pdf - Adobe Acrobat Pro File Edt Vew Window Help	_O×
pe za yew whow Hep	
	Tools Comment Share
	Pages Content Add Bookmark
INFLIGHT SAFETY VIDEO Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet, consectetur adipiscing elit. Sed cursus risus quis nunc iobortis luctus. Nunc dictum libero a sem scelerisque et porta magna accumsan. Ut scelerisque et ifend arcu. Vestibulum tincidunt, justo nec ultrices publinar, velit nibh malesuada lorem.	Attach a Fie A
	▶ Forms
back	Action Wizard Recognize Text
JdCK	Recognize text Protection
	 Sign & Certify

Figure 95: Adobe Acrobat multimedia content types

Select the Multimedia option and choose Video. This will allow you to select an area of your PDF where you wish to insert your video. A dialogue box will be displayed allowing you to select the location of the video you wish to insert.

	ink nudge.pdf - Adobe Acrobat Pro dt. Vjew. Vjirdov. Help	×		
1	Create + 🛛 🎦 🚍 🖂 🏟 🔗 🐶 🕼 🕼 🕼	R.		
۲	● 2 / 3 1 🖑 ● 🖶 67.6% 🔹 🚔 🔛	Tools Comment Share		
		Recognize Text Protection		
		▶ Sign & Certify		

Figure 96: Inserting a video file into a PDF document

Select the **Show Advanced Options** selection. This will enable you to select how you would like the video to be played to the user. You can choose to have the video play automatically as soon as the page is opened or you can only play the video when the video is clicked by the user.

- Activation Setting	s
Ena <u>b</u> le When:	The page containing the content is visible
<u>D</u> isable When:	The page containing the content is not visible
<u>P</u> layback Style:	Play content on page
<u>W</u> idth:	320 Height: 240 T

Figure 97: Multimedia advanced options

It is also advisable to select that the content should be disabled when the page containing the video content is not visible to the user otherwise the media will continue to play.

When you are happy with your selections select ok and your video will be embedded.

If you navigate away from your page and return you will be able to see your media display in the way you selected above.

Save your PDF document from the File menu of Acrobat. This document is now ready to be attached to an assessment within Performance DNA.

Follow the steps below to assign a Knowledge Nudge to an assessment:

First Question 🜌 Edit 🖌 Save 🗶 Cancel												
When creating new Multiple Choice and Pick Correct Questions, add an initial "Do Not Know" answer.												
📥 Asse	essment 1											
No tags	added ADD											
Basic	Test Navigation	Test Reset	Knowledge Nudge	Certificate	Reports	Learning Item Settings	Assessm	ent Branding S	Settings			
Assig	ned Nudge								ļ	kssign	Selected Nudg	e Create Nudge
	h Type			Owner				Search Term				
Tag	٠			Me	•					Se	arch	
				Group by Ta	∍g							
Nut	dge Title								Owner		Nudge Type	Date created
Wat	ter Supply wiki								Demo A	dmin	URL	24/11/2015 10:29
Ren	talcar.com								Demo A	dmin	URL	07/12/2015 15:31
Myi	JRL Knowledge Nudge								Demo A	idmin	URL	14/12/2015 11:28
F		Page Size 10	•								Page 1 of	1, items 1 to 3 of 3

Figure 98: Selecting a knowledge nudge

- 1. Go to the **Manage Assessments** page
- 2. Select the assessment
- 3. Click the **Design Assessment** link
- 4. Click the **Edit** button at the top of the page
- 5. Click the **Knowledge Nudge** tab
- 6. Select the Knowledge Nudge from the table (it is possible to search for the Knowledge Nudge via tag/title/tag & title options)
- 7. Click the Assign Selected Nudge button.

When a user begins an Assessment, the Knowledge Nudge icon will appear on the first page of the Assessment. Clicking on this item will then launch the associated Knowledge Nudge (URL or PDF).

When a user selects an Assessment, they are advised that there is an attachment to view before accessing the test. The user will not be able to begin the Assessment until they have viewed the Knowledge Nudge



Figure 99: Mandatory pre-assessment attachment
14 Managing Learning Items

Performance DNA supports the creation of a range of learning items which can be associated with DNA components (discussed in further detail in Section Error! Reference source not found.) to assist in improving user performance. Supported learning item types include: Assessment, Knowledge Nudge, E-Learning URL and free text. The JLMS Course learning type may also be available if you have configured the optional LMS integration feature.

Users can create learning items and assign them to DNA components. Once DNA data for users is available, administrators can assign related learning items based on performance. Assigned learning items are added to the users' development plans and are visible in the users' **My Development** page.

14.1 Creating Learning Items

To create a new learning item, go to Learning Items page and click the Create Learning Item link.

Next, specify the **Type** of item that you wish to create.

LEARNING ITEMS			
Design Create Learning Item Edit Learning Item	Learning Items Owned By He		Search Learning Items Q Show additional filters 🗸 Search
Delete/Archive Learning Rem	Learning Item	Туре	Date created
Links to DNA Components	Admin Assessment	Assessments	11/11/2015 15:46
Reports	wiki	Knowledge Nudge	23/11/2015 14:48
View User Development Plans	Learning Item 1	E-Learning URL	23/11/2015 14:50

Figure 100: Learning Items Page

Note: When creating an Assessment or Knowledge Nudge an associated Learning Item is

Optimizer - Learning Item		×
Type Title E-Learning URL Cancel	E-Learning URL	Save

automatically created.



When creating an E-Learning URL, you will be required to enter a title and URL for the new item. The URL must start with either 'http://' or 'https://'. Similarly, if you choose to create a free text learning item, you will be required to enter a title for the item and the associated text.

If you choose to create a new JLMS Course learning item, select the **JLMS Course** option from the **Type** select box. Three additional dropdowns will appear allowing you to select a category,

curriculum and a course. It is necessary to select these items in order, i.e. category first, then curriculum and, finally, a course. However, once you set a category the curriculum select box will become optional.

JLMS learning items are assigned to users in the same way as other learning item types.

Note: the option to create a JLMS course learning item will only be available if the user who is logged in is mapped to a valid JLMS user (via the user field defined for the LMS integration feature). Similarly, JLMS course learning items can only be assigned to valid JLMS users.

14.2 Editing Learning Items

To edit a learning item, browse to the Learning Items page. Select a learning item from the table and click the **Edit Learning Item** link. A dialog box will appear that includes the item's current settings. You can then edit these settings before clicking **Save** to apply the changes.

14.3 Deleting Learning Items

To delete a learning item, browse to the **Learning Items** page. Select a learning item from the table and click the **Delete/Archive Learning Item link**. **Note**: Attempting to delete a learning item that is associated with a DNA component or assigned to users will cause it to be archived, otherwise it will be deleted.

14.4 Filtering View of Learning Items

Performance DNA supports a range of options to filter the display of Learning Items, including restricting the items shown based on the user who created them (i.e. either display all Learning Items or just those created by currently logged in user), constraining by date created range, and choosing whether to include archived Learning Items. It is also possible to search for a specific Learning Item by entering a set of keywords in the **Search Learning Items** text box and clicking the **Search** button.

14.5 Genesys EWM Learning Item Integration

Performance DNA has an integration feature with Genesys WFM which allows learning items to be sent to agents in EWM. To enable this feature, go to the System Settings page in Performance DNA and tick the EWM Enabled tickbox in the General Settings tab. Once this tickbox has been ticked an EWM Url Endpoint textbox will appear underneath it. Set the value of this textbox to the EWM Url Endpoint in your environment and click Save Changes.

EWM Enabled	
EWM Url Endpoint	http://example.com

Figure 102: EWM Integration

Once this setting has been enabled it will be possible to set learning items as EWM Enabled in the Learning Items page. Once a learning item has been enabled for EWM integration it will be sent to

the corresponding Genesys agents in EWM as well as to the agent's account in Performance DNA when it is assigned.

Notes:

This feature requires that Genesys employee IDs match Performance DNA users' Login IDs. To set up the EWM capture points and routing rules required for EWM, please see the EWM documentation.

15 Creating Feedback Assessments

Feedback Assessments are used for providing rating and ranking responses only. They are created the same way as standard assessments, but there are unique settings and constraints which set them apart.

To create a feedback assessment, select 'Is this a Feedback Only Assessment?' The option enables the settings for who will have access to the assessment in the feedback model; e.g. for Self or Self and Manager.

Where the assessment has been created for **Self** and **Manager** the manager will automatically be assigned the assessment to complete on the user that reports to him/her, based on the hierarchy.

If the feedback assessment has been set to 'self and manager,' an additional checkbox (labelled 'Only require user feedback before combined test?') will appear. Enabling this will prevent the manager from seeing the feedback assessment until it has been completed and submitted by the

Type of Assessment	
These Feedback options cannot be chang	ged if the assessment is currently assigned to Users, either individually, by Group, or the Assessment has ever been taken.
Is this a Feedback Only assessment?	2
Select a deployment type	Self and Manager 🔻
Only require user feedback before combined test?	

user. Once the user's feedback is submitted, the manager will get the option to create a combined feedback assessment without completing their own version of the feedback assessment first.

Figure 103: Self and manager feedback assessments

Both the Manager and User will see the Feedback Assessment listed in their My Development page. Managers can use the dropdown filters to display specific Assessment types.

After selecting the **Combined Feedback** filter, the assessment will be presented.

MY DEVELOPMENT			
Q • All	All Assignment Types	•	
Self and Manager (Caroline Allar	n)		ď
\ll < 1 > »		10 • items per page	1-1 of 1 items

Figure 104: Viewing assessments using the 'feedback on other users' tab

16 Email Notification Service

It is possible to set Performance DNA to automatically send an email notification to managers when their subordinates have completed an Assessment. This optional feature is enabled via the **Systems Settings** menu.

16.1 Configuring Email Settings

From the Systems menu select Systems Settings and the General Settings tab.

Email Settings

Message Manager on Assessment Completion	
Email Field	New Email •
From Address for Event Emails	
Sender Name for Event Emails	Event From
SMTP Server	mySMTPserver
SMTP Port	25
Enable TLS For SMTP	
Use SMTP Default Credentials	
SMTP Username	
SMTP Password	Leave blank to preserve existing password
Confirm SMTP Password	Leave blank to preserve existing password
Use Default Organiser	

Figure 105: Viewing Email Settings

Message Manager on Assessment Completion – Check to enable sending Assessment completion emails to the users Manager.

Email Field – From the dropdown box select the User Field that is used to store the email address. This will be used as the recipient's email address.

From Address for the Event Emails – this is the default sender address that will be used when creating email notifications. This would typically be a team or department inbox.

Sender Name for Event Emails – This is the default senders name, typically this would be the Team / Department name of the business area responsible for assigning learning.

SMTP Server – the name / IP address of the outgoing mail server that will be used to send out the notification emails.

SMTP Port – the port assigned to SMPT traffic on the email server.

Enable TLS For SMPT – this should be selected if an encrypted / secure connection to the email server is being used.

Use SMTP Default Credentials – this should be checked if the email server doesn't require specific account details for sending emails. If unchecked the following additional settings are required:

SMTP Username – Username for the account being used for sending email notifications.

SMTP Password – SMTP account password.

Use Default Organiser – When selected all email notifications will be sent from the configured **From Address for the Event Emails** and **Sender Name for Event Emails**. When unselected emails will be sent using the user details of the person organising the training / **Assessment**

16.1.1 Enabling Email Events

After configuring the email settings email notifications can be enabled using the **Event Settings** tab. SYSTEM SETTINGS

User Fields	Authentication	Widgets	General Settings	Event Settings			
Event Name		Enabled	Interval In Minu	tes	Next Run	Last Run	Required Settings
Learning Items Email	s Assignment		15				Optimizer URL , Email Field , From Address for Event Emails , Sender Name for Event Emails
Assessment Co	ompletion Email		15				Email Field , From Address for Event Emails , Sender Name for Event Emails
Process Queue Requests	ed Booking		1				Algorithm Timeout
Process Email (Queue		10				Email Field, From Address for Event Emails, Sender Name for Event Emails, SMTP Server, SMTP Port, Enable TLS For SMTP, Use SMTP Default Credentials, Use Default Organiser

Figure 106: Event Settings

From the **Event Settings** tab check the **Enable** box for each of the different email notifications that you wish to use and set the **Interval in Minutes** column to the frequency that you want emails sending.

17 Assigning Assessments to Individual Users

The option to assign an assessment to an individual is available in the User Detail window. After selecting an individual user, click on **Assign Assessments**.

Optimizer			- 0
OCreate New User	Edit Users Assign Assessr	ments	
Caroline Allan (UK_Agent_053)	Assessment	Available From	Until
	Self and Manager	🗰 Cear	Crear
	Search for: Go		
	Assessment 1		
	▶ 🛻 Baseline		
	 Follow up Assessment Handsets - iphone 		
	PDR Assessment		
	Self and Manager		

Figure 107: Assigning assessments to individual users

The assessments available for assignment are visible to select and assign to the user.

Right Click on the desired assessment and select **Add assessment to user**.

The individually assigned assessment will be visible on the user's **My Development** screen.

MY DEVELOPMENT		
All All Assignment Types		
🗟 Self and Manager		ď
Assessment 1		ď
Handsets - iphone		ď
Admin Assessment		ď
\ll < 1 > »	10 • items per page	1-4 of 4 items

Figure 108: Viewing individually assigned assessments

Optimizer				- @ X
OCreate New User	Edit Users Assign Asses	ments		
Caroline Allan (UK_Agent_053)	Assessment	Available From	Until	
	Self and Manager	Ciear	Clear	
	Search for: Ge dmin Assessment d dd as	ment to user		

Figure 109: Assigning assessments to individual users

18 Date Restrictions on Assessments

The **My Development** page displays the date that an assessment needs to be completed by (providing a date constraint was applied to the assessment and/or individual).



Assessments that have been assigned before the start date will appear at the bottom of the list as inactive. On the day of the start date the Assessment will move up the list and become active and ready for the user to launch.

19 Ability to Reset Multiple User Tests

User Assessments can be reset in the **Reset Tests** page (this page needs to be added to the relevant job roles).

RESET TESTS				
Select a group from the list t selected users.	hen tick one or more asses	ssments. Any users w	ho have tests that can be reset within the	selected date range will appear on the right; select the ones to reset and click the button to reset the selected assessments for the
[No group selection]	Type to filter 1 assessment(s) select	ed for reset	Type to filter	
Group 2	From	То	Select All Des	elect all
Training Group 1	01-Jan-20 🗰	14-Dec-20 🗰	Ashley Andeen [137545]	
	Handsets - iphor	ne	Audrey Amold [UK_Agent_033 Audrey Amold [UK_Agent_033	
Reset selected users				

Figure 111: Resetting user assessments

Assessments can be reset by group or for an individual. The Group names will appear at the left hand side with the option of selecting the group or an individual within the group only.

The second column will then be populated with the titles of any assessments that have been taken. If this list is large you can apply a date filter by entering the date range.

Note: The date range needs to include the dates when the users have taken the assessments.

A free text filter can be used to search for a specific assessments by name. If you change any of the filtering criteria the list of assessments will update automatically.

Select the title of the assessment you wish to reset; multiple assessments can be selected at this stage if required. A third column will then appear showing the names of users who have taken the selected assessment, as shown in the following example:

SET TESTS	en tick one or more	arcaren	ments Any us	ers w	no have tests that can be	reset within the seles
selected users.	Type to filter				Type to filter	
Group 2	1 assessment(s) s From	elected	for reset To		2 user(s) selected for Select All	reset. Deselect a
Training Group 1	01-Jan-20 🕻	D	14-Dec-20		Ashley Andeer	n [137545]
	Handsets -	iphone			Audrey Arnold	[UK_Agent_035]
Reset selected users						

Figure 112: Resetting assessments for specific users

Select the names of any users you wish to reset then click the **Reset Selected Users** button. If there are a number of users shown you can use the filter to search for a particular user.

20 Create Customizable Certificates per Assessment

20.1 Creating Certificates

Go to the Certificates page. Any existing certificates will be visible. To create a new certificate, Click the **click here** text ment.

CERTIFIC	CATES	
Show in a	tive certificates	
Edit	Certificate name	
There are no	o certificates currently defined. Click here to create one.	

Figure 113: Creating new certificates

Enter a meaningfull name for the Certificate in the field provided. It is important that you name your certificate appropriately as you will need to assign this to individual assessments at a later date.

Show inactive certificates					
Edit	Certificate name				
+ ×					
There are	e no certificates currently defined. Click here to create one.				

Figure 114: Setting certificate name

When you have entered the Certificate name, click the plus icon to save the name change.

Show in act	ve certificates
Edit	Certificate name
1	Certificate 1

Figure 115: Saving certificate name

If you wish to rename the Certificate click the 🧭 icon which will enable you to change the

Show inactive certificates					
Edit	Certificate name				
×	Certificate 1				

Certificate name.

Figure 116: Confirming changes to certificate details

Click the 🗹 icon to confirm your changes. If you wish to cancel your changes you can select the 💌 icon.

To design the content within the Certificate, right click on the certificate name and select **Design** from the drop down options. (You will notice that you can also rename existing and create new Certificates from this menu as well.

Show inactive of	Show inactive certificates								
Edit	Certific	ate name							
1	Certifica	ate 1							
		New Certificate							
	_	Rename							
		Design							
		Create a copy							
		Deactivate							

Figure 117: Designing certificate content

After selecting **Design** you will be presented with a blank page containing the **toolbox**.

Toolb	0 Y		
10010	UX .		 1

Figure 118: Designing certificate content

The white area within the grey border represents your certificate page. By clicking on the title bar of the **Toolbox** you can drag this around the screen in order to make it easier to see more of your page.

Items are added to your page by selecting them from the toolbox. Once selected they will be added to the top left hand corner of the screen and can then be dragged and resized into position.

20.2 Adding Text to a certificate

efgh Ijkl Figure 119: Certificate design toolbox

Click the text icon from the toolbox. This is the first icon as shown in the diagram above. Clicking this icon will add a new next box into the top left hand corner of the screen.

Right-click to edit	
	Figure 120: Adding text to a certificate

Right click the text as shown and you will be presented with a menu to edit the item.

m dia da an
Edit item
Delete

Figure 121: Text editing menu

Select **Edit Item** and you will have the ability to edit the text in the box.

Right-click to edit User's Login ID User's Name Assessment Name Toot Popult	
Assessment Name	
Tost Posult	
Z Design ↔ HTML	

Figure 122: Editing certificate text

You can then use the text editing tools as normal such as Bold, Italic and Underline as well as change the font sizes and colours etc.

If you wish to add elements of dynamic text, such as the name of the Assessment or User, this can be selected from the **Insert data field** dropdown box, as per the example above. This will create an area for this information to be included wherever the cursor was positioned within the text box.

Once you are satisfied with your text press the 🖾 icon. This will add your text to the certificate. In most cases you will need to resize the box to accommodate your text. To do this, click on the right hand corner of the text box (the icon will change to a double pointed arrow) and you can drag to resize.

To move your text, place your mouse pointer over the text box, click, and you can drag it around the screen.

Remember to ensure your text box is large enough to accommodate any dynamic text that will be entered such as a user's full name or the name of an assessment.

Use the save icon within the tool box (1st icon) to regularly save your certificate. If any items such as text or images are outside the boundaries of the page these will be brought back into alignment automatically to ensure they fit the page.

You can add multiple text boxes within your certific.

20.3 Adding an image to your certificate



Click the image icon; this is the 2nd icon within the toolbox. Like other content, this will be added to the top left hand corner of your certificate. Right clicking it will open a menu allowing you to replace the image with one of your own or the ability to delete the image.



Figure 123: Replacing and deleting certificate images

Select Replace image.

This will open a dialogue box allowing you to locate an image on your computer to be included as part of the certificate.



Figure 124: Browsing for replacement images

Once you have selected your image click **Save** and the certificate will be updated with the chosen image.

As before this will be in the top right hand corner and can be resized and moved into the appropriate position.

As you progress through the design of your certificate it is recommended that you use the Save icon to save any changes you make to your work. Should any items be placed outside the page size defined for your certificate you will be presented with a warning and the offending elements will be moved to within the page.



If you wish to add additional details of the user results then the third icon as shown will add a graph to your certificate. As with the previous items this will be added to the top left hand corner of the certificate and you can drag and resize this into the required position.

This item has a number of different options that you can select from by right-clicking. For instance, you can choose whether you wish the graph to show the achieved scores, including the required pass mark. By default these will be available and simply select them to toggle whether they are



visible within the certificate. If you wish to delete a chart then right click also provides you with the delete option.

Figure 125: Adding a results graph to a certificate

Once you are satisfied with your certificate ensure that it is saved and then close down the designer window. By default your certificate is now available to be attached to any existing or new assessments.

To remove a certificate, right click on the certificate name and select **deactivate**.

20.4 Assigning your certificate to an assessment

The option to assign a certificates to an assessment is located in the Assessment properties.

🔻 💼 Asse	ssment 1	First Quest	tion 🧟 Edit 🖌	Save 🗙 Ca	ncel				
V 🛄 (Questions	When creating new Multiple Choice and Pick Correct Questions, add an initial "Do Not Know" answer.							
i.	Question 1	Assessment 1							
i i	New Hot Spot Question	No tags added ADD							
j.	type the word 'right'.								
j.	New Numeric Question	Basic	Test Navigation	Test Reset	Knowledge Nudge	Certificate	Reports	Learning Item Settings	Assessment Branding Settings
▼ 🛄	Feedback	Create a certificate on test pass? Certificate 1 •							
i i	New Feedback Question								
E	New Content								



Remember to save any changes you make to the assessment properties. If a certificate has been defined against an assessment it will be loaded automatically for the user to print once they have achieved the required pass mark.

This setting can be changed at any time by selecting a new certificate or the **No Certificate Selected** option. Should an assigned certificate become deactivated, the certificate will no longer be presented to the user upon completion.

20.5 Recalling Awarded Certificates

If a user has achieved the required pass mark, the certificate will be presented automatically upon completion and can be printed, if necessary, as a record of achievement. If a printer is not available or there is only a requirement to store it electronically, it will be saved within the user's **My Certificate** page for viewing at any time.

A list of assessments that the user has successfully completed is visible in the **My Certificate** page. To view a certificate, click on an assessment name and all of the associated certificates will be displayed along with the date and time they were awarded.

 MY CERTIFICATES

 Select an assessment that you have a certificate for, then click the certificate to view/print it.

 Assessments
 Certificates

 Assessment 1
 Certificate 1 - 14/12/2015 15:31:39

 Show certificate
 Show certificate

Click on the certificate to open and prepare it for printing.

Figure 127: Viewing certificates

21 Reports

21.1 Feedback Results Report

The Feedback Results Report displays a comparison of feedback assessment answers. To generate a report, select a date range at the top of the page to filter the list of assessments available for selection, then select a user from the hierarchy and one of the user's feedback assessments from the bottom-left of the screen. Click the 'Rebuild report' button to generate the report.

The resulting graph will display the possible answers for each question with a line showing the answers chosen by the user and their manager (if the assessment has also been taken by the manager).





21.2 Knowledge Nudge Reports

Select the **Knowledge Nudge Report** (location of this report depends on application setup settings; default location is under the **Reports** tab).

Select a user (**Note**: available user information will depend on where the individual is situated in the hierarchy).

In the following example the user has been selected by **selected position only** but users may also be selected in the **hierarchy**.

After selecting an individual, a list of the assessments in which knowledge nudges have been accessed is presented in the bottom left hand window.

KNOWLEDGE NUDGE REPORT							
Report Filters	Start Date	End Date 14-Dec-2015	• The selected position only • Into the hierarchy $1 \stackrel{\bullet}{\downarrow}$ level(s) down	Export			
	Demo Admin (+1 other)) Derations (Huw Bristow)			The report needs to be rebuilt to reflect your s Rebuild report	elections		
Select All							
 wiki demo.com ✓ MyURL Know 	vledge Nudge						

Figure 129: Knowledge nudge report

Click on **Rebuild Report**.

The information is then available to view and there are several options to select from.



Figure 130: Nudge report information and options

21.3 Assessment Report

Select **User Results Reports** from the **Reporting** section to view Assessment results. Based on the user's position within the hierarchy, the **User Results Report** can be run for a whole site, department, team or individual.

USER RESULTS	REPORT		
Report filters:	Start Date 14-Nov-2015 End Date 14-Dec-2015	 The selected position only ○ Into the hierarchy 1 ↓ Veve(s) down 	Export
Demo Inc (Demo Adm Head of Operation		The report needs to be rebuilt to reflect your selections Rebuild report Rebuild report	
 ✓ Select All ✓ Assessment 1 (1) 			

Figure 131: Viewing assessment reports by individual or team

- Select required date range.
- From the hierarchy view select the hierarchy level or individual.

- Select the assessments from the bottom left hand window. These are all of the assessments that the individual has completed.
- Click on **Rebuild report** to view the results.

The results can be expanded by clicking on the Assessment name to reveal the Content level results. Click on the Content name to view the individual questions as per the example below.

USER RESULTS				
Report filters:	Start Date 14-Nov-2015 End Date 14-Dec-2015		The selected position only Into the hierarchy 1 ↓ level(s) down	Export
 Demo Inc (Demo Adr Head of Operation 		 ✓ Assessment 1 ✓ Questions 	100% 100% 000% 000% 000% 000%	
Select All		type the word 'right'. Question 1 New Hot Spot Question	100.00% 100.00% 100.00%	
🗹 Assessment 1 (1)		New Numeric Question Feedback		
		New Content	0.00 m	

Figure 132: Detailed assessment results

Right-click on a question to View Detail about a question.

Click on **View Detail** to reveal the answer given and the correct answer. Where a team has been selected, (x levels into the hierarchy) it will list all of the team members with their respective answers.

(>	×
Question Type -	Multiple Choice Question		Result	_
Question	Question 1			
Correct Answer	Answer 1			
Demo Admin	Answer 1	٩	All Right 100.00% (1)	

Figure 133: Viewing question detail and provided answers

Click on the **select for export** button and then click on **Export** to export the data into an Excel spreadsheet.

 The selected position only ○ Into the hierarchy 1 ↓ level(s) down 								
Target: 8%								10
	50.00%	-						
	50.00%							
0.00%								
			1	00.00%				
			1	00.00%				
0.00%								
	60.	00%			-			
ali 0.00%								

Figure 134: Exporting assessment details

Click on the disk icon to select the level of data that you want to export. After selecting your required level of data aggregation click on the Export button to download the data as a CSV file.

21.4 Feedback Report

Users can be selected at a hierarchy level or individually within the hierarchy structure.

Using the date range will filter the feedback assessments that the individual has completed in the bottom left hand window. Select the specific assessment and click on **Rebuild report**.

FEEDBACK RESULTS	REPORT			
Report Filters	Start Date 14-Nov-2015 End Date 16-Dec-2015	an M		Export
Demo Inc (Demo Admini-Lather) Head of Operations (Huw Bris)			The report needs to be rebuilt to reflect your selections Rebuild report	
* Huw Bristow				

Figure 135: Rebuilding feedback reports

The information presented will display the user feedback together with the manager feedback depending on whether the assessment has been created as user and manager and if the manager has completed their feedback assessment.

Report Filters Start Date 22-Nov-2015 III End Date 24-Dec-2015 III Export	BACK RESULTS REPORT		
End Date 24-Dec-2015 III			
end base _24-Dec-2015 IBD	Filters Start Date 22-Nov-20		
 Colored Could Association of the second se Second second seco	End Date 24-Dec-201	5 🕅	rt
Sales and service Agent, (ke) vaga: → Sale (1) → Manager (1)	Sales and Service Agent (Kelly Vargas)	eff (1) 🔸 Manager (1)	
► Sales and Service Agent (May Miles)	 Sales and Service Agent (Mary Miler) 		
Sales and Service Agent (Josin Wator) Morrhoperformance?	Sales and Service Agent (Josiah Watton)	How would you rate your performance this	
Sales and Service Agent (Lorenz Sraze) Received this month?	 Sales and Service Agent (Lorenzo Brazzo) 	How would you rate the coaching you have	
Sales and Service Agent. (Hound Joncon) Do you teel that the business has fully supported you in achieving your goals this	 Sales and Service Agent (Howard Johnson) 	Do you feel that the business has fully supported you in achieving your pools this	
► Sales and Service Agent (Introduce)	 Sales and Service Agent (Knrk Sawyer) 	monthing you grant and you want the second s	
Sales and Service Agent. Roge Carean Who you recommend working here to a fired?	Sales and Service Agent (Roger Carevan)	to you recommend working here to a friend?	

Figure 136: Feedback Results

The information is also available for exporting to an Excel spreadsheet by selecting **Export**. The Excel spreadsheet will contain the criteria used in the assessment.

21.5 Admin Reports

To access the Admin Reports select the Admin Reports page and a window similar to the one below will be visible.

There are 3 Admin Reports:

User Result Detail User Feedback Response Percentages Question Response Summary Reports can be generated without any filters, therefore presenting all of the associated detail.

21.6 User Result Detail

Select the **User Result Detail** report from the drop down box at bottom of the Admin Reports screen.

Next, click on **Create Report**.

ADMIN REPORTS	
Filters:	
User Filters:	
Add Remove	
Test Result Filters:	
Add Remove	
Save Filters Load Filters	_
User Result Detail Create report	

Figure 137: User result detail report

The report will then appear at the top of the page next to the Filters tab.

ADMIN REPORTS			
Filter(User Result Detail			
User Filters:			
Add Remove			
Test Result Filters:			
Add Remove			
Save Filters Load Filters			
User Result Detail Crea	ate report		

Figure 138: User result detail report

The option to select a specific assessment from the available assessments is visible after selecting

ADMIN REPORTS								
Filters: User Result Detail 🔺								
Filters applied to this report								
User Filters:	Test Result Filters:							
No filter was applied.	No filter was applied.							
Select an assessment from the list to see the report: Select an assessment •								

the report.

Figure 139: Selecting an assessment for the report

The data can then be expanded to Content and Question level with the option to Export into Excel. Click on the relevant buttons to expand the data.

DMIN RE	PORTS	_						
Filters: Use	r Result Detail 🛛 🛛							
Filters applie	ed to this report							
User Filters: No filter was applied.								
Select an assessment from the list to see the report: Baseline								
Show/Hide A	l User Details A	ssessment Cont	ent Question Du	ration Export				
Login ID	First Name	Last Name	Date Completed	Total Duration	Overall Result			
Average (20	users):			00:00:06	58.15%			
5032	First	Base	24-Nov-2015 15:25	00:00:09	25.00%			
6000	Lorenzo	Bratzo	24-Nov-2015 15:31	00:00:06	74.00%			
5030	Josiah	Broadwing	24-Nov-2015 15:24	00:00:07	100.00%			
6001	Roger	Caravan	24-Nov-2015 15:32	00:00:06	25.00%			
5034	Donna	Day	24-Nov-2015 15:26	00:00:05	25.00%			
6002	Kalyani	Doe	24-Nov-2015 15:32	00:00:06	49.00%			

Figure 140: Expanding report detail

Clicking the 'Duration' button will show how long each user spent on each question in the assessment, as well as the total duration spent per content section.

DMIN RE	PORTS												
Filters: User	Result Detail 🙎												
Filters applie	d to this report												
User Filters: No filter was applied.							Test Result Fi No filter was a						
			ert: Handsets - lphor tent Question Du										
Login ID	First Name	Last Name	Date Completed	Total Duration	Overall Result	Hardware	Content Duration	Operating System	Content Duration	iphone 4 Contracts	Content Duration	Features	Conter Duratio
Question out	of:												
Average (14 i	users):			00:01:47	87.74%		00:00:00		00:00:00	67.86%	00:00:00	92.88%	00:00:
137545	Ashley	Andeen	01-Apr-2014 10:00	00:01:04	76.13%	66.67%	00:00:00	87.50%	00:00:00	50.00%	00:00:00	91.75%	00:00:0
UK_Agent_035	Audrey	Arnold	01-Apr-2014 10:00	00:01:41	100.00%	100.00%	00:00:00	100.00%	00:00:00	100.00%	00:00:00	100.00%	00:00:
137547	Prashant	Arora	01-Apr-2014 10:00	00:01:04	80.00%		00:00:00		00:00:00		00:00:00	100.00%	00:00:
137626	Stephen	Bay	01-Apr-2014 10:00	00:01:01	91.13%		00:00:00		00:00:00		00:00:00	91.75%	00:00:
UK_Agent_038	Anna	Bell	01-Apr-2014 10:00	00:05:11	98.33%	100.00%	00:00:00	87.50%	00:00:00	100.00%	00:00:00	100.00%	00:00:
6002	Kalyani	Doe	01-Apr-2014 10:00	00:01:17	85.00%	100.00%	00:00:00	87.50%	00:00:00	100.00%	00:00:00	75.00%	00:00:
UK_Agent_052	Deirdre	Gibson	01-Apr-2014 10:00	00:01:37	86.67%	100.00%	00:00:00	100.00%	00:00:00	50.00%	00:00:00	100.00%	00:00:
5050	Howard	Johnson	01-Apr-2014 10:00	00:01:08	100.00%	100.00%	00:00:00	100.00%	00:00:00	100.00%	00:00:00	100.00%	00:00:
137577	Jon	Kleinsmith	01-Apr-2014 10:00	00:00:57	86.67%	100.00%	00:00:00	100.00%	00:00:00	50.00%	00:00:00	100.00%	00:00:
137741	Sharad	Mehrotra	01-Apr-2014 10:00	00:01:19	78.33%	83.33%	00:00:00	87.50%	00:00:00	0.00%	00:00:00	100.00%	00:00:
5033	Diana	Reed	01-Apr-2014 10:00	00:01:14	89.47%	83.33%	00:00:00	87.50%	00:00:00	100.00%	00:00:00	91.75%	00:00:
UK_Agent_051		Rutherford	01-Apr-2014 10:00	00:01:31	98.33%	100.00%	00:00:00	87.50%	00:00:00	100.00%	00:00:00	100.00%	00:00:
UK_Agent_034	Richard	Springer	01-Apr-2014 10:00	00:01:22	86.67%	83.33%	00:00:00	100.00%	00:00:00	100.00%	00:00:00	75.00%	00:00:
5027	Jeremiah	Walton	01-Apr-2014 10:00	00:04:42	71.67%		00:00:00		00:00:00		00:00:00	75.00%	00:00:

Figure 141: Question and content duration

21.7 Using the Report Filters Option

Filters can be created and saved by selecting **Add** which will then present the **Edit User Filters** as per the example below.

Use the drop down box to select the filter. In the example below the options are – Hierarchy, User Field & Group.

Once the filter has been selected click on Add Filter.

ser Filters:	Edit Test Result F	ilter:	
<empty criteria=""></empty>	Select a filter typ	e from the list and click Add	Filter: Date: • Add Filt
	14/11/2015	■ To 25/12/2015	💼 Delete
	Save Cancel		
Add Remove			
est Result Filters:			
<empty criteria=""></empty>			
<empty criteria=""></empty>			
Add Remove			
ave Filters Load Filters			

In the example below the filter added is the **User Field**, which then reveals the fields available. Select the additional filter.

Edit User Filter:									
Select a filter type from	the list and click Add Filter:	User Field 🔻	Add Filter						
Login ID	=	Delete							
Save Cancel									

Figure 143: Adding additional filters

In the example below the field selected is Department and this is set to show results for 'IT'. 'IT' has to be manually entered into the right hand box.

Edit User Filter:	
Select a filter type from the list and click Add Filter	: User Field 🔻 Add Filter
Department / Shop 🔻 = IT	Delete
Save Cancel	

Figure 144: Adding a Department Filter

Once the filter has been created, this can be saved to use against any report selected. Click on **Save** which will then save the filter to be used as and when required in the **User Filters** box.

Filters:	User Result Detail	9
User Filte	ers:	
Departr	ment / Shop is 'IT'	
Add R	emove	
	445 0 1	C11

Figure 145: Saving filter options

Additional **Test Result Filters** can also be created.

Click on the **Add** button under the **Test Result Filters** box.

Test Result Filters:	
Add Remove	
Save Filters Load Filters	
User Result Detail	 Create report

Figure 146: adding test result filters

The available filters are then visible in the drop down box. Once the filter has been selected, click on **Add filter**.

ADMIN REPORTS	
Filters:	
User Filters:	Edit Test Result Filter:
Department / Shop is 'IT'	Select a filter type from the list and click Add Filter: Date: • Add Filter
	15/11/2015 To 15/01/2016 TE Delete
	Save Cancel
Add Remove	
Test Result Filters:	
<empty criteria=""></empty>	
Add Remove	
Save Filters Load Filters	
User Result Detail	eate report

Figure 147: Selecting a test result filter

There are two available options in the Edit Test Result Filter:

Test Result filter as per the example below.



Figure 148: Test result filter options

There is also the option to save a specific assessment with the filter if this is a report that has to be

Edit Test Result Filter:	
Select a filter type from the list and click Add Filter:	Test Result 🔻 Add Filter
Select an assessment/conten	0 AND 100 Delete
Save Cancel	

created on a regular basis.

Figure 149: Saving an assessment with an associated filter

Click on the ... button to open the Assessment Search window.

Once an assessment has been selected, this will save the details together with the results as a filter once **Save** has been selected.

Edit Test Result Filter:	
Select a filter type from the list and	click Add Filter: Test Result 🔻 Add Filter
Assessment 1 Results Between	0 AND 100 Delete
Save Cancel	

Figure 150: Saving an assessment with an associated filter

Selecting the **Date** filter enables you to filter Test results by date range.

1	dit Test Result Filte	r:					
	Select a filter type fr	om the l	ist and click Ad	l Filter: D	ate:	۲	Add Filter
	15/11/2015	🗰 To	15/12/2015	Ē	Delete		
	Save Cancel						

Figure 151: Saving the date filter

Once the filter has been saved it will appear in the **Test Result Filter** box.

Test Result Filters:
Assessment 'Assessment 1' result
between 0 and 100
Add Remove
Save Filters Load Filters

Figure 152: Display of a saved filter

To save the filter for future use, click on **Save Filters...** and give the filter a new name.



Figure 153: Saving filters

A Notification screen will appear once the filter has been changed.

The page at localhost says:	×
Current report filters saved as: 'Assessment 1' Prevent this page from creating additional dialogues.	
ОК	

Figure 154: Filter update notification

21.8 Loading Report Filters

Filters are enabled for use and selection by clicking on **Load Filters**. The available saved filters are presented. Highlight the desired filter and then click on **Select**.

Optimizer - Load	a saved report filter	r ×
Assessment 1		
User Filters:	Test Result Filters:	
No filter was applied.	No filter was applied	
Select	Rename	Delete
Figure 155:	Loading saved fil	ters

The filter then appears in the relevant filter box.

A	DMIN REPORTS
	Filters:
	User Filters:
	Add Remove Test Result Filters: Assessment 'Assessment 1' result between 0 and 100
	Add Remove
	Save Filters
	User Result Detail

Figure 156: Display of selected filters

Select the report type (e.g. **User Results Detail**). The filter information will appear as part of the report selection after clicking on the report at the top of the screen:

DMIN RE	PORTS		-		
Filters: Use	r Result Detail 🛚				
Eilters appli	ed to this report				
User Filters:					
Site is 'Manch	ester'				
Select an asses	ssment from the l	ist to see the repo	ort: Baseline 🔻		
Show/Hide A	l User Details A	ssessment Con	tent Question Du	ration Export	
Login ID	First Name	Last Name	Date	Total Duration	Overall Result
Loginito			Completed		overall nestan
	,				
Average (11	-	1		00:00:05	38.09%
5032	First	Base	24-Nov-2015 15:25	00:00:09	25.00%
5001	Roger	Caravan	24-Nov-2015 15:32	00:00:06	25.00%
5034	Donna	Day	24-Nov-2015 15:26	00:00:05	25.00%
5002	Kalyani	Doe	24-Nov-2015 15:32	00:00:06	49.00%
5052	Jessica	Hamilton	24-Nov-2015 15:31	00:00:04	49.00%
5003	Hortense	Howard	24-Nov-2015 15:04	00:00:05	25.00%
5050	Howard	Johnson	24-Nov-2015 15:26	00:00:08	49.00%
5029	Monica	Moore	24-Nov-2015 15:23	00:00:07	49.00%
5011	Rusty	Nail	24-Nov-2015 15:06	00:00:05	49.00%
5027	Jeremiah	Walton	24-Nov-2015 15:22	00:00:04	49.00%

Figure 157: Viewing filtered report information

21.9 User Feedback Response Percentages

Select the **User feedback Response Percentages** report from the drop down box and select **Create Report**.

Filters:	
User Filters:	
Add Remove	
Test Result Filters:	
Add Remove	
Save Filters Load Filters	
User Feedback Response Percentages 🔻	Create report

Figure 158: Creating a user feedback response percentages report

The report will appear at the top next to the **Filters**.

Select the relevant assessment. There is also the option to select the type of feedback to view from a drop down box.

Filters: User Feedbac	k Response Perc	entages	×					
Filters applied to this r	report							
User Filters: No filter was applied.								Test Result Filters: No filter was applied.
Select an assessment fro	m the list to see	the report	: Self	and Manager 🔻				
Select the type of feedba	ack you want to r	eport on:	All fe	edback	•			
Export	Export							
		New		Manager Only				
New Feedback Question	Strongly disagree	Disagr		Direct Reports C Peers Only It self	iniy	gree	Strongly agree	
1 user	0.0%	0.0%	6	0.0%	10	0.0%	0.0%	

Figure 159: Selecting the report's assessment and feedback type

21.10 Question Response Summary

The Question Response Summary allows immediate visibility across an assessment for all of the results by question within an assessment (date filters may be used to reduce the volume of

Filters:	Question Response Summary 🎽								
🗈 Filters aj	plied to this report								
User Filters: Test Result Filters: No filter was applied. No filter was applied.									
Select an a	Select an assessment from the list to see the report: Assessment 1 🔹 💌 Export								
	Ques	tions							
Question	1								
1	Answer 1		1	100.00 %					
0	Did not answer			0.00 %		All Right 100.00% (1)			
1 user(s)									

answers).

Figure 160: Selecting an assessment for the Question Response Summary Report

Results from this report can be exported to a PDF file. This can be done by selecting a report from the dropdown and clicking the **Export** button.

21.11 Admin Report User Filter – Hierarchy

You can use the organisational hierarchy as a filter within the Admin report by selecting the **Add Filter** button under the **Edit User Filter** section of the **Admin Reports** page.

Ealt Oser Fliter:
Select a filter type from the list and click Add Filter: Hierarchy v Add Filter
Save Cancel

Figure 161: Using the organisational hierarchy as a filter

Edit User Filter: Select a filter type from the list and click Add Filter: Hierarchy
Add Filter
Head of Operations ... down 3
Levels Delete
Head of Operations (Huw Bristow)

You will then be presented with a drop down as displayed in the example below:

Figure 162: Using the organisational hierarchy as a filter

The hierarchy will then be presented to either expand it as required and select the relevant nodes or select a specific position. To include any subordinates simply increase the number of **levels** as required.

Click on the **Save** button to apply the filter for reusing at a later date. To select and use an existing filter select **Load Filters** and click on the required filter or to remove a filter click on the filter name and after selecting it click on **Remove**.

21.12 Duration Column within the User Result Detail Report

Duration of time spent (overall and by content) on an assessment is included within the **User Result Detail** admin report. This report also includes the overall average duration of for all selected

Filters: User	Result Detail 🛛 🗙									
Filters applied	d to this report									
User Filters: No filter was applied.							Test Result Filters: No filter was applied.			
Select an assess	ment from the l	ist to see the repo	rt: Handsets - iphon	ne 🔻						
Show/Hide All	User Details A	ssessment Cont	ent Question Du	ration Export						
Login ID	First Name	Last Name	Date Completed	Total Duration	Overall Result	Hardware	Content Duration	Operating System	Content Duration	
Question out	of:									
Average (14 ι	users):			00:01:47	87.74%	91.67%	00:00:00	93.75%	00:00:00	
137545	Ashley	Andeen	01-Apr-2014 10:00	00:01:04	76.13%	66.67%	00:00:00	87.50%	00:00:00	
UK_Agent_035	Audrey	Arnold	01-Apr-2014 10:00	00:01:41	100.00%	100.00%	00:00:00	100.00%	00:00:00	
137547	Prashant	Arora	01-Apr-2014 10:00	00:01:04	80.00%	100.00%	00:00:00	100.00%	00:00:00	
137626	Stephen	Bay	01-Apr-2014 10:00	00:01:01	91.13%	100.00%	00:00:00	100.00%	00:00:00	

users.

Figure 163: Duration column within the user result detail report

21.13 Feedback Deployment Models

This page allows the creation of feedback models which may be selected as part of the properties option of an assessment.

I In the example below, the standard feedback models (Self and Self & Manager) are available.

FEEDBACK DEPLOYMENT MODELS
* Self only : Self
* Self and Manager : Self, Manager
Add You are not able to edit or dekte either the feedback deployment models that are created by default, or those that have been allocated to assessments.
An asterisk (*) before the name of a feedback deployment model indicates that it is one of the default internal models. These cannot be removed or edited.
Figure 164: Feedback Deployment Models

To create a new feedback model for use in a feedback assessment, click on **Add** and additional options will be available to select from to build another profile.



Figure 165: Creating feedback models

To create a new feedback model, select the desired options (individuals who will have access to the assessment) and move them across to the left hand box.

Optimizer - Feedback Deployment ×								
Name								
Self		Manager						
		Report						
		Peer						
	Save Cance							

Figure 166: Selecting a feedback model

If **Reports** is selected, the number of Reports will be requested.

Enter the number of Reports and click on **OK**.

Optimizer - Feedback Deployment	. ×
Feedback	
How many Reports do you want to add to this Feedback Deployment Model? (Enter a value from 1-100).	
3	
OK Cancel	

Figure 167: Setting the number of required reports

Once the new feedback model has been created click on **Save** for it to be available to be used in feedback assessments within the assessment properties.

22 Managing and Viewing Crystal Reports

Performance DNA supports importing and viewing custom-designed Crystal Reports. The features associated with Crystal Reports are located in the Manage Reports, Report Categories and View Reports pages.

Note: The new Crystal Reports functionality is only supported for Internet Explorer version 8 or above and the latest versions of other browsers (e.g. Chrome, Firefox and Safari).

22.1 Managing Report Settings

The Manage Reports page allows users to create, edit, delete and re-arrange report categories. Reports can then be associated with specific categories.

To create a new category, first select the parent category (i.e. the one that you want the new category to be under in the hierarchy), then click the green '+' icon.

Clicking on the new category twice will allow you to rename it. It is also possible to move categories to different locations by dragging them into other categories.

To delete a category, select it from the hierarchy and click the red 'X' icon. If the delete icon is disabled (if it is greyed out instead of red) then the selected category cannot be deleted. A category can be deleted only if it does not contain any other categories or reports.

22.2 Managing Reports

The manage reports page allows the user to view, add, edit, delete and archive reports. The main controls in this page are displayed in the following screenshot:

ANAGE REPORTS					
+ Add New Report					🖒 Refresh
Name	Connection Types	Admin Report	Archived	Last Updated	
No records to display.					
	age size: 15 🔻				0 items in 1 pages

Figure 168: Manage Reports Page

To upload a report, click the 'Add New Report' link. A dialog box will appear. Set the report's name and category. The 'Admin Report' checkbox makes the report available to administrators only and allows them to run the report against all users in the system. Reports that are not set as admin reports will only provide information about the logged in user's subordinates. Click the 'select' button to choose a Crystal Report .rpt file to upload.

Once the upload has completed, two additional settings will need to be defined. The connection type checkboxes should be used to set which users you want the report to run against. It is possible for a report to run against Performance DNA and Training Manager and any combination of the two different databases. The second option should be used to map the report database to the name of the database used for your system. After entering these settings click the 'Add' button to complete the report upload.

Note: In certain cases it is possible for users to upload Crystal Report files to the web server without completing the setup of the report item in Performance DNA. This will result in the report file being retained by the server; however, it will not be accessible via Performance DNA. These files will be

prefixed with 'TEMPFILE' and may be manually deleted from the server's Crystal Reports upload folder by administrators.

To edit report settings, select a report from the table in the Manage Reports page and click its associated 'Edit link'. A dialog box will appear allowing you to change the details of the report, including name, category, the Crystal Reports .rpt file and database connection details. Once you have finished editing the report click the 'Update' button to apply the changes.

To archive a report, click its associated 'Archive' link from the table in the Manage Reports page. An archived report can be unarchived in a similar manner. Reports that are archived will not be listed in the 'View Reports' page.

All uploaded reports can also be downloaded via the 'download' link from the Manage Reports page.

22.3 Viewing Reports

Reports can be generated from the 'View Reports' page. The page will initially display the category hierarchy, including the reports that have been allocated to each category. Browse the category hierarchy and select the report that you want to view. A Crystal Reports popup window will appear. Depending on how the report was developed, this window will either show the report immediately, or request additional information before displaying the report.

22.4 Restricting Report Results

If you wish to restrict report results so that only the details of the logged-in user's subordinates are displayed, the Crystal Report will need to include a UserID parameter. This parameter should have the 'Show on (Viewer) panel' attribute set to 'Do not show'.

Note: Omitting this parameter will cause report results to include data about all Performance DNA users, regardless of the access level of the logged in user.

23 Skillsroute

Skillsroute allows the management of bulk changes (inserting new employee, adding and updating skills and adding and updating proficiency levels) in Genesys CME

The prerequisites are:-

GIS 7.5 & CME 7.5 on the server.

Select the Skillsroute page, as shown in the example below.

SKILLS RO	UTE				
Select File	Select Data	Import		Choose file	
Please enter th	Please enter the path to the file or click Browse to search for it Figure 169: Selecting the Skillsroute page				

Browse and select the relevant spreadsheet containing the data for updating Genesys.

SKILLS RO	UTE						
Select File	Select Data	Import					
Please enter th	e path to the file	e or click Brov	wse to search for it		Choose file	GenesysSkills.xls	

Figure 170: Select a spreadsheet for data import

The spreadsheet must be created in the format as per the example below and be in Excel 97 – 2003 format file (.xls). The actual format of the information (skill names, Employee ID label, etc) will be dictated by what is already in CME.

The Skill levels in the example below are displayed as Bronze, Silver and Gold, with the proficiency levels associated to the employee as 1, 2 or 3 (in this example 1 is the highest proficiency level).

The proficiency levels used reflect actual organizational skill routing proficiency settings.

Employee ID	First Name	Last Name	User Name	Bronze		Silver	Gold	
jhiggins	Joanne	Higgins	jhiggins		1	2		3
jparker	Jerry	Parker	jparker	3	2	3		3

Figure 171: Spreadsheet format

To create a new employee, the employee details are entered under the first four column headings as per the example below and the format must match the existing information in CME.

Employee ID	First Name	Last Name	User Name	Bronze	Silver		Gold
jhiggins	Joanne	Higgins	jhiggins		1	2	3
jparker	Jerry	Parker	jparker	2	2	3	3

Figure 172: Creating a new employee

Skills are added in the columns after the Employee ID, First Name, Last Name and User Name and the proficiency level associated with the Skill is entered in the cell against the relevant employee.

Employee ID	First Name	Last Name	User Name	Bronze	Silver		Gold
jhiggins	Joanne	Higgins	jhiggins		1	2	3
jparker	Jerry	Parker	jparker		2	3	3

Figure	173:	Setting	employee	skills
--------	------	---------	----------	--------

After selecting the file, click on **Select Data** to confirm the information is correct.

SKILLS ROUTE							
Select File Select Data Import							
Employee ID	Fname	Sname	User Name	Bronze	Silver	Gold	
1	Paul	Yardely	PYardely	1	2	3	
2	Steve	Izzard	SIzzard	1	2	3	
3	Huw	Thompson	HThompson	1	2	3	

Figure 174: Confirming accuracy of input data
Map the **Source Fields** to the **User Fields** by dragging and dropping the information across.

elect File Select Data Import		
Guess Mappings (Map unfound items as a Clear all Mappings	kill)	
	User Field Map	pping
Source Fields	Source Field	Destination Field
EmployeeID	UserName	UserName
Fname	Fname	First Name
Sname Sname		Last Name
UserName K	EmployeeID	EmployeeID
Bronze		Email Address
Silver		Tenant
Gold	Skill Mappings	
	Source Field	Set Description
	No records to displ	ay.

Figure 175: Mapping source and user fields

Once the mapping has been done, select the relevant options at the bottom and click on **Import**. The information will then be updated in CME.



Figure 176: Finalising the import of employee data

24 CME Authentication (Genesys environment only)

If Performance DNA is being used within a Genesys environment there is the option now to authenticate user access using their CME log in details. To enable this, ensure that the user's Genesys CME username is included in the user upload or that the relevant field has been included in the hierarchy import.

To configure this setting, select the **Systems Settings** page within Performance DNA and select the **Field Mappings** tab.

SYS	TEM SI	ETTINGS		
U	ser Fields	Field Mappings	Widgets	General Settings
Sele	ct a system	to set authenticatior	n options: Op	otimizer 🔻
\bigcirc	Do not auth	enticate against this	system	
۲	ogin ID			
\bigcirc	irst Name			
\bigcirc	ast Name			
\bigcirc	Email Addre	255		
\bigcirc	Manager ID			
\bigcirc	ob Title			
\bigcirc	Business Un	it		
\bigcirc	Department	t / Shop		
\bigcirc	lite			
\bigcirc	Grade			
\bigcirc	Directorate			
\bigcirc	Manager Na	ame		
\bigcirc	MS ID			
\bigcirc	PDR Target	Number		
App	oly Changes	5		

This will display a screen similar to the following example:

Figure 177: Authenticating user access via their CME credentials

Next, select Genesys from the drop down menu (Available only if Genesys CME authentication has been enabled) and select the field from which data will be used for authentication.

Click on **Apply Changes** to save any changes you have made and to enable Genesys to authenticate the user.

Once enabled, when users log into Performance DNA they will be able to select **Genesys GIS** as the **Select System** option rather than Performance DNA.

<mark>฿</mark> ํ GENESYS ^ะ	
Welcome	User can select Genesy
Genesys	GIS from the dropdow
Login ID	
LOG IN	
Trouble logging in	

Figure 178: Selecting Genesys for authenticating user credentials

The user entered **UserName** will then be authenticated and validated against Genesys login details.

25 SkillsDNA Creation

Before DNA Sequences and Strands can be created DNA Base Data must be defined and KPI data imported. The DNA Base Data and KPI data is also used in the SkillsAnalysis page for correlation analysis.

25.1 Manually Managing DNA Base Data

To begin creating DNA Strands, first select the **DNA Base Data Definitions** page.

BASE DATA DEFINITIONS Name All Types + ADD					
	Name	All Types	•		
	+ ADD				
	SAVE			REVERT	

Figure 179: DNA Base Data Definitions page

There are 2 types of DNA Base Data:

- 1. Assessments Imported Assessment scores (historical) or Assessment data from a 3rd party system.
- 2. **KPI** Imported Key Performance Indicators and other Performance data.

To Create a new DNA Base Data, click on the **+ ADD** button.

BASE DATA DEFINITIO	NS	
Name	All Types •	
+ ADD		
SAVE		REVERT
	Figure 180: Create DNA Base Data	

Name /	Assessment Name	Ν	∕lin	Max	Thresholds	Fl	lipped	Load	requency	Multiplie	r Agg	Method	Part P	eriod	Missi	ing Dat	a Handli	ing Va
		v	0	100		w.		Daily	V	1	Aver	age	Whole	Value 🔻	Do No	ot Calcu	ate	
4																		Þ
+ ADI																		
								-	_	_			-	_	-	-	_	
	following errors:																	
• The	e name is required, mu	ist be	uniqu	ie and	cannot exceed 200 chara	icters	in leng	th.										
SAVE																	REV	EDT
																	AEV.	LINI



For the Base Data, provide a unique Name, description and then configure the remaining information as required, including:

- **Name** this must be a unique name. In environments with several measures of similar names best practice would be to prefix the name with the business area i.e. Sales AHT, Email AHT.
- Assessment Name this links the imported value to a specific Assessment within the system. To select the Assessment, you can either start typing the name and select the Assessment from the auto filtered list, or you can select the Assessment manually from the dropdown list.
- Min (value) this is used to normalise the lowest value expected for the KPI. For example, if you enter 5 as the default minimum value, any imported values that are less than 5 will be rounded up to 5.
- Max (value) this is used to normalise the highest value expected for the KPI. For example, if you enter 100 as the default maximum value, any imported values that are greater than 100 will be rounded down to 100.
- **Thresholds** this allows you to assign a previously created Threshold to this base data definition*. If there are no Thresholds available, this column will just show "<None>".

- **Flipped*** by default Performance DNA assumes that higher scores are indicative of better performance ('better'). In some cases, like Average Handle Time (AHT) or Hold Time (HT) lower values are normally considered better. By checking this option, the system treats lower scores as better.
- Load Frequency From the dropdown select if the Base Data is measured, and imported, at a Daily, Weekly or Monthly level.
- **Multiplier** this is used to set the Load Frequency recurrence.
 - \circ $\,$ 1 means the data is expected every Day, Week or Month $\,$
 - \circ 2 would indicate the data is expected every 2nd Day, Week or Month
- Agg. Method defines the aggregation method used when reporting on this data. The options are:
 - Sum the values are added together
 - Average the values are averaged
 - **No Aggregation Allowed** if the reporting period is larger than the data frequency, then no value will be available for this item. (i.e. if you try to view a "daily" data item for a reporting period of more than one day)
- **Part Period** defines how data is reported when the data frequency is smaller than the reporting period (i.e. reporting for a week when the data is imported monthly). The options are:
 - Whole Value uses the value for the period in its entirety
 - **Fraction** scales the value for the data to the fraction of the reporting period that it falls within (i.e. a weekly value of "7" would score "1" for a single day)
 - **Reporting not allowed** if the reporting period does not match the data frequency, no value will be available for this item.
- **Missing Data Handling** defines what data is to be used if there is gap in the imported values. The options are:
 - **Default Value** User defined default value
 - Skip Just use the data that is in the system
 - **Do Not Calculate** –No value is used if there is missing data for a Base Data Definition.
- Value this is the user defined value that will be used if there is missing data for this Base Data Definition.
- **Precision** The number of decimal places that this Base Data Definition should be reported to.

*When **Flipped** is checked, the lower end of the data value range aligns with the upper end of Thresholds, and vice-versa.

Note: Once a valid and unique name has been created the validation error with be removed.

Once you have configured the Base Data details click **Save** to create the Base Data. If there are any validation errors these will be shown below the Base Data Definitions grid.

25.2 Managing Base Data Definitions with Excel

For environments with many Base Data Definitions it is possible to replicate the Base Data Definitions grid within a spreadsheet and copy them into Performance DNA.

File Home Insert Page Layout For	mulas Data Re	view	Vie	w Add-ir	s Tea	m ⊈Tellmev	/hat you wan	t to do				
	• A • = = =	87	- 8	Wrap Text		General	•	a 🗊	Normal	Bad	Good	Neutral
Paste v SFormat Painter	• <u>A</u> • = = =	¢ =	•=	🗐 Merge & C	enter 👻	⊊·% * 5		ditional Format a atting • Table •	S Check Cell	Explanatory	Input	Linked Cell
Clipboard 🕞 Font	r <u>a</u>	ρ	lignme	nt	G.	Number	Fa I I I I	atting tuble		Style	15	
Q13 • : × ✓ f _x												
Α Α	В	С	D	E	F	G	н	1	J	к	L M	N
1 Name	Assessment Name	Min	Max 1	Thresholds	Flipped	Load Frequency	Multiplier	Agg. Method	Part Period	Missing Data Handling	Value Precisio	n Learning Item
2 ACD - ACW Time		10	120	Threshold 1	FALSE	Daily	1	Average	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0
3 ACD - AHT		100	360		FALSE	Daily	1	Average	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0
4 ACD - Calls per Hour		5	25		FALSE	Daily	1	Average	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0
5 ACD - Hold Time		0	26		FALSE	Daily	1	Average	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0
6 ACD - Talk Time		90	380		FALSE	Daily	1	Average	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0
7 Adherence		-20	510		FALSE	Daily	1	Average	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0
8 Assessment - Identify Problems & Solutions		1	10		FALSE	Daily	1	Average	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0
9 Assessment - Product Knowledge		1	10		FALSE	Daily	1	Average	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0
10 Assessment - Product Offering		1	10		FALSE	Daily	1	Average	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0
11 Call Stats		0	100		FALSE	Daily	1	Average	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0
12 Calls		40	150		FALSE	Daily	1	Average	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0
13 Complaints Resolved		0	500		FALSE	Daily	1	Average	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0
14 CX - CSat		1	10		FALSE	Daily	1	Average	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0
15 CX - FCR		1	10		FALSE	Daily	1	Average	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0
16 CX - NPS		25	100		FALSE	Daily	1	Average	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0
17 DNA Role		0	100		FALSE	Daily	1	Average	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0
18 Extended Warrenty		0	400		FALSE	Daily	1	Average	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0
19 Insurance sales		-120	120		FALSE	Daily	1	Average	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0
20 Knowledge		0	100		FALSE	Daily	1	Average	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0
21 Premium Product sales		0	100		FALSE	Daily	1	Average	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0
22 QM - Agent Attitude		1	10		FALSE	Daily	1	Average	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0
23 QM - Customer Info Fit		1	10		FALSE	Daily	1	Average	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0
24 QM - Customer understanding		1	10		FALSE	Daily	1	Average	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0
25 Quality Stats		0	100		FALSE	Daily	1	Average	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0
26 Rapport		0	410		FALSE	Daily	1	Average	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0
27 Sales - Average Sales Value		10	100		FALSE	Daily	1	Average	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0
28 Sales - Conversion Rate%		25	100		FALSE	Daily	1	Average	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0
29 Sales - Sales per Hour		5	25		FALSE	Daily	1	Average	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0
30 Sales Stats		0	100		FALSE	Daily	1	Average	When he Maline	Do Not Calculate	2	0

Figure 182: Defining DNA Base Data Spreadsheet

25.2.1 Creating New Base Data Definitions from a Spreadsheet

To copy Base Data Definitions from your spreadsheet you will need to create a new entry line in the Base Data Definitions grid by Clicking the **+Add** button.



Copy the Base Data information from your spreadsheet and select the highlighted cell on the Base Data Definitions grid using Ctrl+V to paste the data.

	BASE DATA DEFINITIO	NS	
	Name	All Types 🔹	
(Name Assessment Name Min	Max Threshold 1 Threshold 2 Flipped Load Frequency Multiplier Agg. Method Part Period Missing Data Handling Value 100 33.33 66.66 Daily 1 Average Whole Value Do not calculate Image: Calculate Calculate	e Pre
	4		Þ
	+ ADD		
	The name is required and must b	e unique	
		REVE	RT

Figure 184: New Base Data Entry Line

Name 🔺	Assessment Name	Min	Max	Thresholds	Flipped	Load Frequency	Multiplier Agg. Method	Part Perio
ACD - ACW Time	<none></none>	10	120	Threshold 1 🔹 🔻		Daily •	1 Average 🔻	Whole Valu
ACD - AHT	<none></none>	100	360	V		Daily v	1 Average 🔻	Whole Valu
ACD - Calls per Hour	<none></none>	5	25			Daily v	1 Average 🔻	Whole Valu
ACD - Hold Time	<none></none>	0	26			Daily v	1 Average 🔻	Whole Valu
ACD - Talk Time	<none></none>	90	380	V		Daily v	1 Average 🔻	Whole Valu
Adherence	<none></none>	-20	510	v		Daily v	1 Average 🔻	Whole Valu
Assessment - Identify Problems & Solutions	<none></none>	1	10			Daily v	1 Average 🔻	Whole Valu
Assessment - Product Knowledge	<none></none>	1	10			Daily v	1 Average 🔻	Whole Valu
Assessment - Product Offering	<none></none>	1	10	v		Daily v	1 Average 🔻	Whole Valu
Call Stats	<none></none>	0	100	▼		Daily v	1 Average 🔻	Whole Valu
Calls	<none></none>	40	150			Daily v	1 Average 🔻	Whole Valu
Complaints Resolved	<none></none>	0	500	V		Daily v	1 Average 🔻	Whole Valu
CX - CSat	<none></none>	1	10	Ψ.		Daily v	1 Average 🔻	Whole Valu
CX - FCR	<none></none>	1	10			Daily v	1 Average 🔻	Whole Valu
CX - NPS	<none></none>	25	100			Daily v	1 Average 🔻	Whole Valu
DNA Role	<none></none>	0	100	v		Daily v	1 Average 🔻	Whole Valu
Extended Warrenty	<none></none>	0	400			Daily v	1 Average 🔻	Whole Valu
nsurance sales	<none></none>	-120	120			Daily v	1 Average 🔻	Whole Valu
(nowledge	<none></none>	0	100	v		Daily v	1 Average 🔻	Whole Valu
Premium Product sales	<none></none>	0	100	Ψ		Daily v	1 Average 🔻	Whole Valu
QM - Agent Attitude	<none></none>	1	10			Daily v	1 Average 🔻	Whole Valu
QM - Customer Info Fit	<none></none>	1	10			Daily v	1 Average 🔻	Whole Valu
QM - Customer understanding	<none></none>	1	10	V		Daily v	1 Average 🔻	Whole Valu
Quality Stats	<none></none>	0	100			Daily v	1 Average 🔻	Whole Valu
Rapport	<none></none>	0	410			Daily v	1 Average 🔻	Whole Valu
Sales - Average Sales Value	<none></none>	10	100	v		Daily v	1 Average 🔻	Whole Valu
Sales - Conversion Rate%	<none></none>	25	100			Daily v	1 Average 🔻	Whole Valu
Sales - Sales per Hour	<none></none>	5	25			Daily v	1 Average 🔻	Whole Valu
Sales Stats	<none></none>	0	100	.		Daily v	1 Average 🔻	Whole Valu

REVERT

Figure 185: Pasted Base Data Definitions

After sense checking the data click **Save** to create the new Base Data Definitions.

Notes:

For optimum performance, it is recommended that Base Data Definitions are pasted and saved to the grid in batches of 50.

25.2.2 Updating Base Data Definitions from a Spreadsheet

Over time Base Data targets may change. After updating your Base Data Definitions spreadsheet to reflect these trends or business changes it is possible to copy and paste sections of the data to reflect the changes in Performance DNA.

File Home Insert Page Layout Fo	ermulas Data R	eview	Vi	ew Add-ir	s Tea	m ♀Tell me v	hat you want	t to do					
Calibri 11	• A• A• = = =	87	×	F Wrap Text		General	•	2	Normal	Bad	Good		Neutral
Paste V Format Painter B I U - Copy -	<u>></u> • <u>A</u> • <u>≡</u> ≡ ≡	•	♦	🚊 Merge & C	enter 👻	😨 • % • 就		litional Formatas atting ∗ Table ∗	Check Cell	Explanatory	Input		Linked Cell
Clipboard G Font G Alignment G Number G Styles													
C2 \mathbf{v} : $\mathbf{X} \checkmark \mathbf{f}_{\mathbf{x}}$ 150													
A	В	С	D	E	F	G	н	I.	J	к	L	м	N
1 Name	Assessment Name	Min	Max	Thresholds	Flipped	Load Frequency	Multiplier	Agg. Method	Part Period	Missing Data Handling	Value	Precision	Learning Items
2 ACD - ACW Time		150	160	Threshold 1	FALSE	Daily	1	Average \	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate		2	0
3 ACD - AHT		100	360	Threshold 1	TRUE	Daily	1	Average \	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate		2	0
4 ACD - Calls per Hour		5	25		FALSE	Daily	1	Average \	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate		2	0
5 ACD - Hold Time		0	26		FALSE	Monthly	1	Average \	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate		2	0
6 ACD - Talk Time		90	380		FALSE	Monthly	1	Average \	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate		2	0
7 Adherence		-20	510		FALSE	Daily	1	Average \	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate		2	0
8 Assessment - Identify Problems & Solutions		1	10		FALSE	Daily	1	Average \	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate		2	0
9 Assessment - Product Knowledge		1	10		FALSE	Daily	1	Average \	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate		2	0
10 Assessment - Product Offering		1	10		FALSE	Daily	1	Average \	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate		2	0
11 Call Stats		0	100		FALSE	Daily	1	Average \	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate		2	0
12 Calls		40	150		FALSE	Daily	1	Average \	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate		2	0
13 Complaints Resolved		0	500		FALSE	Daily	1	Average \	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate		2	0

Figure 186: Updated Base Data Definitions

Select the Cells that have been updated in the spreadsheet and copy them.

From the Base Data Definitions grid select the first cell of the data range that is to be updated and paste the data using Ctrl+V.

BASE DATA DEFINITION	NS	
Name	All Types	•

Name	Assessment Name	Min	Max	Threshold 1	Threshold 2	Flipped	Load Frequency	Mu
ACD - ACW Time	V	10	120	40	80	√	Daily 🔻	
ACD - AHT		100	360	150	200	-	Daily 🔻	
ACD - Calls per Hour		5	25	10	18		Daily 🔻	
ACD - Hold Time		0	26	15	20	-	Daily 🔻	
ACD - Talk Time		90	380	180	240		Daily 🔻	
Adherence		0	500	165	330		Monthly 🔹	
Assessment - Identify Problems & Solutions		1	10	3	6		Daily 🔻	
Assessment - Product Knowledge		1	10	3	6		Daily 🔻	
Assessment - Product Offering		1	10	3	6		Daily 🔻	
Call Stats		0	100	33	66		Daily 🔹	
Calls		40	150	60	80		Daily 🔻	
Complaints Resolved		0	500	165	330		Monthly 🔹	
CX - CSat		1	10	3	6		Daily 🔹	

Figure 187: Selecting data range

Name 🔺	Assessment Name	Min	Max	Thresholds	Fl	lipped	Load Frequency	Multiplier	Agg. Method	Part Period
ACD - ACW Time	<none></none>	150	160	Threshold 1	v.		Daily 🔻	1	Average •	Whole Value
ACD - AHT	<none></none>	100	360	Threshold 1		1	Daily 🔻	1	Average	Whole Value
ACD - Calls per Hour	<none></none>	5	25		v.		Daily v	1	Average 🔹	Whole Value
ACD - Hold Time	<none></none>	0	26	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			Monthly v	1	Average v	Whole Value
ACD - Talk Time	<none></none>	90	380		v.		Monthly v	1	Average 🔹	Whole Value
Adherence	<none></none>	-20	510	1	v.		Daily v	1	Average v	Whole Value
Assessment - Identify Problems & Solutions	None>	1	10		v.		Daily v	1	Average v	Whole Value
Assessment - Product Knowledge	<none></none>	1	10	1	v.		Daily v	1	Average v	Whole Value
Assessment - Product Offering	<none></none>	1	10	7	v .		Daily	1	Average v	Whole Value
Call Stats	<none></none>	0	100	7			Daily v	1	Average v	Whole Value
Calls	<none></none>	40	150				Daily	1	Average v	Whole Value
Complaints Resolved	<none></none>	0	500	7			Daily	1	Average	Whole Value
CV CC .			40			_	0.11			

Figure 188: Selecting data range

After checking for any validation errors click Save.

25.2.3 Learning Items.

Each base data definition can be linked to multiple Learning Items.

nolds		Flipped	Load Frequency	Multiplier	Agg. Method	d Part Period	Missing Data Handling	Value Precision	Learning Items	Last Updated	Ву
old 1	V		Daily	1	Average v	Whole Value 🔻	Do Not Calculate	2	0	07/06/2017	admin admin
old 1		1	Daily	1	Average	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0	07/06/2017	admin admin
			Daily	1	Average	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0	07/06/2017	admin admin
			Monthly v	1	Average v	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0	07/06/2017	admin admin
			Monthly v	1	Average v	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0	07/06/2017	admin admin
			Daily v	1	Average v	Whole Value	Do Not Calculate	2	0	07/06/2017	admin admin
		_					a			07/06/0017	

Figure 189: Attached Learning Items

The number in the Learning Items column represents the count of learning items associated with the base data definition. Clicking on the number opens the Edit Learning Item screen.

+ ADD				
Learning Item	Manual Priority	Auto Priority	Min	Max
No records to display.				
				CANCEL

Figure 190: Attaching Learning Items

Clicking Add will add a learning item.

+ ADD					
Learning Item	Manual Priority	Auto Priority	Min	Max	
Assessment Assessment 1	1		80.00	100.00	×
« < 1 > »	10 🔹 iten	ns per page		1-1	of 1 items
ОК					CANCEL



You can add as many as you like. Auto Priority is reserved for a future feature. Manual priority is the order that you would like the learning items to be assigned. Min and max are the range used to determine When the learning item will be assigned. So, in the example above, if you score between 80 and 100 in Assessment 1 then the learning item will be assigned.

25.3 Calculated Data

The Calculated Data page supports the creation and management of DNA Calculated Data. Calculated Data consist of a formula which can include arbitrary numbers and KPI Base Data as the operands. Calculated Data can be used within DNA strands in the same way as KPI Base Data. Calculated Data are useful if DNA strands are insufficient to provide a combined score from multiple KPIs. As with KPIs and Strands, each DNA user will have a score for the Calculated Data based on the formula and their KPI scores. To manage Calculated Data, browse to the **Admin -> DNA -> Calculated Data** page in the menu.

CALCULATED DAT	A										
Calculated Data Name		All Editors	•	From	Ó	1	То	Í	Î	All	٠
+ NEW CALCULATED DAT	4										
Calculated Data Name	Last E	dited By	Status		Last Edit		Published	Thr	esh	old	
Calculated Data Name AHT		dited By McTaggart	Status		Last Edit 6/6/2017 2:11:08	PM		Thr RAG		old	<i>₽</i> ×



The grid shows you key information about each of your calculations. To see the detail on the calculation, you must click the Edit button for that calculation.

Note: If you have any calculations that were created prior to version 4.9, you must edit each of the calculations and provide values for the **Min**, **Max** and **Precision** values (and optionally a threshold) before they will provide a value for DNA.

25.3.1 Searching and filtering Calculated Data

The top of the Calculated Data page includes a search bar and filters to restrict the number of Calculated Data based on entered criteria. The first box at the top of the page supports searching of Calculated Data for specific criteria. Entering a value into the Calculated Data search box will result in the page removing all Calculated Data which do not contain the value in the Base Data's name. The search results are updated automatically while value is being input; there is no button to begin the search. The second item at the top of the page allows for the filtering of Calculated Data that were created by other users. The third and fourth controls at the top of the page allow for the filtering of the view of Calculated Data to just the items that were last edited in the specified period (using the 'from' and 'to' date picker controls). The last item at the top of the page allows for the filtering of results based on whether items are published/unpublished. This option is set to 'All' by default. This control can be used if you only wish to see published or unpublished Calculated Data.

25.3.2 Calculated Data Status

The Calculated Data page includes a status bar under the searching and filtering features. This bar shows how many published Calculated Data are in each state of processing. The allowed states are: Successfully Processed, Awaiting Processing, Processing, Completed with Errors and Failed. By default, the processing of Calculated Data occurs automatically every minute (**Note**: there is no option to manually process Calculated Data). This will only occur if there is new KPI data or new Calculated Data have been published since the last time the Base Data were processed. Users will not have a value for Calculated Data until the Base Data has been published and processed.

25.3.3 View of Calculated Data

The main part of the Calculated Data page includes a table listing the Calculated Data for the current database. This view may not include all Calculated Data depending on whether a search value has been specified or if any of the filters are set to non-default values. The table includes columns for: Calculated Data Name, Last Edited By, Status, Last Edit, published. The last column includes controls for edit and delete (**Note**: the delete control isn't available once a Calculated Data has been published). The bottom of the page includes paging controls on the left side, a drop-down control for selecting the number of items that should be displayed per page, and the number of Calculated Data available. The top of the table includes a button that allows for the creation of new Calculated Data. The table headers also support sorting, clicking multiple times will cycle through ascending/descending order for the selected column.

25.3.4 New Calculated Data Form

To create a new Calculated Data, click the '+ New Calculated Data' at the top of the table of Calculated Data. The form includes a name field (a value must be provided for this field) and a section for calculation details. The calculation details section initially includes a drop-down control.

CALCULATED DATA					
EDIT CALCULATED DATA					
Name					
Calculation Details	•				
Threshold	None •				
Min	0.00				
Max	0.00				
Precision					
+ ADD					
Learning Item	Manual Priority	Auto Priority	Min	Max	
No records to display.					
			REVERT		CANCEL

Figure 193: Creating a new Calculated Data

It is possible to either type numbers/operators/KPI names into this control directly or use the down arrow to view and select the available options. Clicking the down arrow will display available operands, brackets, and KPIs. Pressing the space bar will create the first element of the formula based on what was entered/selected and set the cursor focus to a new dropdown control to the right of the first element. Once you've created multiple elements, it is possible to edit them by double-clicking to move the focus to the element and enable the drop-down control.

Below the calculation, you can select an optional Threshold to apply to this calculation. You must also select an aggregation method from the list (the default is **Average**) and provide the minimum (**Min**) and maximum (**Max**) values that will be considered for reporting purposes. The **Precision** value determines how many decimal places will be used when displaying the results of this calculation.

The **Learning Items** grid allows you to add Learning Items to the learning calculated data, and clicking **Add** will allow you to add a new one.

+ ADD					
Learning Item	Manual Priority	Auto Priority	Min	Max	
Assessment •			0.00	0.00	×
\ll \langle 1 \rangle »	10 🔻 items pe	er page		1-1	of 1 items

Figure 194: Assigning Learning Items

It is possible to add any number of learning items. The Manual Priority is which order you would like the learning items to be assigned, Auto Priority is not currently used at the moment, and Min and Max determine when the learning item will be assigned.

Name	Calculated Example						
Calculation Details	Diligence +	Accountability	•				
Threshold	Threshold 1	·					
Min	1.00						
Max	20.00						
Precision	2						
+ ADD							
Learning Item	Manual Priority		Auto Priority		Min	Max	
No records to display.							
Last edited by Chris Admin on 10/07/2017 17:10							
PUBLISH				REVERT			CANCEL

Figure 195: Editing a Calculated Data

The bottom of the page includes Publish, Save, Revert and Cancel buttons. The **Publish** button immediately saves and publishes the formula. The **Save** button saves the currently specified formula so that it is available for editing in the future. It is possible to save a rule that is syntactically invalid. The publish button, however, is only enabled if the formula is valid (i.e. valid syntax). If you open an existing formula, make changes, then click the **Revert** button, the formula will be changed back to the last previously saved state. Clicking the **Cancel** button undoes all changes made to the formula if it is an existing formula or cancels the creation of a new formula.

Once a formula is published it will be added to the queue of formulas that require processing. Users will have a value for the Calculated Data once the formula has been processed. Editing a published formula will display the published version of the formula at the top of the screen, with the editable version below it.

Notes:

Only **Published** Calculated Data can be added to DNA strands.

Published Calculated Data cannot be deleted.

Once a Calculated Data has been published, it can still be edited; however, it must then be re-published for the changes to take effect.

25.4 Import KPI Data

This is the data spreadsheet that will be imported into Performance DNA to create the DNA Strands and to use in the correlation analysis page.

In the following sample, there is a unique identifier for the individual, a date and associated data.

1	A	В	С	D	E	F	G	н	1	J	к	L	M	N	E
1	Firstname	Surname	Employee number	Manager	Position	Region	Location	Team	Company	Date	Product Knowledge (Assessment)	Agent Attitude	Customer Info Fit	Identify Problem&Soln	¢
2	Tianni	Ayala	tayala	atalbot	Agent	Manchester	Worsley	Team 1	My Company	01/11/2011		6	9	8	;
3	Lisa	Barnes	Ibarnes	atalbot	Agent	Manchester	Worsley	Team 1	My Company	01/11/2011	7	3	7	5	; -
4	Lonnie	Bruce	Ibruce	atalbot	Agent	Manchester	Worsley	Team 1	My Company	01/11/2011	9	4	10	9)
5	Shane	Carlson	scarlson	atalbot	Agent	Manchester	Worsley	Team 1	My Company	01/11/2011	10	6	3	4	1
6	Brian	Chen	bchen	atalbot	Agent	Manchester	Worsley	Team 1	My Company	01/11/2011	7	6	1	1	

Figure 196: Importing Key Performance information via a spreadsheet

25.4.1 Manually Importing KPI data

KPI data is manually imported into Performance DNA by selecting the **Import KPI Data** page and clicking on **Import New Data**., as shown below.



Figure 197: Importing KPI data

Use this process to upload any new data.

Note: The ability to archive KPI imports has been removed from version 2.7 onwards. Any KPI imports which were archived prior to an upgrade will be un-archived.

Next, the Import Wizard will appear, as shown in the following example.

Optimizer		×
Upload File	Please browse to the file you wish to upload. Choose file kpiData_generator2.xlsx	
Identify key data Set up data mappings		
Perform import		
	Next	

After selecting the file with the KPI data, click on **Next**.

Figure 198: Importing KPI data

From the drop down box select the sheet that contains the data that you want to import and Map the required fields to the corrosponding Spreadsheet column headers.

Optimizer		×
Upload File Identify key data Set up data mappings Perform import	Please select the sheet you wish to import from. Import Data Please select the field which uniquely identifies the user as well as mapping it to the correct user field. LoginID which maps to Login ID Please select which field contains the date of the record. Report_Date	

Figure 199: Importing KPI data

Click on **Next** once mappings are completed.

Select the the relevant source field and which component it maps to from the components created previously.

Optimizer					×				
Upload File Identify key data Set up data mappings	Please select to load a previou: Please select a source field	s mapping templates: Please Se							
Perform import	ACW • which maps	to ACD - ACW %	▼ A	dd mapping					
	Field Mappings	Field Mappings							
	Source Field	Destination Field							
	АНТ	ACD - AHT	Remove						
	Clear all Mappings Save Ma	pping			•				
		Previous Next							

Figure 200: Mapping source fields to existing components

After selecting **Add mapping** the selected source and destination fields will appear within the **Field Mappings** list. Repeat this process until all of the KPIs on the spreadsheet have been mapped to their corrosponding DNA Base Data.

Optimizer					×
Upload File Identify key data	Please select to load a previou:	s mapping templates: Please Se	elect 🔻		*
Set up data mappings	Please select a source field				
Perform import	ACW • which maps	to ACD - ACW %	•	Add mapping	
	Field Mappings				
	Source Field	Destination Field			
	AHT	ACD - AHT	Remove		
		_			
	Clear all Mappings ave Ma	pping			
		Previous Next			*
					i i

To save the mapping template to reuse for future data imports, click on **Save Mappings**.

Figure 201: Viewing mapping results and saving import templates

Any saved templates will be availabile from the 'Please select to load a previous mapping template:' dropdown list for future imports.

Click on **Next** to navigate to the import process.

Click on **Start Import** to import the data.

Optimizer		×
Identify key data	You are now ready to run the import, please select an option:	

Note: clicking Finish at this stage will not import the data and you will need to start the process

again.

Figure 202: Starting data import

Once the import has been completed you are safe to click on **Finish**.

	×
You are now ready to run the import, please select an option: Start Import	
	Start Import

Figure 203: Finalising data import

The data import will then show in the import log.

25.4.2 Deleting Previously Imported Data

Previous import files, and the corresponding data can be manually deleted using the **Manage KPI** page by clicking the **Delete** button next to the import file details.

MANAG	ie kpi dat	Α		
Imports	Mapping Templa	ates		
				🖒 Refresh
Created by	/	Created Date	Status	
Genesys Ad	ministrator	07/04/2017 10:20:27	(Delete
	1 🕨 🕨 Pa	age size: 15 🔻	1 iter	ms in 1 pages
Import Ne	w Data			

Figure 204: Deleting KPI Import file

25.4.3 Automatically Importing KPI Data

The process of importing KPI data can be partly automated via the DNA Import Service. Once you have installed and configured this service (there is an xml file for configuration) it is necessary only to copy a KPI import file into the defined import folder. The service will automatically recognise that a file has been added, process the import and then move the file to the archives folder. Xlsx and csv files are supported. An import template will need to be setup for this.

25.5 My DNA

The **My DNA** page allows users to view their current scores for all assigned **Strands**. The data visualisation supports drill-down.



Figure 205: Selecting Date Range

The data is shown for the selected date range, which defaults to the last week.

25.5.2 Data Visualisation

The performance data is displayed as a series of partition charts with the user's assigned **Strands** at the top level.



Figure 206:DNA Strands

Clicking on the different parts of the **Strands** will zoom to that node and allow deeper structures to be explored. The colours used are taken from the defined **Thresholds**.

The values shown are the raw scores for the current user aggregated over the selected date window.

25.5.3 Data Issues



Figure 207: Data Warnings

Should there be any issues with the date returned these will be shown in expandable summaries above each **Strand**.

Error! Not a valid filename.

25.6 DNA Comparison

The **DNA Comparison** page allows users to compare aggregated scores across multiple user demographic selections.

25.6.1 Date Range

The data is filtered by a start and end date which can be selected using fixed dates or calculated as rolling dates. Use the button in the top right corner to toggle between the selections.





Rolling dates are calculated from the previous day minus the values selected in the dropdowns.

Fixed Dates			
03/08/2017	Ê	06/08/2017	

Figure 209: Fixed Dates

25.6.2 Strand Selector

The **Strand** dropdown will allow you to select a single strand for comparison.

Strand		
Capability		•
	Figure 210: Strand Selection	

25.6.3 User Selection

The **User Selection** filter allows a user to select one or more user demographics for comparison. The initial filter displays summary text and a count of any currently selected demographics. Clicking the count button will open a more detailed view of the filter for editing.



Figure 211: User Selection

The left-hand side of the dialog displays each demographic grouping that can be removed or added to using the **Cross** and **Add User Selection** buttons respectively.

The right-hand side of the dialog displays the currently highlighted demographic grouping. Each grouping consists of a **Percentile Range** and zero or more **Demographic Mappings**.

The **Percentile Range** dropdown allows the users that match the demographic mappings to be filtered to pre-specified or custom ranges. The custom range option will display a range picker allowing the user to select a lower and upper percentage.

The **Demographic Mappings** can be chosen using the dropdown as well as being removed and added to using the **Cross** and **ADD FILTER** button respectively. Any selected values will be displayed at the top followed by the top 20 unselected values. The unselected values can be filtered using the textbox at the top of each result set. Additional data will only be retrieved from the server after 3 or more characters have been inputted into the filter textbox.

25.6.4 Loading and Saving Filters

Filters can be saved and set as a default for future use. A default filter will be automatically loaded when the page loads and only one filter can be set as a default per page. The loading and saving dialogs can accessed by selecting the **LOAD** and **SAVE** buttons.





LOAD FILTER		
Saved filter selection	A New Default	•
Make this my default (2	
ОК		CANCEL



The **Load Filter** dialog allows a user to select any of their saved filters for the current page. A filter can be loaded by selecting it from the dropdown and clicking the **OK** button. If **Make this my default** is checked then this will also make the selected filter the default for the page.

SAVE FILTER	
Name	A New Default
Make this my default	
ОК	CANCEL

Figure 214: Saving Filter as Default

The **Save Filter** dialog allows a user to save a new filter or edit an existing one. Each filters name must be unique and if a filter with is saved using an existing filters name then it will replace it. If **Make this my default** is checked then this will also make the selected filter the default for the page.

25.6.5 Data Visualisation

The performance data is displayed as a series of partition charts with the selected **Strand** at the top level. Each demographic grouping will produce its own partition chart, with the title representing what percentile range they use, if any, and the demographic selection.

Percentil	le Range:(All Users), State:(AK, AL)	8
Agent Pe	erformance	_
Þ	KPI43 50.00 🕄 🆽 🛢	
Agent Performance 50.000 ϕ	KPI 16 50.00 🕄 🌐	
	le Range:(75% to 100%), State:(HI, IA) erformance	Q
Ø Ø	KP143 50.00 € 🎟 🖉	
erformance 50.000 ϕ	KPI 16 50.00 📦 🎟	



Clicking on the different parts of the **Strands** will zoom to that node and allow deeper structures to be explored. The colours used are taken from the defined **Thresholds**.

The values shown are the raw scores for the current user aggregated over the selected date window.

The button in the top right-hand corner toggles whether the chart is linked to the other charts. Linked charts will keep the same focus when navigating the **Strands** tree structure.

25.6.6 Data Issues



Should there be any issues with the date returned these will be shown in expandable summaries above each **Strand**.

Figure 216: Data Warning

25.6.7 User Drilldown

On the leaf nodes of the partition chart, there is a grid button that can be pressed to view a more detailed view of the

Agent Performance



Figure 217: View Data

This will bring up a chart showing the strand name, the date range it applies to and all the users within the **Strand** with their individual warnings and errors, if applicable.

KPI 43, 06/08/2016 - 07/08/2016			CLOSE
Name	Value	Warnings	
Aaliyah Ball	50.00		
Aaliyah Barnes	50.00		
Aaliyah Dennis	50.00		
Aaliyah Fox	50.00		
Aaliyah Gibson	50.00		
Aaliyah Griffin	50.00		
Aaliyah Kirk	50.00		
Aaron Allen	50.00		
Aaron Booth	50.00		
Aaron Campbell	50.00		
« < 1 > »	10 🔻 items per page		1-10 of 4044 items

Figure 218: Viewing Data

If the node is a **Calculated Component**, it will show the formula used and the components' raw values within the user row.

Capability, 06/08/2016 - 07/08/2016		CLOSE
Calculation used	KPI 1	
	KPI 10	

Name	Value	Values used in formula	Warnings
Aaliyah Ball	0.15	KPI 1=7.29 ; KPI 10=50.00	
Aaliyah Barnes	1.53	KPI 1=76.57 ; KPI 10=50.00	
Aaliyah Dennis	2.03	KPI 1=19.61 ; KPI 10=9.66	
Aaliyah Fox	0.14	KPI 1=7.19 ; KPI 10=50.00	

Figure 219: Calculated Data

25.6.8 Learning Item Drilldown

If a node on the partition chart is a **Base Data Definition** or a **Calculated Component**, and has **Learning Items** assigned to it, a book will show up on the chart.

This will bring up a table with a list of all the Learning Items assigned to the node, where expanding

Agent Performance



allows users to be selected to have them assigned.

Figure 220: Viewing Attached Learning Items



Figure 221: Attached Learning Items

Agent Pe	erformance				
KPI 43					CLOSE
	Learning Item				
-	Compliance Reminder (524 Core, 0 Extend	ded, 0 Recommended)			
	Core	Extended		Recommended	
	Select all Core				
	Type to filter				
	Aaron Brennan	Aaron Burgess	Aaron Nolan	Abbie Roberts	
	Adam Barry	Adam Leach	Adam Meredith	Adam Russell	
	Adam Sims	Alberto Yepez			
	« < 1 > »		10 v items per page		1-10 of 524 items
+	Course Tips (0 Core, 0 Extended, 524 Reco	ommended)			
	Assignment Date From		Assignment Date To	ASSIG	

Figure 222: Learning Item reconmendations

They are sorted into three categories based on how they score relative to the minimum and maximum bounds set when relating learning items to the BDD or calculated component:

- Core contains users who score above the maximum.
- Extended contains users who score under the minimum.
- **Recommended** contains users who score within the range.

The users in each tab can be filtered using the filter bar, and it is possible to select them all within their respective tab by using the select all checkboxes. All users show up in these tabs based on their scores regardless of whether they have the learning item already assigned or not, unchecked.

The dates can be set if required, but can be left blank.

Assigning these uses pushes the assignments to be queued where it will be processed the next time the "Process Learning Items Queue" **Scheduled Task** runs. If a user already has the learning item assigned, re-assigning will update the date range, or if nothing has changed, not do anything.

25.7 DNA User Progress Graph

Percentile Range: (All Users), State: (AK, AL)

The **DNA User Progress Graph** provides a visual representation of up to ten users' performance over time and any learning items they may have taken in that time.

25.7.1 Date Range

The data is filtered by a start and end date which can be selected using fixed dates or calculated as rolling dates. Use the button in the top right corner to toggle between the selections.

Rolling Dates			
1	•	Weeks	•

Figure 223: Rolling Week Range

Rolling dates are calculated from the previous day minus the values selected in the dropdowns.

Fixed Dates					
28/09/2016	Ê	04/12/2016	Ê		

Figure 224: Selected Dates

25.7.2 Data Type

The **Data Type** selector allows a user to select what kind of data they want to see (**Base Data Definition**, **Strand** or **Calculated Data**) and select from a list of those.

Data Type			
Strands	٠	Capability	•



25.7.3 Users

The **Uses** selection filter allows up to ten users to be selected out of all the users in the system. Users can be filtered by their first name, surname and login Id.

25.7.4 Loading and Saving Filters

Filters can be saved and set as a default for future use. A default filter will be automatically loaded when the page loads and only one filter can be set as a default per page. The loading and saving dialogs can accessed by selecting the **LOAD** and **SAVE** buttons.





LOAD FILTER		
Saved filter selection	A New Default	•
Make this my default		
ОК		CANCEL



The **Load Filter** dialog allows a user to select any of their saved filters for the current page. A filter can be loaded by selecting it from the dropdown and clicking the **OK** button. If **Make this my default** is checked then this will also make the selected filter the default for the page.

SAVE FILTER	
Name	A New Default
Make this my default (
ОК	CANCEL

Figure 228: Saving Filters

The **Save Filter** dialog allows a user to save a new filter or edit an existing one. Each filters name must be unique and if a filter with is saved using an existing filters name then it will replace it. If **Make this my default** is checked then this will also make the selected filter the default for the page.



25.7.5 The Timeseries Graph

Figure 229: User Progress

The timeseries graph shows the scores of the users selected, with their colours represented in the Users legend below it and learning items shown on the line, with the shapes corresponding to the Learning Items legend. The threshold is overlaid and shows which bands were active at the times on the graph.





Users can be deselected by clicking on the round dot next to their name, so smaller selections can be compared without separate searches.



Figure 231: Thresholds toggled off



Thresholds can be toggled on or off using the "Show Thresholds" toggle under the bar.

Figure 232: Focused Timeline

A smaller time frame can also be selected by dragging the tabs at the ends of the mini graph below the main one, allowing for zooming in to times of interest.



Figure 233: Base Data values

Hovering over the line also gives specific information on whose line it is, their score, and the date the score was taken.

25.8 Update Routing Skills from DNA

This page enables Skills and proficiency levels in CME to be updated for the SkillsDNA output.

The DNA components are presented in the left hand side table and the CME skills in the middle table.

Tempates are required to create links between DNA items and CME Skills and must be selected before continuing. Select a template from the dropdown or create a new one by clicking the **New**

User Selection No user selections defined	0	CLEAR
		No conservations defined

Figure 234: Skills Routing

The user selection becomes enabled once a template has been selected. If no user selection is defined then users who are linked to the selected Strands will be used.

User Selection		×
X agent@demosrv.genesyslab.com ADD USER SELECTION	Percentile Range	Custom Range
	Lower Boundary & Upper Boundary & Demographic Mapping	
		ADD FILTER
ОК		CANCEL

Figure 235: Skills Routing Template

Clicking on the user selection count button will launch the user selection modal. The left-hand side of the dialog displays each demographic grouping that can be removed or added to using the **Cross** and **Add User Selection** buttons respectively.

The right-hand side of the dialog displays the currently highlighted demographic grouping. Each grouping consists of a **Percentile Range** and zero or more **Demographic Mappings**.

The **Percentile Range** dropdown allows the users that match the demographic mappings to be filtered to pre-specified or custom ranges. The custom range option will display a range picker allowing the user to select a lower and upper percentage.

The **Demographic Mappings** can be chosen using the dropdown as well as being removed and added to using the **Cross** and **ADD FILTER** button respectively. Any selected values will be displayed at the top followed by the top 20 unselected values. The unselected values can be filtered using the textbox at the top of each result set. Additional data will only be retrieved from the server after 3 or more characters have been inputted into the filter textbox.

The DNA components and CME Skills need to be **linked** in the right table. In this example the **sales** DNA has been linked to the **WFM_Gold** skill. To link items, select the DNA from the left table and tick the related skill/skills in the middle table, then click the right arrow button.

DNAs		Skills	С		Linked Skills		RUN 🕨
Type to filter	Q	Type to filter	Q		DNA Name	Skill	Edit
feedback		WFM_Bronze	^		sales	WFM_Gold	e 💼
○ sales		WFM_Chat					
		WFM_Email					
		WFM_LostLuggage		→			
		WFM_LoyaltyCard					
		WFM_MileageCredit					
		WFM_Silver					
		WFM_VacationPackage					
		WFM_Voice	Ŧ				

Figure 236: Linking DNA components and CME skills

Click the Edit icon in the Linked Skills table to specify whether skills are directly mapped or whether the DNA results provide a scale to match the proficiency levels in CME.

To use levels of DNA results for proficiency levels in CME, enter the DNA Lower bound and DNA Upper values and associate these with a level in CME associated to the Skill. Click on **Add** once complete to create the required levels.

If there is a direct mapping select **Direct Mapping**.

👗 Edit DNA ->	CME Mappings	
Direct Mapping: DNA Lower bound: DNA Lower upper: CME Skill Value:	l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l	•
Close		•

Figure 237: Setting skill link properties

Click on **Run** to update the CME Skill levels.

Before importing the new Skill levels to CME you can preview the skill levels by clicking Preview. Once you are satisfied that the skill levels are accurate, click **Import**.

Please select the default Tenant to use: Environment 🔻		
'lease either click preview to view what changes will occur if t traight away.	he update is done or click import to do the	e import
Preview Import		
User:	BS_Upsell	BS_Upse
Jessica Hamilton (Added)	Before 0	After 57 🔺
Sylvia Salvador (Added)	0	50
Charles Sharp (Added)	0	23
Hortense Howard (Added)	0	23
John Smith (Added)	0	66
Jon Kleinsmith (Added)	0	61
Robert Klashner (Added)	0	57

Figure 238: Previewing the CME skill levels

26 Branding

26.1 Branding Options

The branding settings allow customisation of the look and feel of the system so they can better match company branding.

BRANDING		
Colour Settings Legacy Colour Setting	s Font Settings Corporate Settings	
Default Text Colour		
Default Background Colour		
Login Foreground Colour		
Login Background Colour		
Primary Navigation Colour		
Secondary Navigation Colour		
Corner Navigation Colour		
Active Colour		
Success Colour		
Error Colour		
Warning Colour		
Fifth Colour		
Reset branding to default Save Chang	es	
Sale chang	-	

Figure 239: Branding Settings

The four tabs are split between colour, font and corporate branding settings. Colour settings are defined on the first tab.

The following options are available:

Default Text Colour: The standard colour used for most text in the application.

Default Background Colour: Changes the colour of some grids in the application.

Login Foreground Colour: Changes the colour of text displayed on the login page.

Login Background Colour: Changes the colour of the login box.

Primary Navigation Colour: Changes the colour of menu and page headers.

Secondary Navigation Colour: Changes the colour of the menu sub items.

Corner Navigation Colour: Changes the colour of the logo section of the menu.

Active Colour: Changes the colour of the currently selected item. Is also used for most buttons.

Success Colour: Changes of the colour of messages that indicate success and some submit type buttons.

Error Colour: Changes the colour of messages and highlights that indicate an error. Also used for some buttons such as Revert.

Warning Colour: Changes the colour of messages and highlights that indicate a warning state.

Fifth Colour: A colour used where additional colours are required. (I.e. on screens with many buttons or status indicators)

A very small number of colour controls are available in the legacy branding tab but these are being deprecated incrementally in each new version of the product.

BRANDING		
Colour Settings Legacy Colour Settings Fc	nt Settings Corporate Settings	
Header Font Type Body Font Type	Roboto Roboto	
Change Font Size	9	
Reset branding to default Save Changes		

Figure 240: Branding Font

The font and sizing can be selected on the font settings tab. The font chosen needs to be available on the client machines otherwise it will be substituted for an available font.

BRANDING				
Colour Settings Legacy Colour Settings Font Settings Corporate Settings				
Enter new Header Performance DNA Text Enter new				
Welcome Text Choose new Company				
Logo Select Choose Collapsed				
Company Logo ~/brandingImage/pdnaCollapsedBanner Select				
Choose Login Logo Select				

The corporate branding tab allows the user to specify company logos for the menu and login screen. In addition, a background image can be selected to provide a branded backdrop when logging in.

Enter new Header Text: Text displayed on the login page.

Enter new Welcome Text: Optional text.

Choose new Company Logo: A logo for display in the menu when the menu is expanded.

Choose Collapsed Company Logo: The logo displayed in the menu when the menu is collapsed.

Choose Background Image: An image for display on the Login page. (Ensure the image is of a sufficient resolution for full screen display to ensure you retain a high quality image.)

26.2 Setting Branding

To set branding select the desired options and save before exiting each tab.

BRANDING	Performance DNA 5ays: X Branding saved. Press F5 to refresh the screen (some changes may not appear correctly until you log out). OK
Colour Settings Legacy Colour Se	ettings Font Settings Corporate Settings
Default Text Colour Default Background Colour Login Foreground Colour	
	_

Figure 242: Saving Settings

A dialog appears to indicate that the changes have been saved. A page refresh is sometimes required. For some changes the user needs to logout and log back in again.

26.3 Restore Branding to Defaults

Each tab contains a button for resetting branding.



Figure 243: Restoring Branding to Default
Clicking the Reset option will revert all branding back to the default branding that the product was installed with. **Note: This resets all branding across the entire application not just the branding of the tab the user is on.**

BRANDING	Performance DNA says: X Reset your branding settings to the system defaults? OK Cancel
Colour Settings Legacy Colour Se	ettings Font Settings Corporate Settings
Default Text Colour	
Default Background Colour	
Login Foreground Colour	
Login Background Colour	
	Figure 244: Branding Rest Confirmation

The user has a final option to cancel the action. Click OK to confirm the reset or cancel to abandon the action.

27 SkillsAnalysis

The SkillsAnalysis page enables you to correllate performance with learning interventions, and coorelate performance in one area against another. Sessions can be saved for future reference.

LLS ANALYSIS			
s page allows you to perform correlation analysis between Assessments, KPIs and	DNA Blocks. You can then create Training Plans based on the results.		
	Start New Session		
ved Sessions	OR-		
Created by	Date created	Plan Count	
	28-Oct-2015 14:50:27	0	û →
	28-Oct-2014 14:51:29	0	û →
	11-Nov-2014 16:22:29	0	₫ →
	11-Nov-2015 16:22:48	0	û →

Figure 245: Skills Analysis Page

To begin a new Session, follow the following steps:

1. Choose items to Analyse.

SKILLS ANALYSIS						
Choose Items to Analyse	2 Calact Licere	3 Perform Analysis				
Tick the items you wish to analyse.	2 Select Osers	Perform Analysis				
 Optimizer Image: Assessment 1 						
🕨 🔳 🏭 Baseline						
 Handsets - iphone PDR Assessment 						
▶ □饠 Performance Data ▼ ■ダ DNA						
■ Ž Sales Role □ Ž Service Role						
			Figure 246: Cho	ose items to an	alvse	

- Performance DNA Assessment data
- Performance Data DNA Bae Data / KPI
- DNA DNA Strands or DNA Sequences

Select the items that you wish to correlate.

2. **Select Users** from the hierarchy. It is possible to select all users or specific users. In the following example a particular manager has been selected, which would select all members of this manager's team.

If all users are to be selected as part of the analysis, click on **Select all users**.

SKILLS ANALYSIS
Choose items to Analyse Select Users B Perform Analysis
User Selection Method: 🖲 Hierarchy 🔘 Saved User Selection 🔘 All Users
I Demo Inc: Amanda Westwood 1 other
🔻 🗉 Head of Operations: Huw Bristow
Guernsey Sevice Manager: Rob Mason
🖌 🧭 Guernsey Team Leader: Owen Bower
London Sevice Manager: Andy Harper
Manchester Sevice Manager: Steve Gardner
Figure 247: Select users

3. **Perform Analysis**, to perform the corrolation analysis on the select data types for the selected user(s), click **Run Analysis**.

SKILLS ANALYSIS	
Choose Items to Analyse 2 Sele	ett Users Perform Analysis
Run Analysis	

Figure 248: Data analysis

To view the **Analysis Results**, click on the arrow at the end of the session details.

KILLS ANALYSIS						
his page allows you to perform correlation analysis between Assessments, KPIs and DNA Blocks. Y	u can then create Training Plans based on the results.					
	Start New Session					
aved Sessions						
Created by	Date created	Plan Count		\wedge		
	28-Oct-2015 14:50:27	0	Û	/ →\		
	28-Oct-2014 14:51:29	0	Û	>		
	11-Nov-2014 16:22:29	0	Û	→		
	11-Nov-2015 16:22:48	0	Û	→		
Demo Admin	13-Nov-2015 13:52:16	1	Û	>		
				$\mathbf{\nabla}$		

Figure 249: Data analysis

Three options are available for viewing the correlation results on the **Correlations** page. The following example shows the **Best Correlations** option. The higher the correlation, the stronger the influence on the output.

KILLS ANALYSI	S							
Sack to Landing Page								
Correlations								
The Best Correlations list shows the most highly correlated results. You can use the "Find correlation for" tab to help you find potential training areas to improve any of your data sources. The Results Matrix shows the complete results of the analysis								
Best Correlations	ind Correlation For Results Matrix							
Click a data set name to f	ind the best correlations for just the selected set							
Correlation %	Data Set 1	Data Set 2	Matches					
97.43	ACD - Calls per Hour ➔	Sales - Sales per Hour ➔	60					
97.25	Assessment - Identify Problems & Solutions 🔶	CX - CSat 🗲	60					
95.55	Assessment - Product Knowledge 🗲	CX - CSat 🔸	60					
95.33	Assessment - Product Offering 🔶	CX - CSat 🗲	60					
-93.72	ACD - AHT 🗲	ACD - Calls per Hour 🔶	60					
-92.10	ACD - AHT 🔶	Sales - Sales per Hour 🔶	60					

Figure 250: Analysis results

The **Find Correlation For...** option allows a specific data set to be selected to view the correlation results.

Use the drop down box to select a specific data set to view.

SKILLS ANALYSIS									
Sack to Landing Page									
Correlations									
The Best Correlations list shows the most highly correlated resultabular form.	ts. You can use the "Find correlation for" tab to	o help you find	potential training areas	s to improve any of you	ır data sources. The Re	esults Matrix shows the com	plete res	ults of	the analysis in
Best Correlations Find Correlation For Results Matri									
Which analysis set do you want to find the best correlations for?		_							
Analysed Data	- Select an analysis set to find correlations for ACD - AHT	-	Matches						
Training Plans	ACD - Calls per Hour								
The list below shows any saved training plans associated with th	Assessment - Identify Problems & Solutions Assessment - Product Knowledge								
Description Data to improve	Assessment - Product Offering CX - CSat	g	Correlation %	Lower Cutoff	Upper Cutoff	Users Selected			
CX - CSat Assessment - Identify Problems & Solutions			97.25	7.00	10.00	48	ø	Û	C

Figure 251: Viewing correlation results for a specific data set

In the following example Customer Satisfation (CSat) has been selected with all correlation results:

SKILLS ANA	ALYSIS								
Sack to Landi	ng Page								
Correlations									
The Best Correla tabular form.	tions list shows the most highly correlated results. You can u	e the "Find correlation for" tab to help you	ı find potential training are	as to improve any of y	our data sources. The	Results Matrix shows	the complete r	esults of	the analysis in
Best Correlation	Find Correlation For Results Matrix								
Which analysis s	et do you want to find the best correlations for? CX - CSat	•							
Analysed Data				Correlation %			Matches		
Assessment - Id	entify Problems & Solutions			97.25%			60		
Assessment - Pr	oduct Knowledge			95.55%			60		
Assessment - Pr	oduct Offering			95.33%			60		
Sales - Sales per	Hour			-20.82%			60		
ACD - AHT				19.93%			60		
ACD - Calls per l	Hour		-15.74%				60		
Training Plan	s								
The list below sh	ows any saved training plans associated with this analysis see	sion.							
Description	Data to improve	Data selected for training	Correlation %	Lower Cutoff	Upper Cutoff	Users Selected			
CX - CSat	Assessment - Identify Problems & Solutions	CX - CSat	97.25	7.00	10.00	48		'n 🛍	Ċ

Figure 252: Viewing correlation results for a specific data set

The third option, shown below, is to to view the **Results Matrix** as a heat map view, with the highest (strongest) correlation results highlighted in green.



Figure 253: Results matrix

To select users for training based on the correlation results, click on the analysed data. A separate window is presented to select the number of users based on results.

	Optimizer												×		
	You have chosen to select users for training using the correlation between CX - CSat AND Assessment - Identify Problems & Solutions														
The area between the two markers indicates the range of users you are going to train; Move the handles on the slider bar to adjust this range. The slider represents the range of results for users in Assessment - Identify Problems & Solutions. The numbers below the slider indicate the lower and upper limits of the scores used to select the users.												l			
	Numb	per of	user	rs be	low c	utof	f poir	nt:						12	
	Numk	oer of	user	rs to	be tr	aine	d:							17	
	Numb	per of	user	rs ab	ove c	utof	fpoir	nt:						31	
		 0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	 10	Þ		
														Save	•

Figure 254: Selecting users for training based on results

Once the users have been selected click on **Save** to save that training plan and give the new plan a name (if required), then click **Save**. The saved training plan will then be available to view or export the details out by selecting **Manage Saved Sessions**. This will then reveal the user names that

Create training plan :							
	his training plan then click the lave button.						
Plan name	Plan name Assessment - Identify Problem						
Cancel	Save	•					

have been selected against the training plan.

Figure 255: Saving the training plan

28 Personal Development Review

The PDR feature allows employees to define a set of personal development objectives and agree to them with a manager. Once objectives have been approved, employees can submit files to demonstrate that the objectives have been completed. Managers can also create, delete, approve and complete objectives (i.e. set the statuses to 'completed'). Managers can then combine the results of the PDR Potential Assessment and the achieved objective targets to give the employee a score on the talent matrix.

There are three pages of PDR features: **PDR**, **PDR Dashboard** and **PDR Admin**. The PDR and PDR Dashboard pages are in the User section of the menu. The PDR Admin page is in the Admin section of the navigation menu.

These pages will not automatically be assigned to user roles, so it is recommended that the Manager role is granted access to the PDR Dashboard page and the User role is granted access to the PDR page. Administrators and/or managers should be granted access to the PDR Admin page in order to support the management of review periods.

The PDR page is primarily for employees to define their development objectives, whilst the dashboard allows managers to create, edit, approve and monitor the status of their reports' PDRs.

28.1 Setting the number of objective targets for users

The number of targets that appear in users' PDR pages is one by default for all users, however, this can be modified on a per-user basis. Follow the steps below if you wish to change the number of targets (per objective) users will see in their PDR page:

- 1. Login as a system administrator
- 2. Select the System Settings page
- 3. Create a new user field to store the value for the number of PDR targets
- 4. Select the general settings tab
- 5. Set the user field for PDR target counts to the new PDR user field
- 6. Populate the user field for users either by importing a spreadsheet of users that includes a value for the PDR field or by editing existing users in the **Users & Hierarchy** widget and setting a value for their PDR target counts field

28.2 PDR Page

The PDR widget is divided into 5 tabs by default: **Environmental**, **Finance**, **Vision**, **Operating Efficiency** and **Customer**. It is possible to define multiple objectives within each of these tabs. Select one of the tabs and click the **Add Objective** button to create a new objective. The new objective will appear as 'Objective 1', followed by **Objective Detail** and **How will this be achieved** fields. The target can then be set by selecting either **Goal** or **Measured** from the **Target type** field.

PDR			
User → PDR			
Environmental* Finance Vision Operating Efficiency Customer	Save Your Progress	Propose Objectives	Comments
Environmental Destruction			
Take all the steps necessary to ensure the profitability, especially if it leads to environmental damage.			
🖌 Objective 1 🗶			Add Objective
State New			
Objective detail			
			1
How will this be achieved			
			li
Target Type What will be measured What is the target		Target date	
Please Select 🔹			

Figure 256: Creating objectives

The **Goal** objective type will require the user to enter content in the **What will be measured**, **What is the target** and **Target date** fields.

The **Measured** objective type includes the same options, except that the **What will be measured** element allows for the selection of a KPI/DNA Base Data rather than free text.

The **Save your progress** button will become enabled once there are unsaved changes in the PDR, and allows the user to save the current state of their PDR. Clicking the **Propose Objectives** button will update the state of the new objectives to 'pending approval'. They will then become visible to the user's manager. The manager can then make changes to the objectives, delete them and approve them.

It is possible to continue adding and proposing new objectives after the initial set have been proposed to the manager. The manager will then have to review the new objectives and decide whether to delete, modify and/or approve them.

28.3 PDR Dashboard Page

Managers can view the status of their reports' PDRs, as well as edit and approve PDR objectives submitted by their reports via the **PDR Dashboard** widget.

ser o PDR Dashboa	ard	
LOGIN ID	NAME	STATUS
CTB20	Malkhazni Dratchev	Submitted
CTB44	Juanito Gairbekov	In Progress
CTB32	Zelim Kadiev	Approved
СТВЗВ	Penultimo Kadyrov	Not Started
СТВ8	Bekbulat Korgay	Not Started
CTB14	Batir Korgay	Not Started
CTB50	Zulikhan Panova	Not Started
CTB26	Salavdi Timayev	Not Started

Figure 257: PDR Dashboard

Selecting the **PDR Dashboard** widget from the navigation menu will display the logged-in manager's list of direct reports, including their Login IDs, names and PDR statuses. The status column will contain either: **Not started**, **In Progress** (there are objectives that have yet to be submitted to the manager for approval), **Submitted for Approval** (available for review and approval by the manager) or **Approved** (all objectives have been approved/deleted by the manager). Submitted objectives can be edited by the manager prior to approval. Once the employee submits an objective, they can no longer make changes to the objective detail, how will this be achieved, or target type sections. Similarly, the manager will be able to make changes to submitted objectives up until they are approved.

🖋 Objective 1 🔀			Add Objective
State New			
Objective detail			
Increase the amount of revenue from new sour	ces by not less than £10,000 during the next year.		
How will this be achieved			
Greater focus on multichannel sales.			
Target Type	What will be measured	What is the target	Target date
Goal	Revenue	£10000+	5/12/2015

Figure 258: Creating an objective

Once an objective has been approved both the agent and the manager will be able to add comments and evidence file uploads to the objective.

Write a comment	9	Choose file	Add a description	+



28.3.1 Objective Actions Screen

The objective actions screen lists all objectives with labels on the left side indicating each objective's PDR section (e.g. Environmental, Finance etc.). Click on the title of the Objective to expanded to show further detail. Objectives that are pending approval can be approved or deleted via the tick and cross icons on the right. Objective details can also be edited for objectives that are pending approval by making changes to the relevant elements and clicking the **Save Your Progress** button.

🗲 Go	Back Ilman Rushisvili								Save Your Progress
Enviro	onmental Finance Vision	Operating Efficiency	Customer			Objective Actions	Potential	Talent Matrix	
Environmenta	Objective 2 Reduce water consumption.							✓ Approve	X Delete
nmental	Objective 1 In progress							✓ Approve	X Delete
	Objective 3 State Pending Approval Objective detail							✓ Approve	X Delete
	Reduce electricity consumption.								
	How will this be achieved								
	Encourage staff to switch off equipment	that isn't being used.							Å
	Target Type	What will be measured			What is the target		Та	arget dat e	
	Goal	 Energy consumption. 		,	10% reduction in energy consumption.		1	0/1/2015	8

Figure 260: Objective actions screen

Tasks that have been approved can also be set to **Complete** status in this screen by selecting the appropriate Target rating (based on which target level the employee achieved) and clicking the Complete checkbox. Once an objective has been set to complete it can be moved back to approved status by unchecking the **Complete** checkbox.

28.3.1.1 Potential tab

The **Potential** tab within the PDR Dashboard page allows managers to complete the PDR Potential Assessment for their reports. The questions that appear in this tab are based on the assessment selected in the PDR Admin page. The scores selected in this tab will affect the report's potential value in the Talent Matrix tab.

PDR Dashboard	
User \rightarrow PDR Dashboard	
🗲 Go Back Nura Timayev	
Environmental Finance Vision Operating Efficiency Customer	Save Your Objective Actions Potential Talent Matrix Comments
Drive Judgement Influence	
Aspiratio	on
You've got a relentless focus on execution and getting things done.	
1 5	10
Ŭ	
You aspire to make a significant difference beyond your core de liverables.	
1 5	10
You set a high standard for both yourself and others.	
1 5	10
Initiativ	e
You take a wider view of your accountabilities; quick to own and slow to blame.	
1 5	10
Ŭ	
You show the courage to challenge constructively, even if unpopular.	
1 5	10

Figure 261: Potential tab

28.3.1.2 Talent Matrix Tab

The talent matrix tab combines an employee's potential score (based on the values selected in the Potential tab) and the employee's objective performance (based on the level achieved for defined objectives). If all of the user's PDR objectives are measured, a recommended score will be displayed in the top-right area of the page. This score is based on the combination of the extent to which the user has achieved their objectives and the values specified in the Potential assessment. If the recommended rating is shown and the manager opts to override this recommendation, a comment will be required prior to saving. This should be entered into the comments box.

PDR Dashbo	ard				
User \rightarrow PDR Dashbos	ard				
🗲 Go Back	Salikh Umkha	iyev			
Environmental	Finance	Vision	Operating Efficiency	Customer	
		Potential	Standour 3:1	2:1	1:1
		Grawth	Potential For	2:2	1:2
		Potential	Well Placed	2:3	1:3
			Low Performance	Performs Well	Exceeds Expectations

Figure 262: Talent Matrix tab

The **Save Matrix Position** button will be visible if the manager accesses the Talent Matrix tab for an employee's PDR within a review window (see the following section for creating review windows). Saving the Matrix position creates a historical snapshot of the employee's current position on the talent matrix. These snapshots are displayed on the talent matrix grid via grey circles. The orange circle indicates the employee's current position, the largest grey circle indicates the most recently taken snapshot, with smaller circles indicating the employee's past position(s) on the talent matrix.

28.4 PDR Admin Page

28.4.1 PDR Potential Assessment

The PDR Admin page allows for the setting of the **PDR Potential Assessment** that will be assigned to employees as part of the PDR process. The information gained from completed PDR assessments will then be used as an input into the talent matrix feature. To select an assessment, select an assessment from the PDR Potential Assessment dropdown and click the Save icon. **Note**: Only assessments that are set to feedback only with a deployment type of **self only** will be available in the dropdown.

28.4.2 PDR Defined Review Windows

PDR administrators are also able to define review windows. These are pairs of dates that can be used to define the date ranges during which PDR reviews may occur. It is only possible to save Talent Matrix snapshots during a review window.

28.4.3 PDR Email Notifications

The PDR functionality includes the option for email notifications for managers when certain events occur. These options are available from the PDR Admin page.

PDR Settings						B
PDR Potential Assessment						
Please pick a feedback assessment to be	linked to the PDR				Please Select	۲
Email Settings						
Notify managers by email when objectiv	es are submitted for revi	ew				
Notify managers by email when a PDR re	view period is starting					
Notify managers by email when a PDR re	view period is ending so	on				
Notification email "From" address						
The URL to include in notification emails	for users to access their	P DR				
The number of days prior to the end of a	review window that a w	arning ema	ail is sent to managers			
PDR Defined Review Windows						
	Start Date		End Date			
					×	
	10/16/2014	#	10/21/2014	m	+	

Figure 263: PDR Admin Page Settings

It is possible to enable email notifications for managers when the following events occur:

- A manager's reports submits objectives for review
- A PDR review period is starting
- A PDR review period is ending

Additionally, this page allows the user to set the 'from' address for all email notifications, a URL to include with the notifications, and the number of days prior to the end of a review window that the notification should be sent.

28.5 Feature notes

28.5.1 PDR Dashboard Widget

- Managers will only be able to see the PDRs of users who are directly below them in the hierarchy.
- Any objectives that are created by the manager will initially have their state set to 'pending approval', rather than new.
- Objectives that are new will not be visible to the manager until they have been submitted by the user.
- Deleted objectives are hidden from both the employee and their manager.

The PDR Potential Assessment will be available to managers when viewing their reports' PDRs. The assessment should **not** be manually assigned to Performance DNA users.

29 Appendix 1: Optional components

Performance DNA includes several additional components that provide the ability to:

- Automatically import DNA KPI data via the **DNA Import Service.**
- Allow administrators to create LMS learning items and assign them to users via the LMS Learning Item Integration functionality.

Please refer to the corresponding install/upgrade guides for installation instructions for each of these components.

29.1 DNA Import Service

Automatic import of new KPI spreadsheets by copying them into the folder of your choice can be enabled with the DNA Import **Service**. The setup of this service requires the definition of a KPI import folder (e.g. "C:\KPI_Imports") and an archive folder (e.g. "C:\KPI_Archive"). Copying a KPI spreadsheet into the import folder will enable the service to automatically import the data into Performance DNA and then move the file into the archive folder. The file will be renamed prior to being moved to the archive folder in order to prevent naming conflicts. This removes the need to import KPI data manually through the Performance DNA **Manage KPI** page.

Note: This service is **not** currently supported within an Active Directory (Secure Token Service) based environment.

29.2 LMS Learning Item Integration

The LMS learning item integration feature allows Performance DNA administrators to assign Performance DNA assessments to LMS users (JZero and Scaffold LMS are currently supported). These assessments can then be viewed and launched from the LMS.

To create an LMS learning item:

- 1. Click on the Learning Items page
- 2. Click the **Create Learning Item** link
- 3. Select LMS Course from the Type select box.
- 4. An LMS hierarchy containing the courses will then appear and allow a course to be selected.
- 5. Click **Save** to complete the creation of the learning item.

LMS learning items can be assigned to users and DNA Strands in the same way as other learning item types.

Note: LMS course learning items can only be assigned to LMS users who are mapped to a valid LMS user (via the user field defined for the LMS integration feature).

29.3 Configuring GIS Authentication

In Performance DNA, open the **System Settings** page and select the **General Settings** tab. Here, you'll see the settings you need to configure GIS integration.

Note that these options are not visible until you've made the database change mentioned previously.

User Fields Field Mappings	Widgets General Settings
Genesys settings	
UserName	demo
Password	
Proxy app name	default
GIS Host	demosrv.genesyslab.com
GIS Port	8095
GIS Tenant	Environment

Figure 264: GIS Settings

The GIS tenant will vary depending on your installation, but for a single tenant GIS it should be Environment.

Typically the proxy app name can be left as default.

The user name and password provided here are only used for the Skills Route part of the application. If Performance DNA is configured to use GIS as an authentication source, the username and password of the user who is logging in is used instead of these values.

← → C 🗋 demosrv.genesyslab.co	om:8095/gis/html/index.htm		
🗋 Emu 🦳 Models 🦳 Twinoid 🦳 HOG	Drivers 🗀 Go Ogle 🧰 Lego	o 🧰 Telerik 🧰 Dev 📆 VMWare->HyperV	
GENESYS' AN ALCHTHUETH COMPANY		Genesys Integration Serv	/er
	Server GIS running		
Overview ⊒ Services SessionService wsdl ⊟Au	Server GIS running Version	7.6.302.04	
∃ Services		7.6.302.04 demosrv:2020	
∃Services SessionService wsdl □AIL	Version		
⊇Services SessionService wsdl ⊡AlL ResourceService wsdl NotifyService wsdl	Version Configuration Server	demosrv:2020	2

The GIS host and GIS port can be found by launching the status page from the Genesys

server, and

Figure 265: GIS Server Details

checking the URL – the port will be shown as a number after a colon following the host name. The Status Page should be accessible in the Start menu in **Genesys Solutions** > **Genesys Integration Server** > **SOAP** > **Status Page** (or OS equivalent).

In the example below, the host is **demosrv.genesyslab.com** and the port is **8095**. Save the changes once you've completed all the fields.

The "Update Routing Skills" page in the Administration > DNA menu should now work as per the documentation.